
   

   

   

   

    

    

    

    

    

   

   

   

   

   

   

 

 

   

  

   

 

 

 

    

 

 

   

 

  

   

  

    

  

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Agenda 

Item 2 

Item 3 

Item 4 

Item 5 

Item 6 

Item 7 

Item 8 

Item 9 

Item 10 

Item 11 

Item 12 

Item 13 

Item 14 

Item 15 

Item 16 

Item 17 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

June 10, 2021 

Public Notice & Agenda (Published May 28, 2021) 

Meeting Minutes 

Executive Report 

Financial Report 

CEA Investment Policy Statement Changes 

Proposed CEA 2021 Revenue Bond Program  

Approval of Loss Mitigation Fund Set-Aside 

Investment Managers 

Vendor Contract Renewal Ratifications 

2020 Annual Financial Audit 

Rate Filing Status Update 

Enterprise Risk Management Quarterly Report 

Mitigation and Research Projects Update 

Centralized Policy Processing Report 

Diversity, Inclusion & Belonging Advisory Council 

Public Comment 

Closed Session 

Page 02 

Page 06 

Page 14 

Page 15 

Page 32 

Page 100 

Page 107 

Page 111 

Page 114 

Page 119 

Page 171 

Page 172 

Page 174 

Page 179 

Page 181 

Page 182 

001



          

        

 
 

        
           

 
       

    

 

     
   

     
    

              
                  

  

    

 

   

 
  

   

       
             

    
              

  
  

Date of Notice: Friday, May 28, 2021 (Amended June 2, 2021 and June 8, 2021) 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
A PUBLIC MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD 
OF THE CALIFORNIA EARTHQUAKE AUTHORITY 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Governing Board of the California Earthquake Authority (“CEA”) will 
conduct a teleconference meeting. Pursuant to California Insurance Code §10089.7(l), the Bagley-
Keene Open Meeting Act applies generally to meetings of the Governing Board, and the meeting 
is open to the public—public participation, comments, and questions will be welcome for each 
agenda item on which the Governing Board is prepared to take action. Pursuant to Insurance Code 
§10089.55, please take further notice that this meeting relates to the business of earthquake 
insurance conducted by CEA. 

Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20, issued March 17, 2020, certain 
provisions of the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act are suspended or waived during the declared 
State of Emergency in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Consistent with the Executive Order, 
in order to promote and maximize social distancing and public health and safety, this meeting will 
be conducted by teleconference only. None of the locations from which Governing Board members 
will participate will be open to the public. All members of the public shall have the right to observe 
the meeting and offer comment at this public meeting as described in this Notice. 

DATE: Thursday, June 10, 2021 

TIME: 1:00 p.m. 

TELECONFERENCE ACCESS:* 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81537248579 
Dial-in Number: 1 (669) 900-6833 
Enter Meeting ID: 815 3724 8579 # 

Public Participation: The telephone lines of members of the public who dial into 
the meeting to observe and comment will initially be muted to prevent background 
noise from inadvertently disrupting the meeting. Phone lines will be unmuted 
during all portions of the meeting that are appropriate for public comment to allow 
members of the public to comment. Please see additional instructions below 
regarding Public Participation Procedures. 

* CEA is not responsible for unforeseen technical difficulties that may occur in the audio feed. 
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PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PROCEDURES: All members of the public shall have the right to observe the 
meeting and offer comment at this public meeting. The member of the Governing Board acting as 
Chair of the meeting will indicate when a portion of the meeting is to be open for public comment. 
Any member of the public wishing to comment must press *9 on their phone. Pressing *9 will 
notify the call moderator that you wish to comment, and you will be placed in line to comment in 
the order in which requests are received by the moderator. When it is your turn to comment, the 
moderator will unmute your line and announce your opportunity to comment. The Chair of the 
meeting reserve the right to limit the time for comment. Members of the public should be prepared 
to complete their comments within approximately 3 minutes, but more or less time may be allotted 
by the Chair. Please take notice that this meeting may be recorded, and that participating in public 
comment will be deemed to indicate consent to recording of any comments. 

ACCESSIBILITY FOR DISABLED PERSONS: Persons who, due to a disability, need assistance in order to 
participate in this meeting should, prior to the meeting, contact CEA’s ADA Coordinator either by 
phone by dialing (916) 661-5400, or by e-mail addressed to EEO@calquake.com and 
CEABoardLiaison@calquake.com. TTY/TDD and Speech to-Speech users may dial 7-1-1 for the 
California Relay Service to submit comments on an agenda item or to request special 
accommodations for persons with disabilities. Persons with disabilities may request special 
accommodations at this or any future Governing Board meeting or may request the 
accommodation necessary to receive agendas or materials CEA prepares for its Board meetings. 
Please contact Susan Johnson by telephone, toll free, at (877) 797-4300 or by email at 
CEABoardLiaison@calquake.com. We would appreciate hearing from you at least five days before 
the meeting date to best allow us to meet your needs. 

AGENDA 

Preliminary Matters 

1. Call to order and member roll call: 

Governor 
Treasurer 
Insurance Commissioner 
Speaker of the Assembly 
Chair of the Senate Rules Committee 

Establishment of a quorum 

2. Consideration and approval of the minutes of the March 10, 2021, CEA Governing Board meeting. 
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Priority Items 

3. Executive Report by Chief Executive Officer Glenn Pomeroy, which will include a report on 
legislative matters of interest to CEA and an update on the development of CEA’s new Strategic 
Plan. 

4. Chief Financial Officer Tom Hanzel will present to the Board the CEA financial report. 

5. Mr. Hanzel will seek Board approval of revisions to CEA’s investment policy statement. 

6. Mr. Hanzel will seek approval from the Board to initiate CEA’s Series 2021A and Series 2021B 
revenue bond programs. 

7. Mr. Hanzel will seek Board approval of the annual set-aside of a statutory portion of CEA 
investment income for transfer into the CEA Loss Mitigation Fund. 

8. Mr. Hanzel will seek Board approval to contract with additional investment managers. 

9. General Counsel Tom Welsh and Deputy General Counsel Joe Zuber will lead a discussion of the 
Budget and Vendor Management and Approval process, including a report on and ratification of 
the recent renewal of CEA’s cyber insurance and printing vendor request for agreements. 

Reporting Items 

10. CEA independent financial auditor Plante Moran PLLC will present to the Board the results of its 
most recent audit of CEA, conducted pursuant to the standards of the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB). 

11. Chief Risk and Actuarial Officer Shawna Ackerman will provide an update on the status of CEA’s 
pending rate filing with the Department of Insurance. 

12. Ms. Ackerman will deliver a quarterly report on the CEA enterprise risk management (ERM) 
program. 

13. Chief Mitigation Officer Janiele Maffei will update the Board on CEA mitigation activities. 

14. CEA staff will provide a quarterly status report on CEA’s Centralized Policy Processing program 
(CPP). 

15. Diversity, Inclusion, and Belonging Advisory Council (DIBAC) Co-Chair Kwaun Williams will 
provide an update on DIBAC’s projects and activities. 

Public Comment, Closed Session & Conclusion 

16. Public comment on matters that do not appear on this agenda and opportunity to request that 
matters be placed on a future agenda. 

17. The Board will meet in closed session to discuss personnel matters, as permitted by Government 
Code section 11126, subdivision (a). 

18. Adjournment. 
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For further information about this notice or its contents: 

General Information: 
Susan Johnson 
Direct: (916) 661-5586 
Toll free: (877) 797-4300 

Legal Information: 
Tom Welsh, General Counsel 
Direct: (916) 661-5527 
Toll free: (877) 797-4300 
twelsh@calquake.com 

Media Contact: 
Direct: (279) 203-5998 
media@calquake.com 

To view this Notice on the CEA website, to access meeting materials, or to learn 
more about CEA, please visit www.EarthquakeAuthority.com. 
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Governing Board Memorandum 

10 June 2021 

Agenda Item 02: Meeting minutes 

Recommended Action: Approve meeting minutes 

Attached is a draft of the minutes of the meeting of the CEA Governing Board (Board) 

held on March 10, 2021. CEA staff has reviewed these minutes and believes that they 

accurately summarize and document the matters discussed and actions taken by the 

Board at the meeting. CEA staff recommends approval and adoption of the draft minutes 

as the official record of the Board meeting of March 10, 2021. 

Governing Board Meeting—10 June 2021 Page 1 of 1 
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CALIFORNIA EARTHQUAKE AUTHORITY 
GOVERNING BOARD MEETING 

MINUTES 

Thursday, March 10, 2021 

Location: California Earthquake Authority 
Teleconference Meeting Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order 
N-29-20, issued March 17, 2020 

Members of the Governing Board in attendance: 
Mark Ghilarducci, Designee of Governor Gavin Newsom 
Hon. Fiona Ma, State Treasurer 
Michael Martinez, Designee of Insurance Commissioner Ricardo Lara 
Kasey O’Connor, Designee of Treasurer Fiona Ma 
Jeff Wood, Designee of Speaker of the Assembly Anthony Rendon 
Lloyd Dixon, Designee of Chair of the Senate Rules Committee Toni Atkins 

Members of the CEA staff in attendance: 
Glenn Pomeroy, Chief Executive Officer 
Shawna Ackerman, Chief Risk and Actuarial Officer 
Tom Hanzel, Chief Financial Officer 
Dr. Laurie Johnson, Chief Catastrophe Response & Resiliency Officer 
Lynda Foster, Diversity, Inclusion, Belonging, Advisory Council (DIBAC) Co-Chair 
Jacqueline Ball, DIBAC Co-Chair 
Kwaun Williams, DIBAC Co-Chair 
Sarah Sol, Diversity, DIBAC 
Craig Merry, Diversity, DIBAC 
Windy Kahana, DIBAC 
Stephanie Halpin, DIBAC 
Sonya Berry, Centralized Policy Processing Portfolio Manager 
Janiele Maffei, Chief Mitigation Officer 
Charlotte Fadipe, Chief Communications Officer 
Tom Welsh, General Counsel 
Susan Johnson, Governing Board Liaison 

Also present: 
Mark Simmonds, CEA Advisory Panel Chairman 
Joseph Monaghan, Chief Executive Officer - Public Sector Partnership, Aon 
Bridget Gainer, Vice President of Global Public Affairs, Aon 

Preliminary Matters 

1. Meeting call to order. 

Chair Ghilarducci opened the meeting at 2:04 p.m. 

Ms. Johnson took the roll and announced that a quorum was present. 
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2. Consideration and approval of the minutes of the December 10, 2020 CEA Governing 
Board meeting. 

MOTION: Treasurer Ma moved to adopt the December 10, 2020 minutes. Mr. Martinez 
seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 

Priority Items 

3. Executive Report by Chief Executive Officer Glenn Pomeroy. 

Mr. Pomeroy recapped events during the last year of the pandemic and praised CEA employees 
for their resilience as they have been working from home since last March. He thanked Board 
members for their strong support, and noted that three new members joined the Executive team 
throughout the course of the year: Charlotte Fadipe (Chief Communications Officer), Jim 
Lombard (Chief Administrative Officer), and Dr. Laurie Johnson (Chief Catastrophe Response & 
Resiliency Officer – a newly established position to lead post disaster response activity for both 
CEA and the California Wildfire Fund). Mr. Pomeroy also reported on the status of two pieces of 
proposed state legislation and a proposed piece of federal legislation all which remain pending. 
The proposed state legislation, Senate Bill 440 and Assembly Bill 1569, involve financial and 
reporting matters that could impact CEA, while the federal legislation, if enacted, would 
eliminate federal taxation of state funded, residential earthquake and wildfire mitigation grants. 

Mr. Pomeroy reported that over the last year the number of CEA policies has grown by about 
25,000. He also noted that CEA had experienced significant growth throughout the previous 
decade, as follows: 

• Policies in Force: up 40% 
• Policyholder Premium: up 40% 
• Total Insured Value: doubled 
• Claim Paying Capacity: doubled 
• Risk Transfer Purchased: tripled 

He concluded his remarks by indicating this growth has resulted in the need for the proposed 
CEA premium rate increase (Agenda Item 5), and may require additional rate increases in the 
future – driven primarily by the rising cost of reinsurance, which the CEA must purchase to 
maintain its claim-paying capacity to pay claims arising from a possible 1-in-400 year 
earthquake event. 

Mr. Pomeroy introduced CEA Advisory Panel Chairman Mark Simmonds to report on the recent 
meeting of the Advisory Panel and its actions related to the proposed rate increase. 

4. CEA Advisory Panel Report by CEA Advisory Panel Chairman Mark Simmonds. 

Mr. Simmonds reported to the Board that the Advisory Panel at its February 25, 2021 meeting 
voted unanimously to support CEA’s proposed 3.8% statewide rate increase. Mr. Simmonds 
also reported that the Advisory Panel voted unanimously to support and approve the rate 
increase for the loss assessment portion of the CEA condominium policy. By statute, the 
CEA Governing Board Meeting – Minutes 2 of 7 
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Advisory Panel is charged with approving rates for that portion of CEA condominium policies. 
Prior to the Advisory Panel meeting, the 3-member, Advisory Panel Rate Subcommittee, of 
which Mr. Simmonds also serves as Chair, also voted to unanimously support the proposed, 
overall rate increase and to approve the rate increase for the loss assessment portion of the 
CEA condominium policy. Board members Ma and Martinez thanked Mr. Simmonds for his 
report and praised the entire Advisory Panel for its engagement and assistance to the 
Governing Board on the proposed rate increase. 

5. Chief Risk & Actuarial Officer Shawna Ackerman will present for Board consideration 
and approval a proposed rate filing. 

Ms. Ackerman explained to the Board that the need for a proposed 3.8% statewide rate 
increase is driven almost entirely by the increasing cost of reinsurance, and by statute, CEA has 
to charge enough in policyholder premiums to cover expected costs of policyholder claims. She 
noted the 3.8 percent proposed increase would result in annual, average increase of $33 per 
CEA homeowner policyholder. She also presented to the Board the average annual increase for 
CEA condominium owners, mobile homeowners and renters. She stated that most CEA 
policyholders would see an increase of less than $100 a year. And, under the CEA’s proposed 
rate filing, the new rates, if approved by the California Department of Insurance and the 
Insurance Commissioner, would go into effect in early 2022. 

Ms. Ackerman requested the Board approve the rate increase and supporting documents; 
instruct staff to submit the rate request with supporting documents to the insurance 
commissioner for consideration and approval. 

Questions and Discussion 

Mr. Martinez and Mr. Wood expressed their appreciation for breaking down the proposed rate 
increase by its annual impact on CEA policyholders. Mr. Wood also asked about the CEA policy 
renewal cycle and if more policies renew during a particular time of year or season of the year. 
Ms. Ackerman noted that there is seasonality to the renewal cycle reflecting when people are 
more likely to buy a house. 

Mr. Dixon asked Ms. Ackerman why the proposed rate increase was across the board and did 
not vary in different parts of the state. He asked if one area of the CEA insurance policy portfolio 
creates larger reinsurance costs than other parts of the state. Ms. Ackerman replied that 
reinsurance costs have traditionally been allocated uniformly in proportion to loss. 

Mr. Martinez asked if the proposed rate increase is a component of CEA’s ongoing strategic 
planning process, and Ms. Ackerman confirmed that it is one of many components. He also 
suggested that CEA be proactive in communicating to policyholders in advance of the rate 
increase should the rate increase be enacted. 

Chairman Ghilarducci agreed with Mr. Martinez’ comments regarding policyholder 
communication. He also stated that faced with the rising reinsurance costs that the Board is left 
with little choice but to support the rate increase. 

Treasurer Ma said the Board needs to fulfill its obligations and act swiftly by supporting the 
CEA Governing Board Meeting – Minutes 3 of 7 
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proposed rate increase as a way to ensure that CEA is prepared to respond to future 
catastrophic events. 

MOTION: Treasurer Ma moved to adopt the staff recommendations to approve the 
proposed rate increase request and supporting documents, and to authorize staff to 
submit the rate request with supporting documents to the Insurance Commissioner for 
consideration and approval. Mr. Martinez seconded. The motion carried unanimously on 
a roll-call vote. Mr. Martinez noted for the record that his vote in favor of the proposed 
rate increase was made solely in his capacity as the Insurance Commissioner designee 
on the CEA Governing Board, and that such vote is not binding on the Department of 
Insurance Rate Regulatory and Financial Surveillance Branch, which is obligated to 
undertake an independent review of CEA’s rate filings 

6. Chief Financial Officer Tom Hanzel will present for Board consideration and approval the 
proposed maximum earthquake-loss assessment levels for CEA participating insurers. 

Mr. Hanzel explained that the Governing Board is required by statute to annually approve the 
maximum earthquake-loss assessment levels for each of CEA’s participating insurance 
companies. He described it as a “mechanical” process, which is determined by a formula based 
on the amount of CEA premium written by each of the participating insurers. He further 
explained that the total industry assessment layer being allocated among the participating 
insurers makes up approximately $1.66 billion of the $19.2 billion in aggregate CEA claim-
paying capacity. 

Questions and Discussion 

There being no questions or discussion, Mr. Hanzel recommended the Board adopt the CEA 
market-share percentages shown in Attachment A, which are to be used to determine the 
maximum earthquake loss funding assessment levels for CEA participating insurers, effective 
April 30, 2021, and for the Board to authorize CEA staff to notify each participating insurer of its 
respective maximum earthquake loss funding assessment level responsibility. 

MOTION: Michael Martinez moved to adopt the CEA market-share percentages shown 
in Attachment A, which are to be used to determine the maximum earthquake-loss 
funding assessment levels for CEA participating insurers, effective April 30, 2021, and 
for the Board to authorize CEA staff to notify each participating insurer of its respective 
maximum earthquake loss funding assessment level responsibility. Treasurer Ma 
seconded. The motion carried unanimously on a roll call vote. 

Reporting Items 

7. Mr. Pomeroy, assisted by consulting firm AON, will provide an update on the 
development of CEA’s new Strategic Plan. 
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Mr. Pomeroy introduced Aon’s Joseph Monaghan who brought the Board up to date on 
the development of CEA’s new Strategic Plan. Mr. Monaghan noted the consultants 
have narrowed the focus of the Strategic Plan’s development and the consulting team is 
working with CEA to evaluate a range of potential options for consideration to keep CEA 
on sound, financial footing. Those options may include a focus on the need to maintain 
CEA’s claim paying capacity in the future, and consideration of future rate increases to 
meet future reinsurance needs. Aon will report back at the June Board meeting with 
more specific details. Several Board members expressed their appreciation to Mr. 
Pomeroy, CEA staff, and the Aon consulting team for their work up to this point. 

8. Year-End Financial report by Mr. Hanzel. 

Mr. Hanzel highlighted the following: a 2.2 percent increase in CEA policies; a 14 percent 
increase in risk transfer/reinsurance expenses with 52 cents of every dollar of premium being 
spent on risk transfer/reinsurance; and an increase in claim-paying capacity from $17.5 billion in 
2019 to $19.2 billion in 2020. Mr. Hanzel also reported that because of the Treasury bond 
investment market, CEA’s investment income had dropped from $126 million in 2019 to $112 
million in 2020. He also reported that financial rating agency, AM Best had affirmed the CEA’s 
“excellent” rating for financial strength. 

9. CEA Enterprise Risk Management Quarterly Report by Ms. Ackerman. 

Ms. Ackerman reported positive results regarding CEA’s Enterprise Risk Management and 
praised CEA’s compliance and insurance operations teams for their collaboration in keeping to 
a minimum CEA customer complaints to the California Department of Insurance, noting all 55 
received complaints were determined to be non-justified. 
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At this point, Chairman Ghilarducci was called away from the meeting on other business and the 
remainder of the meeting was chaired by Ms. O’Connor.   

10. Chief Catastrophe & Resiliency Officer Dr. Laurie Johnson will provide an update on
CEA’s Earthquake Response and Resiliency activities. 

Dr. Johnson began her update with a reflection on lessons learned from two major earthquakes 
that struck New Zealand and Japan less than 17 days apart, 10 years ago this month, the latter 
of which resulted in a catastrophic tsunami. Dr. Johnson, identified transferable lessons for 
California and CEA with regards to the earthquake science and impacts, recovery processes 
and governance structures, and the insurance response following both earthquakes. Board 
members appreciated Dr. Johnson’s presentation from both historical and practical 
perspectives. 

Dr. Johnson also updated the Board on CEA’s earthquake response and resiliency activities, 
noting changes in her team’s composition and CEA’s more pro-active claim management 
philosophy to provide more policy guidance and ensure claim handling consistency among the 
participating insurers. She referenced the major update underway to CEA’s earthquake 
response guidelines and the recent rollout of CEA’s first-ever online training on earthquake 
damage assessment and repair for participating insurer claims adjustors. Similar online training 
is being developed for structural engineers. CEA’s plans for 2021 include organizational 
readiness training and stress testing of claims processing systems on progressively larger 
earthquake scenarios. 

Mr. Wood asked Dr. Johnson if Board members would receive some training on their roles and 
responsibilities in CEA’s earthquake response. Dr. Johnson said she would welcome that level 
of Board member engagement. 

11. CEA’s Diversity, Inclusion, and Belonging Advisory Council (DIBAC) Co-Chairpersons
will provide an update on DIBAC’s projects and activities. 

Several members of CEA’s DIBAC leadership team reported to the Board on the many recent 
activities undertaken by DIBAC. DIBAC Co-Chairperson Lynda Foster said DIBAC’s three areas 
of focus are Employee Practices; Internship and Mentorship; and Internal Education. The 
DIBAC team also shared with the Board the recently unveiled company Statement, which has 
been posted on CEA’s website. DIBAC Co-Chairperson Jacqueline Ball explained DIBAC’s 
“Each One, Reach One” program in which CEA employees are matched with a co-worked with 
the goal of getting to know each other’s background and getting to know one another on a 
personal level. The DIBAC leaders also explained the new “Speaker Series” with Board Member 
Treasurer Ma featured as a speaker. Insurance Commissioner Ricardo Lara has agreed to 
participate in the “Speaker Series” in June. Several other speakers from diverse backgrounds 
have already made presentations to CEA employees as part of this activity. Mr. Wood 
expressed his appreciation for DIBAC’s internship program in which CEA DIBAC has partnered 
with a local community college. Said Mr. Wood, “what you are doing makes us proud to be a 
part of this organization.” 

12. CPP Portfolio Manager Sonya Berry will provide a status report on CEA Centralized
Policy Processing Program (CPP). 
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Ms. Berry reported on ongoing CPP activities, highlighted by the continuation of adding CEA 
participating insurer, Farmers Insurance, to the CPP platform. Farmers will become the largest 
participating insurer to join CPP and that milestone is expected to occur in June. Ms. Berry said 
she will also report at the June Board meeting on CPP’s action plans for the remainder of 2021. 

13. Chief Mitigation Officer Janiele Maffei and Chief Communications Officer Charlotte
Fadipe will update the Board on developments in the CEA mitigation programs (CRMP
Earthquake Brace+Bolt, and CEA Brace+Bolt) and the CEA Research Program. 

Ms. Maffei reported that a new retrofitting milestone has been reached with 14,000 retrofitting 
grants having been awarded since the inception of the retrofitting programs. She stated that in 
2021 a new priority for her team will be the launch of a pilot program to provide supplementary 
retrofitting grants for the owners of homes in low-income communities. She explained that the 
low-income grant program will rely on already applied for FEMA grant funding for the pilot 
program. 

Ms. Fadipe reported that the CEA Communications team has been working to identify 
community and neighborhood groups across the state to partner with in seeking out low-income 
homeowners to apply for the supplementary retrofitting grants. Such grants would allow 
applicants in underserved communities to retrofit their homes for little or zero out of pocket cost. 
This would help achieve our public service goals and help bring more social equity to our 
mitigation work. Ms. Fadipe said her team is focusing its attention on promoting the importance 
of retrofitting older homes in California, which generally are those homes built before 1980 and 
not on a slab foundation. Ms. Fadipe said CEA’s mantra for 2021 is “The Year of the Retrofit.” 

Conclusion 

14. Public comment on matters that do not appear on this agenda and requests by the public 
that those matters be placed on a future agenda. 

There were no requests for public comment. 

15. Adjournment 

There being no further business, Vice-Chair O’Connor adjourned the meeting at 4:56 p.m. 
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Governing Board Memorandum 

10 June 2021 

Agenda Item 3: Executive Report 

Recommended Action: No action required - information only 

Chief Executive Officer Glenn Pomeroy will present an executive report to the Board, 
which will include a report on legislative matters of interest to CEA and an update on the 
development of CEA’s new Strategic Plan. 
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Governing Board Memorandum 

10 June 2021 

Agenda Item 04: Financial Report 

Recommended Action: No action required – information only 

CEA Chief Financial Officer Tom Hanzel will present to the Board the CEA financial 

report. 
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California Earthquake Authority 
Balance Sheets 

as of April 30, 2021 and 2020 

UNAUDITED 

Assets 2021 2020 
Cash and investments: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 30,956,855 $ 63,644,028 
Restricted cash and equivalents 44,024,520 562,068,002 

Restricted investments 298,803,111 255,009,434 
Investments 7,331,946,057 6,766,209,672 

Total cash and investments 7,705,730,543 7,646,931,136 

Premiums receivable, net of allowance for 
doubtful accounts of $ 2,143,994 and $ 6,195,457 102,330,636 84,982,966 

Due from California Wildfire Fund 115,353 389,956 
Interest receivable 24,998,343 28,447,019 
Prepaid reinsurance premium 63,675,391 46,495,824 
Prepaid transformer maintenance premium 7,355,717 2,371,441 
Equipment, net 87,931 133,913 
Due from FEMA 1,981,572 2,475,518 
Other assets 2,654,847 792,911 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,595,417 3,170,536 

Total assets $ 7,912,525,750 $ 7,816,191,220 

Liabilities and Net Positions 
Unearned premiums $ 459,335,353 $ 414,775,584 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 7,912,442 10,275,256 
Due to CRMP 2,018,431 2,475,518 
Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves 800,000 2,132,819 
Loan Payable - 1,091,000 
Securities payable 13,464,523 14,270,277 
Revenue bond payable 250,000,000 400,000,000 
Revenue bond interest payable 1,139,166 626,849 
Deferred inflows of resources 370,083 386,030 
Net Pension Liability 11,823,481 9,621,334 

Total liabilities 746,863,479 855,654,667 

Net position: 
Restricted, expendable 88,086,125 20,283,265 
Unrestricted, participating insurer contributed capital 790,656,796 790,656,796 
Unrestricted, State of California contributed capital 320,593,714 299,935,967 
Unrestricted, all other remaining 5,966,325,636 5,849,660,525 

Total net position 7,165,662,271 6,960,536,553 

Total liabilities and net position $ 7,912,525,750 $ 7,816,191,220 
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California Earthquake Authority 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

for the Four Months Ended April 30, 2021 and 2020 

UNAUDITED 

2021 2020 
Underwriting income: 

Premiums written $ 294,557,699 $ 261,133,806 
Less premiums ceded - reinsurance (163,552,285) (136,397,891) 

Net premiums written 131,005,414 124,735,915 

Change in unearned premiums (10,838,446) 8,817,495 

Net premiums earned 120,166,968 133,553,410 

Expenses: 
Losses and loss adjustment expenses (36,094) (1,569,297) 
Participating Insurer commissions 29,460,205 26,117,660 
Participating Insurer operating costs 9,448,609 8,374,451 
Reinsurance broker commissions 933,333 933,333 
Pro forma premium taxes equivalent 6,925,781 6,140,506 
Other underwriting expenses 13,516,364 16,333,562 

Total expenses 60,248,198 56,330,215 

Underwriting profit 59,918,770 77,223,195 

Investment income 30,304,831 40,455,145 
Unrealized Gain/(Loss) (55,413,209) 151,613,962 
Other income 165,917 169,749 
Grant revenue 3,929,970 4,616,536 
Grant expenses (3,929,970) (4,616,536) 
Financing expenses, net (1,122,429) (1,328,492) 
Earthquake Loss Mitigation Fund expenses (612,664) (4,648,549) 
State of California premium tax contribution equivalent 6,925,781 6,140,506 

Total non-operating income and expenses (19,751,773) 192,402,321 

Increase in net position 40,166,997 269,625,516 

Net position, beginning of year 7,125,495,274 6,690,911,037 
Net position, end of year to date $ 7,165,662,271 $ 6,960,536,553 
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CALIFORNIA EARTHQUAKE AUTHORITY 
Insurance Services 

Budgeted and Actual Expenditures 
As of April 30, 2021 

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) 
(d=a+b+c) (f=d-e) (g=e/d) 

Approved 2021 Budget after Augmented & Adjusted Percentage used of 
2021 Budget  Augmentations Actual Approved Budget (d) vs.  Augmented & Adjusted 

1/1/2021 Adjustments Augmentations and Adjustments Expenditures Actual Expenditures (e)  2021 Budget 

Human Resources:

 Compensation and Benefits 
$ 28,902,881 $ - $ 28,902,881 $ 9,087,741 $ 19,815,140 31.4%

 Travel 
300,000 - 300,000 406 299,594 0.1%

 Other 
698,235 - 698,235 137,561 560,674 19.7% 

Board Meeting 25,000 - 25,000 1,678 23,323 6.7% 
Administration & Office 563,933 - 563,933 65,413 498,520 11.6% 
EDP Hardware 335,000 - 335,000 35,279 299,722 10.5% 
EDP Software 4,345,123 - 4,345,123 1,438,179 2,906,943 33.1% 
Telecommunications 450,698 - 450,698 126,213 324,485 28.0% 
Rent/Lease 1,612,680 - 1,612,680 477,838 1,134,842 29.6% 
Compliance 30,000 - 30,000 - 30,000 0.0% 
Government Affairs 246,000 - 246,000 80,000 166,000 32.5% 
Insurance 538,000 - 538,000 169,819 368,181 31.6% 
Internal Audit 30,000 - 30,000 - 30,000 0.0% 
Other 256,600 - 256,600 250,000 6,600 97.4% 
Regulatory Expenses 
California Wildfire Fund Allocation2 

10,000 
(1,697,220) 

-
-

10,000 
(1,697,220) 

-
(356,873) 

10,000 
(1,340,347) 

0.0% 
21.0% 

Total Statutory Expenditures1 $ 36,646,930 $ - $ - $ 36,646,930 $ 11,513,254 $ 25,133,676 31.4% 

Audit Services 134,000 - 134,000 80,050 53,950 59.7% 
Capital Market 4,006,422 - 4,006,422 1,338,715 2,667,707 33.4% 
Claims 126,000 - 126,000 27,061 98,939 21.5% 
Grants 500,000 - 500,000 138,763 361,237 27.8% 
Investment Services 3,661,392 - 3,661,392 1,218,724 2,442,668 33.3% 
Legal Services 1,116,000 - 1,116,000 160,406 955,594 14.4% 
Loss-Modeling 1,118,625 - 1,118,625 371,242 747,383 33.2% 
Marketing Services 2,554,308 - 2,554,308 90,934 2,463,373 3.6% 
Producer Compensation 86,600,000 - 86,600,000 29,460,205 57,139,795 34.0% 
Participating Insurer Operating Costs 36,589,727 - 36,589,727 10,861,602 25,728,125 29.7% 
Engineering Related Research 20,000 - 20,000 - 20,000 0.0% 
Risk Transfer 439,948,800 - 439,948,800 164,485,619 275,463,181 37.4% 

Total Non-Statutory Expenditures $ 576,375,274 $ - $ - $ 576,375,274 $ 208,233,321 $ 368,141,953 36.1% 

Total Budget Expenditures $ 613,022,204 $ - $ - $ 613,022,204 $ 219,746,574 $ 393,275,629 35.8% 

1 Total 2021 Statutory Expenditures of $11.51 million were 3.9% of written premium. This is in compliance with the maximum permitted ratio of 6.0%. 
2 Reimbursement to CEA from the California Wildfire Fund for incurred expenses. 
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CALIFORNIA EARTHQUAKE AUTHORITY 
Mitigation 

Budgeted Expenditures and Actual Expenditures 
As of April 30, 2021 

(a) (b) (c) (d) 
(d=a+b+c) 

(e) (f) 
(f=d-e) 

(g) 
(g=e/d) 

Approved 
2021 Budget

1/1/2021 Adjustments Augmentations 

2021 Budget after 

Augmentations 
and Adjustments 

Actual 
Expenditures 

Augmented & Adjusted 
Approved Budget (d) vs.
Actual Expenditures (e) 

Percentage used of 

Augmented & Adjusted 
2021 Budget 

Human Resources:

 Compensation and Benefits 

Travel 
Othe

r 
Administration & Office 
Information Technology 
Telecommunications 
Rent/Lease 

$ 1,549,281 
17,500 

6,465 
11,924 

840 
35,500 

120,500 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ - $ 1,549,281 $ 565,149 
- 17,500 -
- 6,465 2,300 
- 11,924 284 
- 840 350 
- 35,500 4,123 
- 120,500 40,459 

$ 984,132 
17,500 

4,165 
11,641 

490 
31,377 
80,040 

36.5%
0.0%

35.6% 
2.4% 

41.7% 
11.6% 
33.6% 

Total Operating Expenditures $ 1,742,010 $ - $ - $ 1,742,010 $ 612,665 $ 1,129,345 35.2% 

CRMP Contribution 
Investment Services 

3,000,000 
9,600 

-
-

-
-

3,000,000 
9,600 

-
2,032 

3,000,000 
7,568 

-

0.0% 
21.2% 

Total Other Expenditures $ 3,009,600 $ - $ - $ 3,009,600 $ 2,032 $ 3,007,568 0.1% 

Total Expenditures $ 4,751,610 $ - $ - $ 4,751,610 $ 614,697 $ 4,136,913 12.9% 
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California Earthquake Authority 
Investment Distribution at Market Value as of April 30, 2021 

Market Value $7,637,836,847 
Primary and Liquidity Funds 81.0% 
Mitigation Fund 0.1% 
Claim(s) Paying Funds 18.9% 
Total: 100.0% 

Mitigation 
Fund 0.1% 

Claim(s) Paying 
Funds 18.9% 

 

     
 

   

     

                 

     

 

   

Primary and Liquidity 
Funds 81.0% 
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California Earthquake Authority 
Available Capital Report 
as of April 30, 2021 

Cash & Investments (includes capital contributions and premiums) $ 7,705,730,543 

Earthquake Loss Mitigation Fund cash and investments $ (7,080,308) 

Interest & Securities Receivable $ 24,998,343 

Premium Receivable $ 102,330,636 

Other Assets + California Wildfire Fund (AR) + FEMA (AR) $ 4,751,772 

Revenue Bonds and Restricted Receivables $ (1,444,221,364) 

Debt Service (Interest, Principal & Debt Service (Min. Bal.)) $ (36,938,940) 

Unearned Premium Collected $ (314,051,417) 

Accounts and Securities Payable, and Accrued Expenses $ (23,395,396) 

Loss Reserves $ (800,000) 

GASB 68 Pension Plan $ (8,598,147) 

CEA Available Capital $ 6,002,725,722 
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A.M. Best Rating 'A‐' since 2002
Outlook Stable

$76K

California Earthquake Authority 
Claim‐Paying Capacity 
as of April 30, 2021 

Post Earthquake Industry Assessment 
("2nd IAL") 

Policyholders Surcharge 

Capital from Revenue Bonds 

Risk‐Transfer 

CEA Available Capital 

$1.7B 

$1.0B 

$1.4B 

$9.5B 

$6.0B 

Total Capacity $19.6B 
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California Earthquake Authority 
Current Risk‐Transfer Program Summary 

as of April 30, 2021 

Traditional Reinsurance Contracts Contract Period Reinsurance Limit 

2021 January Program Contract 1 January 1, 2021 ‐ December 31, 2021 1,625,258,000 

2021 January Program Contract 2 January 1, 2021 ‐ December 31, 2021 100,000,000 

2021 January Program Contract 3 (Layer 1) January 1, 2021 ‐ December 31, 2021 7,500,000 

2021 January Program Contract 3 (Layer 2) January 1, 2021 ‐ December 31, 2021 92,500,000 

2021 January Program Contract 3 (Layer 3) January 1, 2021 ‐ December 31, 2021 15,000,000 

2020‐2021 January Program Contract 1 January 1, 2020 ‐ December 31, 2021 484,725,000 

2020‐2021 January Program Contract 2 January 1, 2020 ‐ December 31, 2021 32,975,000 

2020‐2021 January Program Contract 3 January 1, 2020 ‐ December 31, 2021 55,000,000 

2020‐2021 January Program Contract 5 January 1, 2020 ‐ December 31, 2021 90,000,000 

2020‐2022 January Program Contract 2 January 1, 2020 ‐March 31, 2022 100,000,000 

2020‐2022 January Program Contract 3 January 1, 2020 ‐March 31, 2022 120,000,000 

2020‐2022 January Program Contract 4 January 1, 2020 ‐March 31, 2022 80,000,000 

2021‐2022 January Program Contract 1 January 1, 2021 ‐ December 31, 2021 165,900,000 

2021‐2022 January Program Contract 2 January 1, 2021 ‐ December 31, 2021 135,000,000 

2021‐2022 January Program Contract 3 January 1, 2021 ‐ December 31, 2021 110,000,000 

2021‐2022 January Program (15‐Month) Contract 1 January 1, 2021 ‐March 31, 2022 129,000,000 

2021‐2022 April Program Contract 1 April 1, 2021 ‐March 31, 2022 668,875,000 

2021‐2022 April Program Contract 2 April 1, 2021 ‐March 31, 2022 250,000,000 

2020‐2022 April Program (18‐Month) Contract 1 October 1, 2020 ‐March 31, 2022 41,750,000 

2020‐2022 April Program Contract 1 April 1, 2020 ‐March 31, 2022 23,500,000 

2020‐2025 August Program Contract 1 August 1, 2020 ‐ July 31, 2025 220,000,000 

2019‐2022 August Program Contract 2 August 1, 2019 ‐ July 31, 2022 267,000,000 

2020‐2023 August Program Contract 1 August 1, 2020 ‐ July 31, 2023 250,000,000 

2020‐2021 October Program Contract 1 October 1, 2020 ‐ September 30, 2021 320,300,280 

2020‐2022 October Program Contract 1 October 1, 2020 ‐ September 30, 2022 31,200,000 

2020‐2022 October Program Contract 2 October 1, 2020 ‐ September 30, 2022 150,000,000 

2019‐2021 October Program Contract 1 October 1, 2019 ‐ September 30, 2021 12,999,960 

2019‐2021 October Program Contract 2 October 1, 2019 ‐ September 30, 2021 5,000,000 

2019‐2020 December Program Contract 1 December 1, 2020 ‐ November 30, 2021 60,000,000 

2019‐2020 December Program Contract 2 December 1, 2020 ‐ November 30, 2021 80,000,000 

2020‐2021 January Program Contract 4 January 1, 2020 ‐ December 31, 2021 100,000,000 

2020‐2022 January Program Contract 1 January 1, 2020 ‐ December 31, 2022 50,000,000 

2020‐2022 January Program Contract 5 January 1, 2020 ‐ December 31, 2022 500,000,000 

2020‐2021 June Program Contract 1 June 22, 2020 ‐ June 21, 2021 125,000,000 

2020‐2022 June Program Contract 1 June 1, 2020 ‐May 31, 2022 39,999,990 

2020‐2021 August Program Contract 1 August 1, 2020 ‐ July 31, 2021 93,750,000 

2019‐2021 December Program Contract 1 December 1, 2019 ‐ November 30, 2021 125,000,000 

2019‐2021 December Program Contract 2 December 1, 2019 ‐ November 30, 2021 50,000,000 

2018‐2021 August Program Contract 1 August 1, 2018 ‐ July 31, 2021 93,750,000 

2020‐2021 August Program Contract 1 August 1, 2020 ‐ July 31, 2021 118,750,000 

2019‐2022 August Program Contract 1 August 1, 2019 ‐ July 31, 2022 93,750,000 

2019‐2021 July Program Contract 1 July 1, 2019 ‐ June 30, 2021 70,000,000 

Total Traditional Reinsurance 7,183,483,230 

2018‐2021 Transformer Reinsurance Contract 1 ‐ Class D September 14, 2018 ‐ September 13, 2021 250,000,000 

2019‐2022 Transformer Reinsurance Contract 1 ‐ Class C December 1, 2019 ‐ November 30, 2022 400,000,000 

2020‐2022 Transformer Reinsurance Contract 1 May 29, 2020 ‐May 28, 2022 150,000,000 

2020‐2022 Transformer Reinsurance Contract 2 May 29, 2020 ‐May 28, 2022 215,000,000 

2020‐2023 Transformer Reinsurance Contract 1 May 17, 2020 ‐May 16, 2023 135,000,000 

2020‐2023 Transformer Reinsurance Contract 2 May 17, 2020 ‐May 16, 2023 200,000,000 

2020‐2023 Transformer Reinsurance Contract 3 ‐ Class D October 17, 2020 ‐ November 30, 2023 350,000,000 

2020‐2023 Transformer Reinsurance Contract 4 ‐ Class AA October 17, 2020 ‐ November 30, 2023 425,000,000 

2021‐2024 Transformer Reinsurance Contract 1 ‐ Class F March 5, 2021 ‐ November 30, 2024 215,000,000 

Total Transformer Reinsurance 2,340,000,000 

Total Risk‐Transfer Program $ 9,523,483,230 
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California Earthquake Authority 
Schedule of Outstanding Debt 

DEBT‐SERVICE SCHEDULE 

The table below sets forth the annual‐debt‐service requirements for the Series 2020B 

Principal Interest Debt Service Date 
Annual 

Debt Service  

               
                       

 

 

   

       

 

                       

 

1-Jul-2021 $50,000,000 $1,708,750 $51,708,750 $102,117,908 
1-Jan-2022 $0 $1,402,000 $1,402,000 
1-Jul-2022 $100,000,000 $1,402,000 $101,402,000 $102,804,000 
1-Jan-2023 $0 $738,500 $738,500 
1-Jul-2023 $100,000,000 $738,500 $100,738,500 $101,477,000 
Total: $250,000,000 $5,989,750 $255,989,750 $306,398,908 

Fitch's rating of 'A' Outlook Stable reaffirmed November 2020. 
Kroll Bond Rating Agency (KBRA) rating of 'AA‐' Outlook Stable affirmed November 2020. 
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Governing Board Memorandum 

June 10, 2021 

Agenda Item 5: CEA Investment Policy Changes 

Recommended Action: Approve Resolution to Modify CEA Investment Policies 

Background 

Pursuant to CEA’s statute (Ins. Code § 10089.6(b)(1)), the investment of CEA funds is limited to 
those securities eligible under Section 16430 of the Government Code. The CEA has adopted 
investment policies that specify additional guidelines and define minimum criteria for "prime" 
quality securities and the maturity limits and maximum values each security type can represent 
within the investment portfolio. Currently, the CEA’s investment guidelines are more restrictive 
than investments otherwise permitted under Section16430. 

Since its inception, the CEA’s available capital has grown significantly – the CEA’s available 
capital in 1997, shortly after its inception, was $600 million. Available capital is now closer to 
$6.0 billion. As the need and timing for liquidity has changed due to the increase in its available 
capital, the CEA evaluated and increased its duration target in December 2015 from 1.75 years 
to 3.00 years. That change allowed the CEA to increase its investment earnings. Due to 
maximum maturity limits of five years for the Primary Fund and Claims-Paying Fund, the CEA 
has been unable to maximize its potential duration within the existing guidelines and has been 
unable to diversify its portfolio with increased credit exposure due to investment policy 
restrictions on composition and permissible securities that are permitted under Section 16430. 

CEA’s independent financial advisor, Raymond James, Inc., has reviewed the investment 
portfolio for opportunities to take advantage of market conditions while managing credit 
exposure, expanding diversification, in order to earn additional income.  Raymond James has 
identified two primary areas of opportunity: an increase in duration and diversification by 
increasing agency and corporate investment exposure while adhering to the underlying 
guidelines of Section 16430. 

Analysis: 
In the opinion of CEA’s financial staff and its financial advisor, the CEA is an excellent position 
to modify its investment policy to continue to maintain a conservative approach with minimal 
risk while diversifying the composition and credit profile of the portfolios and increase duration 
to better match the CEA’s capital structure. 
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An increase in duration will increase total investment income and although mark-to-market risk 
would rise if interest rates increase, portfolio valuation as affected by mark-to-market 
accounting principles are not a central concern of the CEA, given that the CEA holds its 
investments to maturity. The potential mark-to-market risk for every 25 basis point increase is 
approximately $32 million for the Primary Fund based on a $5.6 billion market value and 
approximately $5.7 million for the Claims-Paying Fund based on a $1.45 billion market value. 
By increasing corporate exposure, the CEA would take on an increase in credit risk, which is 
partially mitigated by the proposed minimum ratings criteria of "A-" or "A3" for long-term 
securities or "P-1", "A-1", "F-1+" for short-term securities. The average corporate default rates 
from Moody’s for “A2” and “A3” rated securities are 0.00% and 0.04%, respectively, over a 10-
year period. The default risk as a result of the 2007 financial crisis was 0.23% and 0.69% 
for “A2” and “A3” rated securities for Moody’s, respectively, in 2008 and 2009.  The 
default risk is minimal but there may be liquidity risk from time to time, which is further 
mitigated with composition limitations based on rating category. 
The proposed investment policy changes are summarized below: 

Mitigation Fund 

• Maintain maximum maturity at 91 days 

• Modifying Agency exposure by including other entities such as International Bank for 
Reconstruction and Development and the International Finance Corporation but 
reducing maximum exposure from 50% to 25% 

Liquidity Fund 

• Maintain duration at 181 days but increase maximum maturity limit to 1 year 

• Maintain corporate exposure (including CP, CDs, and BAs) up to a maximum of 50% 

• Modifying Agency exposure by including other entities such as International Bank for 
Reconstruction and Development and the International Finance Corporation but 
reducing maximum exposure from 50% to 25% 

• Treasury composition should be at least 50% 

Primary Fund 

• Increase duration from three years to five years with a maximum maturity limit of 10 
years with a maximum of 20% of corporate securities maturing between 8-10 years 

• Increase corporate exposure (including CP, CDs, and BAs) up to a maximum of 50% 

• Include Agency (including other entities such as International Bank for Reconstruction 
and Development, Tennessee Valley Authority, and Export-Import Bank of the United 
States) exposure up to a maximum of 25% 
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• Treasury composition should be at least 50% 

Claims-Paying Fund 

• Increase duration from three years to six years with a maximum maturity limit of 10 years 
with a maximum of 20% of corporate securities maturing between 8-10 years 

• Increase corporate exposure (including CP, CDs, and BAs) up to a maximum of 50% 

• Modifying Agency exposure by including other entities such as International Bank for 
Reconstruction and Development and the International Finance Corporation but 
reducing maximum exposure from 50% to 25% 

• Treasury composition should be at least 40% 

Recommendations: 

The proposed investment policy changes for the Liquidity, Primary and Claims-Paying 
Funds will allow the CEA to continue to maintain a conservative approach with minimal risk 
while diversifying the composition and credit profile of the portfolios. The proposed 
investment policy changes will increase duration and increase credit exposure in order to 
increase investment returns while preserving principal and liquidity. The attachments are 
as follows: 

• Attachment A is the current investment policy reformatted to run the redline 
comparison against the proposed policy 

• Attachment B is the proposed investment policy redlined against the reformatted 
current policy 

• Attachment C is the clean proposed investment policy 

• Attachment D is the summary table of Statute 16430, the current investment policy, 
and the proposed investment policy 

Staff recommends, consistent with the recommendation of the CEA’s independent financial 
advisor, that the Governing Board approve amending the CEA’s Investment Policies and 
Guidelines, and adopt the Investment Policies and Guidelines as set forth in Attachment C. 
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       Attachment A – Current Investment Policy Reformatted for Redline 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Investment Policies 

Adopted: 09/12/18 (Format Change Only) 
Revised: 12/16/15 
Revised: 08/01/02 
Revised: 06/20/02 
Revised: 10/28/99 
Revised: 05/28/98 
Revised: 10/09/97 
Revised: 11/01/96 
Adopted: 10/07/96 

DEFINITIONS 

“Applicable Laws and Regulations” or “Legal Restrictions” means California Insurance Code 
section 10089.6, subdivision (b)(1), California Government Code section 16430, and California 
Code of Regulations, Title 10, section 2697.4, as well as any amendments or successor 
provisions to those sections.  

“Business Day” or “Business Days” means a day or days other than Saturdays, Sundays, or state 
holidays. 

“CEA Portfolio” or “Portfolio” means the entirety of all the individual Funds of the California 
Earthquake Authority Fund collectively, i.e., the Primary Fund, the Liquidity Fund, the Claim-
Paying Fund, the Reinsurance Fund, and the Mitigation Fund. 

“Daily” refers to Business Days. 

“Financial Advisor” means a firm contracted by the CEA to provide analysis for the CEA 
concerning debt issuance and that may, if contracted to do so, provide services related to 
oversight of the CEA’s Investment Managers. 

“Fund” means a fund within the California Earthquake Authority Fund such as, but not by way 
of limitation, the CEA’s Primary Fund, Liquidity Fund, Claim-Paying Fund, Claims-Paying 
Fund, Reinsurance Fund, and Earthquake Loss Mitigation Fund. 

“Investment Manager” means a firm contracted by the CEA to invest monies on its behalf, in 
accordance with all Applicable Laws and Regulations and the CEA’s Investment Policies. 
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“Investment” refers to a Security purchased for, and owned by, the CEA. 

“Modified Duration” is the average length of time to receive the present value of bond cash 
flows. 

A “Security” is a financial instrument before it is purchased for, or owned by, the CEA. 

PHILOSOPHY 

The California Earthquake Authority (CEA) is an insurance provider whose primary business is to 
pay policyholder claims in a timely manner while maintaining quality customer service and a 
sound financial posture. In furtherance of those goals, the CEA should have Investment Policies 
that provide for the following prioritized goals: 

1) Safety and preservation of principal; 
2) Liquidity, so that operating expenses and claims can be paid in a timely manner; and 
3) Competitive returns (yield). 

As a public instrumentality, created by act of the California state government, the CEA discloses 
much of its operations and investment activity. The integrity of the CEA’s investment activities 
should be above that of private sector organizations conducting comparable business 
operations. Therefore, the CEA has the social and ethical obligation to require that Investments 
made on its behalf and held in its accounts be in corporations and entities that meet a high 
standard of conduct in their operations. Still, the investment of CEA assets should 
appropriately reflect sound judgment that each Investment will produce an attractive rate of 
return, within the bounds of all Applicable Laws and Regulations and these Investment Policies. 

PRINCIPLES 

After the primary goals of safety and preservation of principal and attention to appropriate 
liquidity requirements are met, rate of return must be considered. Safe and prudent 
investment management will be the primary and underlying criterion for the selection of 
Securities and retention and disposition of Investments. 

Non-economic factors will supplement profit factors in making investment decisions.  Non-
economic factors are defined as those considerations not directly related to providing for the 
safety of principal, maintaining adequate liquidity, and maximizing income, but which seek to 
ensure that in making or holding its Investments, the CEA does not, either through action or 
inaction, promote, condone, or facilitate social or environmental injury.  

Social or environmental injury may be said to exist when the activities of a corporation serve to 
undermine basic human rights and dignities, or when the CEA perceives that the practices of a 
corporation result in undesirable side effects for others and that those side effects are 
substantial in nature. Side effects that may be deemed undesirable and substantial include, but 
are not limited to, the following: 
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A. Subject to current federal, state, and local law, any practice that is known to endanger, 
directly or indirectly, human health or the environment: 

B. Practices that result in the suppression of human rights, including: 

1) The sale of weapons and technology to governments known to engage in the 
systematic suppression of human rights; and 

2) The sale of goods to, or the purchase of goods from, countries known to employ 
forced labor. 

C. Practices that endanger human health, including: 

1) The sale and distribution of known contaminated products; 
2) The sale and distribution of dangerous drugs; and 
3) The sale of goods to, or the purchase of goods from, companies known to 

disregard worker safety. 

In addition, it is the CEA’s policy not to invest in expatriate companies.  Expatriate companies 
are defined as U.S. corporations that relocate their “principal office,” for tax purposes only, to 
offshore tax havens. 

Investments shall not be selected or rejected based solely on non-economic factors. In 
general, non-economic factors, to the extent known after reasonable investigation, should be 
considered after all relevant financial criteria and Legal Restrictions have been satisfied. 

The CEA Portfolio and each of the Funds within the Portfolio will be managed to ensure the 
safety of the Portfolio and the Funds by investing in high-quality fixed-income Securities with 
limited durations. When permitted by these Investment Policies, investments shall be made in 
different investment types in order to minimize the impact any one industry or investment class 
can have on a Fund, or portion of a Fund, managed by a CEA Investment Manager. Investments 
shall also be spread over multiple credits and issuers within an investment class (when these 
Investment Policies permit multiple credits and issuers within a Fund), thereby minimizing the 
credit exposure of the CEA Portfolio or any Fund within the Portfolio to any single firm or 
institution.  

Banker’s acceptances, certificates of deposit, and bank notes must be purchased directly from 
the issuer, as long as these Investments meet the investment criteria outlined in the 
appropriate sections of these Investment Policies and as long as they comply with all Applicable 
Laws and Regulations. 

PRUDENT INVESTOR STANDARD 

In addition to complying with these Investment Policies and all Applicable Laws and 
Regulations, all CEA Investments and evaluation of such Investments shall be made with regard 
to the “prudent investor” standard of care, that is, with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence 
under the circumstances then prevailing, that persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence 
exercise in the professional management of their business affairs, not for speculation, but for 
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investment, considering the probable safety of their capital, including liquidity of the 
Investment, as well as the probable income to be derived. 

ETHICS, AVOIDANCE OF CONFLICT OF INTERESTS, AND COMPLIANCE WITH INVESTMENT 
ADVISERS ACT OF 1940 

No officer or employee of the CEA, or of any firm contracted with the CEA involved in the 
investment of CEA funds, shall engage in any personal or business activity that may conflict with 
proper execution of the CEA’s investment program or that may impair his or her ability to make 
impartial investment decisions for the CEA. Any personal investments in entities that do 
business with the CEA, either by contract or where the CEA has Investments with that entity, 
shall be disclosed as required in regulations of the Fair Political Practice Commission (using its 
Form 700, which shall be filed according to law) and the CEA’s Conflict of Interest Code. 

The CEA’s Financial Advisor and Investment Managers shall ensure that they are registered 
with, and comply with the rules, advice, rulings, and regulations of, the Securities and Exchange 
Commission as an investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 that is 
licensed to choose investments for clients. The CEA’s Financial Advisor and Investment 
Managers shall procure and fully and currently maintain the permits and licenses, if any, 
necessary to advise the CEA on investments and to make investments on the CEA’s behalf. 

PERMISSIBLE INVESTMENTS 

In accordance with California Insurance Code section 10089.6, subdivision (b), paragraph (1), 
Investments made by the CEA or on behalf of the CEA shall be made in compliance with 
California Government Code section 16430, as section 16430 is in effect at the time the 
Investment is made. California Government Code section 16430 may be amended from time to 
time, and the CEA’s Financial Advisor and Investment Managers shall be responsible for being 
aware and informed of any amendments to section 16430 and to all Applicable Laws and 
Regulations. 

COMPLIANCE 

These Investment Policies, and all Applicable Laws and Regulations, shall be observed by the 
CEA’s Independent Financial Advisor and acted on by all Investment Managers in the course of 
their administering CEA Funds. All Investment Policies are subject to continual monitoring and 
review by the CEA’s Chief Financial Officer (the “CFO”). 

A trade executed for the CEA’s Portfolio shall be deemed to be in compliance with these 
Investment Policies if, as of the trade date, the trade met both (A) the requirements of these 
Investment Policies and (B) all Applicable Laws and Regulations. Notwithstanding, however, the 
deemed trade-day compliance of any individual trade, if at the close of any day any Fund 
concentration limit stated in these Investment Policies is exceeded, the Investment Manager 
must, within one business day, consult with the CEA CFO (or his or her designee) in order that 
the CEA, in its sole discretion, may provide a directive to correct the exceedance of the 
concentration limit; if the CEA CFO provides no such directive, the Investment Manager must 
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bring the exceeded concentration limit back into compliance with the Investment Policies as 
soon as reasonably possible. 

The CEA will perform Daily quality-assurance checks of the Portfolio and of each Fund (or 
portion of a Fund in the case where an Investment Manager is managing a defined portion of a 
Fund) to ensure compliance with these Investment Policies and with all Applicable Laws and 
Regulations. If the CEA becomes aware of any noncompliance with any Investment Policy, the 
CEA will contact the Investment Manager immediately to discuss the situation so that the CEA 
may determine the appropriate actions to be taken by the Investment Manager and CEA to 
bring the Fund into compliance; if an Investment Manager or the Financial Advisor becomes 
aware of any noncompliance with any Investment Policy, it shall contact the CEA immediately 
to discuss the situation so that the CEA may determine the appropriate actions to be taken by 
the Investment Manager and CEA to bring the Fund into compliance. 

The performance by CEA of a Daily quality-assurance check does not relieve any CEA 
Investment Manager of its respective independent duties to ensure that all Investments made 
and held for the CEA comply with these Investment Policies and all Applicable Laws and 
Regulations. CEA’s failure to discover, or failure to report the discovery to the CEA’s Financial 
Advisor or Investment Managers (or any of them), any noncompliance, does not constitute (A) 
CEA’s acceptance or ratification of that noncompliance or (B) any waiver by CEA of its right to 
require compliance by Investment Managers with these Investment Policies and all Applicable 
Laws and Regulations. 

THE CEA PORTFOLIO 

For the purposes of these Investment Policies, the “CEA Portfolio” consists of the following 
Funds: 

• Liquidity Fund 
o This fund consists of one custody account, which provides funds used for CEA’s 

operational cash-flow. 

• Primary Fund 
o This fund consists of a number of custody accounts, which primarily provide 

funds for paying CEA claims and claim expenses. 

• Claim-Paying Fund 
o This fund consists of a number of custody accounts, which receive the proceeds 

of CEA’s debt issuances. 

• Reinsurance Fund 
o This fund consists of one custody account, which receives reinsurance 

recoverables collected after earthquake events. 

• Mitigation Fund 
o This fund consists of a number of custody accounts, which fund mitigation-

related activities. 

MINIMUM RATING REQUIREMENTS 
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Short-term debt is defined as any debt coming due within one year or less when acquired by 
the CEA. The rating of short-term debt is acceptable under these Policies if, when issued and at 
date of CEA acquisition, it has a long-term debt rating of at least “A” by Standard & Poor’s 
Corporations, “A2” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. or “A” by Fitch, or a short-term rating of 
A-1 by Standard & Poor’s Corporations, P-1 by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or F-1+ by Fitch 
Ratings 

Long-term debt is defined as any debt coming due in more than one year as of the date 
acquired by the CEA. The rating of long-term debt is acceptable under these Policies if, when 
issued and at the date of CEA acquisition, it bears a long-term debt rating of at least “A” by 
Standard & Poor’s Corporations, “A2” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or “A” by Fitch 
Ratings. 

The minimum rating requirement for each Security is further defined within the Permissible 
Investments section, above, and in the Fund Permitted Investments section, below. 

If any Investment held in any CEA Fund is downgraded below the credit quality required by the 
Applicable Laws and Regulations, or below the credit quality required by these Investment 
Policies, the CEA, in consultation with its Financial Advisor, will determine whether to retain the 
Investment or to divest CEA of the Investment. Evaluation of divestiture of Investments will be 
made on a case-by-case basis. 

MATURITY & DURATION 

The Investments made in the CEA Portfolio, consisting of all CEA Funds, shall have a combined 
maximum Modified Duration of no greater than 3.0 years. To minimize the risk of portfolio 
market value decline due to a change in market conditions, each Investment Manager 
managing Investments with maturity dates greater than 365 days shall spread the maturities of 
those Investments to avoid having 10% or more of the market value of the Investment 
Manager’s Fund of Investments maturing on a single date. 

The “maximum maturity” requirement listed in the charts in the Fund Permitted Investments 
section below is defined as the number of days from trade date to maturity date, including the 
trade date but excluding the maturity date. An Investment with a maximum maturity of 181 
days means the Investment must mature in 180 days or less. 

DIVERSIFICATION 

Diversification is one of the fundamental principles of investing. Properly exercised, it allows for 
risks to be minimized and returns maximized within a given investment framework.  The CEA 
and its Financial Advisor and Investment Managers shall seek prudent amounts of 
diversification at all levels of its investment-management process.  This includes diversification 
both among and within allowable asset classes, as well as diversification of Investment 
Managers. The Investment Policies provide guidance on diversification, including allowable 
limits for various asset classes, industry sectors, issuers, and investment types. Consistent with 
the Investment Policies, the CEA and its Financial Advisor and Investment Managers shall 
adhere to prudent practices of diversification to safeguard the assets under their management. 
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CUSTODY 

All CEA Investments shall be secured or held by a custody bank. CEA will obtain a custody bank 
through a competitive procurement process.  

UNINVESTED CASH 

Each Investment Manager shall seek to minimize the amount of cash remaining at the end of a 
Business Day that is not invested in a manner consistent with these Investment Policies. 

In addition to the requirements in the charts above, the following are further requirements that 
the CEA’s Investment Managers must follow: 

COMMERCIAL PAPER 

Consistent with California Insurance Code section 10089.6, subdivision (b), and California 
Government Code section 16430, subdivision (f), eligible commercial paper for the CEA’s 
Liquidity, Claim-Paying, Claims-Paying, and Mitigation Funds is limited to commercial paper of 
issuers expressly approved by the State of California’s Pooled Money Investment Board 
(“PMIB”) and designated by PMIB an “Active Issuer.” The CEA will use reasonable efforts to 
continue to provide updated PMIB-approval lists, as updates are made available by the PMIB 
and the California State Treasurer’s Office (“STO”) on its website, currently at 
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/investments/cp.pdf, to all CEA Investment Managers 
responsible for managing commercial-paper assets in any CEA Fund. The CEA’s Investment 
Managers, however, have separate, independent responsibility for ensuring that, in any Fund or 
Funds they manage or oversee, any Investments purchased on the CEA’s behalf comply with 
this requirement, with all other requirements of any of the Applicable Laws and Regulations, 
and with these Investment Policies. 

NEGATIVE YIELDS 

The Investment Managers are encouraged to hold cash until an allowable Security with a positive 
yield becomes available. The Investment Managers must notify CEA when yields are negative. 

MINIMUM TRADE RETURN 

Subject to guidance from the CEA, Investment Managers should not execute a trade if the 
expected return is less than the cost of executing the trade. If any Investment Manager believes 
that circumstances warrant making such a trade, it must contact the office of the CEA’s Chief 
Financial Officer to discuss. 

INVESTMENT GOALS 

Consistent with the CEA’s published Investment Philosophy, and in order of priority, the CEA’s 
investment goals are: 
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1) Portfolio Safety/Diversification 
Where allowed by the Investment Policies, the Portfolio shall contain a sufficient 
number and diversity of marketable Investments so that a reasonable portion of 
the Portfolio can be readily converted to cash at a price closely approximating 
amortized cost. 

2) Liquidity 
The Portfolio shall be managed to ensure that the CEA’s usual cash needs can be 
met; if unforeseen cash needs arise, CEA will work with individual Managers to 
plan to meet liquidity requirements. 

3) Rate of Return 
Investments shall be made in such a way as to realize the maximum return 
consistent with the principles of prudence expressed in CEA’s Investment 
Philosophy and these Guidelines. 

Investments in the Portfolio may be sold to: 

• Provide liquidity, 

• Address deterioration in the credit quality of an issuer, or 

• Purchase an Investment that better meets the current needs of the Portfolio, after 
notification to and consultation with the CEA. 

REPORTING 

Each Investment Manager shall report to the CEA, via email to investreports@calquake.com, by 
9:00 a.m. Pacific Time each Business Day, the previous day’s holdings in each Fund, or portion 
of a Fund, under its management. 

For each Investment it makes, the Investment Manager shall transmit to the CEA, via email to 
investreports@calquake.com sent by 9:00 a.m. Pacific Time on the trade date, a copy of the 
trade ticket generated for that Investment transaction. CEA will use this trade ticket in the Daily 
quality assurance process and to update CEA’s investment accounting system and other trade-
related information as requested by the CEA, its Chief Financial Officer, or another individual 
designated by the CEA. 

Each Investment Manager shall compile a monthly report of each Fund, or portion of Fund, 
managed by the Investment Manager and deliver the report electronically to the CEA on or by 
the fifth Business Day of the following month.  The report shall contain information as 
requested by the CEA, its Chief Financial Officer, or another individual designated by the CEA. 

FUND PERMITTED INVESTMENTS 

The following tables list permissible Investment types for each Fund in the CEA Portfolio that 
comply with both Applicable Laws and Regulations and the CEA’s Investment Policies. [Note 
that in some instances, Investments permitted by the CEA may be more restrictive than 
Investments otherwise permitted under Applicable Laws and Regulations.] For example, the 

September 2018 Page 8 of 16 

043

mailto:investreports@calquake.com
mailto:investreports@calquake.com


    

        
       

         
        

          
       

          
        

     

        
        

  

maturity requirements below act to limit commercial paper in the Liquidity Fund to a maximum 
maturity of 180 days, while the Applicable Laws and Regulations would limit commercial paper 
to a maximum maturity of 270 days (see Cal. Gov. Code, § 16430, subd. (f)(2)(A)); such 
variances are intentional, and Investment Managers are to follow the requirements below. In 
the event, however, that any requirement below may appear to be inconsistent with any of the 
Applicable Laws and Regulations, the Applicable Laws and Regulations shall be followed, and 
the Investment Manager shall immediately notify the CEA of any such inconsistency. If there is 
any question regarding any table or any permissible Investment described in the table, the 
Investment Manager shall contact the CEA for clarification. 

CEA staff may issue interpretive memorandum for the intended purpose to further enhance 
understanding of the Investment Policy or provide guidance for matters not covered by the 
Investment Policy. 
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Liquidity Fund 

Investment U.S. Treasury Federal Agency 
Banker’s 

Acceptance (BA) 

Certificate of 
Deposit 

(CDs) 

Commercial Paper 
(CP) 

Corporate Bond / 
Note 

Maximum Maturity 181 days 

Maximum Par Value, 
Total 

None 50% 25% 25% 25% 25% 

Maximum Par Value 
Per Name 

None 25% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Maximum Par Value 
Per Maturity 

None None None None None None 

Credit Full faith and credit 
of the Federal 
Government 

Implied government 
guarantee - credit 
analysis of 
certain issuing 
agencies 

Long-term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short-term debt 
ratings of “A-1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P-1” by Moody’s or 
“F-1+” by Fitch 

Long-term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short-term debt 
ratings of “A-1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P-1” by Moody’s or 
“F-1+” by Fitch 

Long-term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short-term debt 
ratings of “A-1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P-1” by Moody’s or 
“F-1+” by Fitch 

Long-term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short-term debt 
ratings of “A-1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P-1” by Moody’s or 
“F-1+” by Fitch 

Other Requirements Exclude: 

• Treasury Inflation 
Protect Security 
(TIPS) 

• Separate Trading of 
Registered Interest 
and Principal of 
Securities (STRIPS) 

Exclude: 

• Federal Home 
Loan Bank note 

• Must be purchased 
directly from the 
issuer and are 
eligible for 
purchase by the 
Federal Reserve 
System 

• Must be purchased 
directly from the 
issuer 

• Organized in U.S. • Organized in U.S. 

• Total assets must 
be >$500M 

• On Pooled Money 
Investment Board’s 
approved list of 
active issuers 

• <10% of the 
outstanding paper 
of the issuer 

• If over 15% of the 
fund is invested in 
CP, the dollar-
weighted average 
maturity of the 
entire fund 
amount cannot 
exceed 31 days 

 

    
  

    
    

    
   

   
  

    
  

    
    

    
   

   
  

    
  

    
    

    
   

   
  

    
  

    
    

    
   

   
  

 

  

   
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

              

   
 

      

  
  

      

  
  

      

   
  

 
 

  
 

 

 
    

  
    
    

  
    

   
   
  

 
    

  
    
    

  
    

   
   
  

 
    

  
    
    

  
    

   
   
  

 
    

  
    
    

  
    

   
   

  

   

 

 
 

 

 
 

  
 

 

  
  

  

 

 
 

 

   
  

 

 

 
 

  

181 days 181 days 181 days 180 days 181 days 
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Primary Fund 

Investment U.S. Treasury Federal Agency 
Banker’s 

Acceptance (BA) 

Certificate of 
Deposit 

(CDs) 

Commercial Paper 
(CP) 

Corporate Bond / 
Note 

Maximum Maturity 5 years Not Permitted Not Permitted Not Permitted Not Permitted 

Maximum Par Value, 
total Portfolio 

None Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Maximum Par Value 
Per Name 

None Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Maximum Par Value 
Per Maturity 

None Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Credit Full faith and credit of 
the Federal 
Government 

Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Other Requirements Exclude: 

• Treasury Inflation 
Protect Security (TIPS) 

• Separate Trading of 
Registered Interest 
and Principal of 
Securities (STRIPS) 

Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable 
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Claim-Paying Fund 

Investment U.S. Treasury Federal Agency 

Maximum Maturity 5 years 181 days 

Reinsurance Fund 

September 2018 

Banker’s 
Acceptance (BA) 

181 days 

Long-term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short-term debt 
ratings of “A-1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P-1” by Moody’s or 
“F-1+” by Fitch 

Certificate of 
Deposit 

(CDs) 

181 days 

Long-term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short-term debt 
ratings of “A-1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P-1” by Moody’s or 
“F-1+” by Fitch 

Commercial paper 
(CP) 

180 days 

Long-term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short-term debt 
ratings of “A-1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P-1” by Moody’s or 
“F-1+” by Fitch 

Corporate Bond / 
Note 

180 days 

Long-term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short-term debt 
ratings of “A-1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P-1” by Moody’s or 
“F-1+” by Fitch 

Maximum Par Value, 
Total 

None 50% 25% 25% 25% 25% 

Maximum Par Value 
Per Name 

None 25% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Maximum Par Value 
Per Maturity 

None None None None None None 

Credit Full faith and credit 
of the Federal 
Government 

Implied government 
guarantee - credit 
analysis of 
certain issuing 
agencies 

Other Requirements Exclude: 

• Treasury Inflation 
Protect Security 
(TIPS) 

• Separate Trading of 
Registered Interest 
and Principal of 
Securities (STRIPS) 

Exclude: 

• Federal Home 
Loan Bank note 

• Must be purchased 
directly from the 
issuer and are 
eligible for 
purchase by the 
Federal Reserve 
System 

• Must be 
purchased directly 
from the issuer 

• Organized in U.S. 

    

  

   
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

             

   
 

      

  
  

      

  
  

      

   
  

 
 

  
 

 

 
    

  
    
    

  
    

   
   
  

 
    

  
    
    

  
    

   
   
  

 
    

  
    
    

  
    

   
   
  

 
    

  
    
    

  
    

   
   

  

   

 

 
 

 

 
 

  
 

 

  

  

  

 

 
 

 

   
  

 

 

 
 

  

  

 

    
  

    
    

    
   

   
  

    
  

    
    

    
   

   
  

    
  

    
    

    
   

   
  

    
  

    
    

    
   

   
  

• Organized in U.S. 

• Total assets must 
be >$500M 

• On Pooled Money 
Investment Board’s 
approved list of 
active issuers 

• <10% of the 
outstanding paper 
of the issuer 

• If over 15% of the 
fund is invested in 
CP, the dollar-
weighted average 
maturity of the 
entire fund 
amount cannot 
exceed 31 days 
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Long-term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short-term debt 
ratings of “A-1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P-1” by Moody’s or 
“F-1+” by Fitch 

Investment U.S. Treasury Federal Agency 
Banker’s 

Acceptance (BA) 

Certificate of 
Deposit 

(CDs) 

Commercial paper 
(CP) 

Corporate Bond / 
Note 

Maximum Maturity 181 days 181 days 181 days 181 days 180 days 

Maximum Par Value, 
Total 

None 50% 25% 25% 25% 25% 

Maximum Par Value 
Per Name 

None 25% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Maximum Par Value 
Per Maturity 

None None None None None None 

Credit Full faith and credit 
of the Federal 
Government 

Implied government 
guarantee - credit 
analysis of 
certain issuing 
agencies 

Long-term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short-term debt 
ratings of “A-1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P-1” by Moody’s or 
“F-1+” by Fitch 

Long-term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short-term debt 
ratings of “A-1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P-1” by Moody’s or 
“F-1+” by Fitch 

Long-term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short-term debt 
ratings of “A-1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P-1” by Moody’s or 
“F-1+” by Fitch 

Other Requirements Exclude: 

• Treasury Inflation 
Protect Security 
(TIPS) 

• Separate Trading of 
Registered Interest 
and Principal of 
Securities (STRIPS) 

Exclude: 

• Federal Home 
Loan Bank note 

• Must be purchased 
directly from the 
issuer and are 
eligible for 
purchase by the 
Federal Reserve 
System 

• Must be 
purchased directly 
from the issuer 

• Organized in U.S. • Organized in U.S. 

• Total assets must 
be >$500M 

• On Pooled Money 
Investment Board’s 
approved list of 
active issuers 

• <10% of the 
outstanding paper 
of the issuer 

• If over 15% of the 
fund is invested in 
CP, the dollar-
weighted average 
maturity of the 
entire fund 
amount cannot 
exceed 31 days 

    
  

    
    

    
   

   
  

 

    
  

    
    

    
   

   
  

 
  

    
    

    
   

   
  

    
  

    
  

    
   

   
  

    

   
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

              

   
 

      

  
  

      

  
  

      

   
  

 
 

  
 

 

 
    

  
    
    

  
    

   
   
  

 
    

  
    
    

  
    

   
   
  

 
    

  
    
    

  
    

   
   
  

 
    

  
    
    

  
    

   
   

  

   

 

 
 

 

 
 

  
 

 

  

  

  

 

 
 

 

   
  

 

 

 
 

  

180 days 
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Mitigation Fund 

’ 

Long-term debt 

-
ratings of “A-1” by 

“P-1” by Moody’s or 
-

Long-term debt 

-
ratings of “A-1” by 

“P-1” by Moody’s or 
-

Long-term debt 

-
ratings of “A-1” by 

“P-1” by Moody’s or 
-

Long-term debt 

-
ratings of “A-1” by 

“P-1” by Moody’s or 
-

Maximum Par Value, 
Total 

None 50% 25% 25% 25% 25% 

Maximum Par Value 
Per Name 

None 25% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Maximum Par Value 
Per Maturity 

None None None None None None 

Credit Full faith and credit 
of the Federal 
Government 

Implied government 
guarantee - credit 
analysis of 
certain issuing 
agencies 

Other Requirements Exclude: 

• Treasury Inflation 
Protect Security 
(TIPS) 

• Separate Trading of 
Registered Interest 
and Principal of 
Securities (STRIPS) 

Exclude: 

• Federal Home 
Loan Bank note 

• Must be purchased 
directly from the 
issuer and are 
eligible for 
purchase by the 
Federal Reserve 
System 

• Must be 
purchased directly 
from the issuer 

• Organized in U.S. • Organized in U.S. 

• Total assets must 
be >$500M 

• On Pooled Money 
Investment Board’s 
approved list of 
active issuers 

• <10% of the 
outstanding paper 
of the issuer 

• If over 15% of the 
fund is invested in 
CP, the dollar-
weighted average 
maturity of the 
entire fund 
amount cannot 
exceed 31 days 

 

    
 

    
    

    
   

   
  

    
  

    
    

    
   

   
  

    
  

    
    

    
   

   
 

    
  

    
    

    
   

   
  

 

    

  

   
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

              

   
 

      

  
  

      

  
  

      

   
  

 
 

  
 

 

 
    

  
    
    

  
    

   
   
  

 
    

  
    
    

  
    

   
   
  

 
    

  
    
    

  
    

   
   
  

 
    

  
    
    

  
    

   
   

  

   

 

 
 

 

 
 

  
 

 

  

  

  

 

 
 

 

   
  

 

 

 
 

  

Investment U.S. Treasury Federal Agency 

Maximum Maturity 91 days 91 days 

Banker s
Acceptance (BA) 

91 days 

ratings of at least “A”
by Standard & Poor’s
or “A2” by Moody’s
or “A” by Fitch OR
short term debt 

Standard & Poor’s or

“F 1+” by Fitch

Certificate of 
Deposit 

(CDs) 

91 days 

ratings of at least “A”
by Standard & Poor’s
or “A2” by Moody’s
or “A” by Fitch OR
short term debt 

Standard & Poor’s or

“F 1+” by Fitch

Commercial paper 
(CP) 

91 days 

ratings of at least “A”
by Standard & Poor’s
or “A2” by Moody’s
or “A” by Fitch OR
short term debt 

Standard & Poor’s or

“F 1+” by Fitch 

Corporate Bond / 
Note 

91 days 

ratings of at least “A”
by Standard & Poor’s
or “A2” by Moody’s
or “A” by Fitch OR
short term debt 

Standard & Poor’s or

“F 1+” by Fitch
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California Government Code, Statute 16430 

“Eligible securities for the investment of surplus moneys shall be any of the following: 
“(a) Bonds or interest-bearing notes or obligations of the United States, or those for which the 

faith and credit of the United States are pledged for the payment of principal and interest. 
“(b) Bonds or interest-bearing notes on obligations that are guaranteed as to principal and interest 

by a federal agency of the United States. 
“(c) Bonds, notes, and warrants of this state, or those for which the faith and credit of this state 

are pledged for the payment of principal and interest. 
“(d) Bonds or warrants, including, but not limited to, revenue warrants, of any county, city, 

metropolitan water district, California water district, California water storage district, irrigation 
district in the state, municipal utility district, or school district of this state. 

“(e) Any of the following: 
“(1) Bonds, consolidated bonds, collateral trust debentures, consolidated debentures, or other 

obligations issued by federal land banks or federal intermediate credit banks established under the 
Federal Farm Loan Act, as amended (12 U.S.C. Sec. 2001 et seq.). 

“(2) Debentures and consolidated debentures issued by the Central Bank for Cooperatives and 
banks for cooperatives established under the Farm Credit Act of 1933, as amended (12 U.S.C. Sec. 2001 
et seq.). 

“(3) Bonds or debentures of the Federal Home Loan Bank Board established under the Federal 
Home Loan Bank Act (12 U.S.C. Sec. 1421 et seq.). 

“(4) Stocks, bonds, debentures, and other obligations of the Federal National Mortgage 
Association established under the National Housing Act, as amended (12 U.S.C. Sec. 1701 et seq.). 

“(5) Bonds of any federal home loan bank established under that act. 
“(6) Obligations of the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation. 
“(7) Bonds, notes, and other obligations issued by the Tennessee Valley Authority under the 

Tennessee Valley Authority Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. Sec. 831 et seq.). 
“(8) Other obligations guaranteed by the Commodity Credit Corporation for the export of 

California agricultural products under the Commodity Credit Corporation Charter Act, as amended (15 
U.S.C. Sec. 714 et seq.). 

“(f)(1) Commercial paper of “prime” quality as defined by a nationally recognized organization 
that rates these securities, if the commercial paper is issued by a federally or state-chartered bank or 
a state-licensed branch of a foreign bank, corporation, trust, or limited liability company that is 
approved by the Pooled Money Investment Board as meeting the conditions specified in either 
subparagraph (A) or subparagraph (B): 

“(A) Both of the following conditions: 
“(i) Organized and operating within the United States. 
“(ii) Having total assets in excess of five hundred million dollars ($500,000,000). 
“(B) Both of the following conditions: 
“(i) Organized within the United States as a federally or state-chartered bank or a state-licensed 

branch of a foreign bank, special purpose corporation, trust, or limited liability company. 
“(ii) Having programwide credit enhancements including, but not limited to, overcollateralization, 

letters of credit, or surety bond. 
“(2) A purchase of eligible commercial paper may not do any of the following: 
“(A) Exceed 270 days maturity. 
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“(B) Represent more than 10 percent of the outstanding paper of an issuing federally or state-
chartered bank or a state-licensed branch of a foreign bank, corporation, trust, or limited liability 
company. 

“(C) Exceed 30 percent of the resources of an investment program. 
“(3) At the request of the Pooled Money Investment Board, an investment made pursuant to this 

subdivision shall be secured by the issuer by depositing with the Treasurer securities authorized by 
Section 53651 of a market value at least 10 percent in excess of the amount of the state's investment. 

“(g) Bills of exchange or time drafts drawn on and accepted by a commercial bank, otherwise 
known as bankers acceptances, that are eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve System. 

“(h) Negotiable certificates of deposits issued by a federally or state-chartered bank or savings and 
loan association, a state-licensed branch of a foreign bank, or a federally or state-chartered credit 
union. For the purposes of this section, negotiable certificates of deposits are not subject to Chapter 4 
(commencing with Section 16500) and Chapter 4.5 (commencing with Section 16600). 

“(i) The portion of bank loans and obligations guaranteed by the United States Small Business 
Administration or the United States Farmers Home Administration. 

“(j) Bank loans and obligations guaranteed by the Export-Import Bank of the United States. 
“(k) Student loan notes insured under the Guaranteed Student Loan Program established pursuant 

to the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1001 et seq.) and eligible for resale 
to the Student Loan Marketing Association established pursuant to Section 133 of the Education 
Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1087-2). 

“(l) Obligations issued, assumed, or guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and 
Development, the Inter-American Development Bank, the Asian Development Bank, the African 
Development Bank, the International Finance Corporation, or the Government Development Bank of 
Puerto Rico. 

“(m) Bonds, debentures, and notes issued by corporations organized and operating within the 
United States. Securities eligible for investment under this subdivision shall be within the top three 
ratings of a nationally recognized rating service. 

“(n) Negotiable Order of Withdrawal Accounts (NOW Accounts), invested in accordance with 
Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 16500).” 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Investment Policies 

Adopted: June [x], 2021 
Revised: 09/12/18 (Format Change Only) 
Revised: 12/16/15 
Revised: 08/01/02 
Revised: 06/20/02 
Revised: 10/28/99 
Revised: 05/28/98 
Revised: 10/09/97 
Revised: 11/01/96 
Adopted: 10/07/96 

DEFINITIONS 

“Applicable Laws and Regulations” or “Legal Restrictions” means California Insurance Code 
section 10089.6, subdivision (b)(1), California Government Code section 16430, and California 
Code of Regulations, Title 10, section 2697.4, as well as any amendments or successor 
provisions to those sections. 

“Business Day” or “Business Days” means a day or days other than Saturdays, Sundays, or state 
holidays. 

“CEA Portfolio” or “Portfolio” means the entirety of all the individual Funds of the California 
Earthquake Authority Fund collectively, i.e., the Primary Fund, the Liquidity Fund, the Claim‐
Paying Fund, the Reinsurance Fund, and the Mitigation Fund. 

“Daily” refers to Business Days. 

“Financial Advisor” means a firm contracted by the CEA to provide analysis for the CEA 
concerning debt issuance and that may, if contracted to do so, provide services related to 
oversight of the CEA’s Investment Managers. 

“Fund” means a fund within the California Earthquake Authority Fund such as, but not by way 
of limitation, the CEA’s Primary Fund, Liquidity Fund, Claim‐Paying Fund, Claims‐Paying 
Fund, Reinsurance Fund, and Earthquake Loss Mitigation Fund. 
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“Investment Manager” means a firm or firms contracted by the CEA to invest monies on its 
behalf, in accordance with all Applicable Laws and Regulations and the CEA’s Investment 
Policies. 

“Investment” refers to a Security purchased for, and owned by, the CEA. 

“Modified Duration” is the average length of time to receive the present value of bond cash 
flows. 

A “Security” is a financial instrument before it is purchased for, or owned by, the CEA. 

PHILOSOPHY 

The California Earthquake Authority (CEA) is an insurance provider whose primary business is to 
pay policyholder claims in a timely manner while maintaining quality customer service and a 
sound financial posture. In furtherance of those goals, the CEA should have Investment Policies 
that provide for the following prioritized goals: 

1) Safety and preservation of principal; 
2) Liquidity, so that operating expenses and claims can be paid in a timely manner; and 
3) Competitive returns (yield). 

As a public instrumentality, created by act of the California state government, the CEA discloses 
much of its operations and investment activity. The integrity of the CEA’s investment activities 
should be above that of private sector organizations conducting comparable business 
operations. Therefore, the CEA has the social and ethical obligation to require that Investments 
made on its behalf and held in its accounts be in corporations and entities that meet a high 
standard of conduct in their operations. Still, the investment of CEA assets should 
appropriately reflect sound judgment that each Investment will produce an attractive rate of 
return, within the bounds of all Applicable Laws and Regulations and these Investment Policies. 

Formatted: Heading 1 
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PRINCIPLES 

After the primary goals of safety and preservation of principal and attention to appropriate 
liquidity requirements are met, rate of return must be considered. Safe and prudent 
investment management will be the primary and underlying criterion for the selection of 
Securities and retention and disposition of Investments. 

Non‐economic factors will supplement profit factors in making investment decisions. Non‐
economic factors are defined as those considerations not directly related to providing for the 
safety of principal, maintaining adequate liquidity, and maximizing income, but which seek to 
ensure that in making or holding its Investments, the CEA does not, either through action or 
inaction, promote, condone, or facilitate social or environmental injury. 

Social or environmental injury may be said to exist when the activities of a corporation serve to 
undermine basic human rights and dignities, or when the CEA perceives that the practices of a 
corporation result in undesirable side effects for others and that those side effects are 
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substantial in nature. Side effects that may be deemed undesirable and substantial include, but 
are not limited to, the following: 

A. Subject to current federal, state, and local law, any practice that is known to endanger, 
directly or indirectly, human health or the environment: 

B. Practices that result in the suppression of human rights, including: 

1) The sale of weapons and technology to governments known to engage in the 
systematic suppression of human rights; and 

2) The sale of goods to, or the purchase of goods from, countries known to employ 
forced labor. 

C. Practices that endanger human health, including: 

1) The sale and distribution of known contaminated products; 
2) The sale and distribution of dangerous drugs; and 
3) The sale of goods to, or the purchase of goods from, companies known to 

disregard worker safety. 

Formatted: Tab stops: 5", Left,Leader: ___ 
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In addition, it is the CEA’s policy not to invest in expatriate companies. Expatriate companies 
are defined as U.S. corporations that relocate their “principal office,” for tax purposes only, to 
offshore tax havens. 

Investments shall not be selected or rejected based solely on non‐economic factors. In general, 
non‐economic factors, to the extent known after reasonable investigation, should be 
considered after all relevant financial criteria and Legal Restrictions have been satisfied. 
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The CEA Portfolio and each of the Funds within the Portfolio will be managed to ensure the 
safety of the Portfolio and the Funds by investing in high‐quality fixed‐income Securities with 
limited durations. When permitted by these Investment Policies, investments shall be made in 
different investment types in order to minimize the impact any one industry or investment class 
can have on a Fund, or portion of a Fund, managed by a CEA Investment Manager. Investments 
shall also be spread over multiple credits and issuers within an investment class (when these 
Investment Policies permit multiple credits and issuers within a Fund), thereby minimizing the 
credit exposure of the CEA Portfolio or any Fund within the Portfolio to any single firm or 
institution. 

Banker’s acceptances, certificates of deposit, and bank notes must be purchased directly from 
the issuer, as long as these Investments meet the investment criteria outlined in the 
appropriate sections of these Investment Policies and as long as they comply with all Applicable 
Laws and Regulations. 
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PRUDENT INVESTOR STANDARD 

In addition to complying with thesethe Investment PoliciesPolicy and all Applicable Laws and 
Regulations, all CEA Portfolio Investments and evaluation of such Investments shall be made 
with regard to the “prudent investor” standard of care, that is, with the care, skill, prudence, 
and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, that persons of prudence, discretion, 
and intelligence exercise in the professional management of their business affairs, not for 
speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital, including 
liquidity of the Investment, as well as the probable income to be derived. 

ETHICS, AVOIDANCE OF CONFLICT OF INTERESTS, AND COMPLIANCE WITH INVESTMENT 
ADVISERS ACT OF 1940 

No officer or employee of the CEA, or of any firm contracted with the CEA involved in the 
investment of CEA fundsPortfolio, shall engage in any personal or business activity that may 
conflict with proper execution of the CEA’s investment program or that may impair his or her 
ability to make impartial investment decisions for the CEA. Any personal investments in entities 
that do business with the CEA, either by contract or where the CEA has Investments with that 
entity, shall be disclosed as required in regulations of the Fair Political Practice Commission 
(using its Form 700, which shall be filed according to law) and the CEA’s Conflict of Interest 
Code. 

The CEA’s Financial Advisor and Investment Managers shall ensure that they are registered 
with, and comply with the rules, advice, rulings, and regulations of, the Securities and Exchange 
Commission as an investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 that is 
licensed to choose investments for clients. The CEA’s Financial Advisor and Investment 
Managers shall procure and fully and currently maintain the permits and licenses, if any, 
necessary to advise the CEA on investments and to make investments on the CEA’s behalf. 

PERMISSIBLE INVESTMENTS 

In accordance with California Insurance Code section 10089.6, subdivision (b), paragraph (1), 
Investments made by the CEA or on behalf of the CEA shall be made in compliance with 
California Government Code section 16430, as section 16430 is in effect at the time the 
Investment is made. California Government Code section 16430 may be amended from time to 
time, and the CEA’s Financial Advisor and Investment Managers shall be responsible for being 
aware and informed of any amendments to section 16430 and to all Applicable Laws and 
Regulations. 
Regulations. 

The CEA’s Portfolio may be invested in any of the following securities listed below and detailed 
in the Permitted Investments section: 

 Treasury securities including TIPS and Floating Rate Notes; 
 Federal Agency securities including Floating Rate Notes; 
 Other Agency securities; 
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 International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, the Inter‐American 
Development Bank, the Asian Development Bank, the African Development Bank, the 
International Finance Corporation (“Supranationals”); 

 Commercial Paper; 
 Certificates of Deposit; 
 Bankers Acceptances; and 
 Corporate Bonds including Notes and Floating Rate Notes 

COMPLIANCE 

These Investment Policies, and all Applicable Laws and Regulations, shall be observed by 
the CEA’s Independent Financial Advisor and acted on by all Investment Managers in the 
course of their administeringadministration of CEA Funds. All Investment Policies are 
subject to continual monitoring and review by the CEA’s Chief Financial Officer (the 
“(“CFO”). 

A trade executed for the CEA’s Portfolio shall be deemed to be in compliance with these 
Investment Policies if, as of the trade date, the trade met both (A) the requirements of thesethe 
Investment PoliciesPolicy and (B) all Applicable Laws and Regulations. Notwithstanding, 
however, the deemed trade‐day compliance of any individual trade, if at the close of any day 
any Fund concentration fund maturity or duration exceeds the limit stated in these Investment 
Policies is exceededor the ratings are below the minimum ratings requirement as stated in the 
Investment Policy, the Investment Manager must, within one business day, consult with the 
CEA CFO (or his or her designee) in order that the CEA, in its sole discretion, may provide a 
directive to correct the exceedance of the concentrationmaturity or duration limit or any other 
action needed for correction of ratings downgrade; if the CEA CFO (or his or her designee) 
provides no such directive, the Investment Manager must bring the exceeded 
concentrationmaturity or duration limit or ratings back into compliance with thethese 
Investment Policies as soon as reasonably possible. 

The CEA will perform Daily quality‐assurance checks of the Portfolio and of each Fund (or 
portion of a Fund in the case where an Investment Manager is managing a defined portion of a 
Fund) to ensure compliance with these Investment Policies and with all Applicable Laws and 
Regulations. If the CEA becomes aware of any noncompliance with any Investment Policy, the 
CEA will contact the Investment Manager immediately to discuss the situation so that the CEA 
may determine the appropriate actions to be taken by the Investment Manager and CEA to 
bring the Fund into compliance; if an Investment Manager or the Financial Advisor becomes 
aware of any noncompliance with any Investment Policy, it shall contact the CEA immediately 
to discuss the situation so that the CEA may determine the appropriate actions to be taken by 
the Investment Manager and CEA to bring the Fund into compliance. 

The performance by CEA of a Daily quality‐assurance check does not relieve any CEA 
Investment Manager of its respective independent duties to ensure that all Investments made 
and held for the CEA comply with these Investment Policies and all Applicable Laws and 
Regulations. CEA’s failure to discover, or failure to report the discovery to the CEA’s Financial 
Advisor or Investment Managers (or any of them), any noncompliance, does not constitute (A) 
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CEA’s acceptance or ratification of that noncompliance or (B) any waiver by CEA of its right to 
require compliance by Investment Managers with these Investment Policies and all Applicable 
Laws and Regulations. 

THE CEA PORTFOLIO 
Formatted: Heading 1, Left, Don't keep with next 

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline 

Formatted: Normal 

For the purposes of these Investment Policies, the “CEA Portfolio” consists of the following 
Funds: 

 Mitigation Fund 

o This fund consists of one custody account, which fund mitigation‐related 
activities. 

 Liquidity Fund 
o This fund consists of one custody account, which provides funds used for 

CEA’s operational cash‐flow. 
 Primary Fund 

o This fund consists of a number of custody accounts, which primarily provide 
funds for paying CEA claims and claim expenses. 

 Claim‐Paying Fund 
o This fund consists of a number of custody accounts, which receive the 

proceeds of CEA’s debt issuances. 
 Reinsurance Fund 

o This fund consistsmay consist of one or more custody accountaccounts, 
which receivesreceive reinsurance recoverables collected after earthquake 
events. 

 Mitigation Fund 

RATINGS AND MATURITY LIMIT 
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o Treasury This fund consists of a number of custody accounts, which fund 
mitigation‐related activities. 

MINIMUM RATING REQUIREMENTS 

Short‐term debt is defined as any debt coming due within one year or less when acquired by 
the CEA. The rating of short‐term debt is acceptable under these Policies if, when issued and at 
date of CEA acquisition, it has a long‐term debt rating of at least “A” by Standard & Poor’s 
Corporations, “A2” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. or “A” by Fitch, or a short‐term rating of 
A‐1 by Standard & Poor’s Corporations, P‐1 by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or F‐1+ by Fitch 
Ratings 

 Long‐term debt is defined as any debt coming due in more than one year as of the date 
acquired by the CEA. The rating of long‐term debt is acceptable under these Policies if, 
when issued and at the date of CEA acquisition, it bears a long‐term debt rating of at 
least “A” by Standard & Poor’s Corporations, “A2” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or 
“A” by Fitch Ratings. securities 

o Mitigation: Maturity limit of 91 days 
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o Liquidity: Maturity limit of 1 year 
o Primary and Claims: Maturity limit of 10 years and one month 

 Federal Agency securities, other Agency securities 
o Mitigation: Maturity limit of 91 days 
o Liquidity: Maturity limit of 1 year 
o Primary and Claims: Maturity limit of 10 years and one month 

 Supranationals 
o Mitigation: Maturity limit of 91 days 
o Liquidity: Maturity limit of 1 year 
o Primary and Claims: Maturity limit of 10 years and one month 

 Commercial Paper 
o Mitigation: Not permissible 
o Liquidity, Primary, and Claims: Maturity limit of 270 days 

 Certificates of Deposit 
o Mitigation: Not permissible 
o Liquidity, Primary, and Claims: For those issued by a federally or state‐chartered 

bank or savings and loan association, a state‐licensed branch of a foreign bank, 
or a federally or state‐chartered credit union and with a maturity limit of 1 year 

 Bankers Acceptances 
o Mitigation: Not permissible 
o Liquidity, Primary, and Claims: Yes, for those that are eligible for purchase by the 

Federal Reserve System, maximum maturity of 1 year 
 Corporate Bonds/Notes 

o Mitigation: Not permissible 
o Liquidity, Primary, and Claims 

 Maturity limit of 1 year for Liquidity, 10 years and one month for Primary 
and Claims and no more than 20% of maximum corporate allocation may 
have maturities greater than 8 years but less than 10 years 

 Ratings from at least two of three rating agencies of at least: 
 “A‐” from S&P, “A‐” from Fitch, or “A3” from Moody’s for long‐

term securities (securities rated “A‐”/“A3”, “A”/“A2”, “A+”/“A1” 
should be not represent more than 30% of the total portfolio and 
securities rated “A‐”/“A3” should not represent more than 10% of 
the total portfolio and will be part of the total portfolio limit of 
30% for “A” ratings category) ‐ No ratings below “A‐” or “A3” is 
allowed 

 “A‐1” from S&P, “F‐1+” from Fitch, or “P‐1” from Moody’s for 
short‐term securities ‐ No ratings below “A‐1”or ”F‐1+” or “P‐1” is 
allowed 

 2% limit per issuer and 20% industry / sector limit of the corporate 
portfolio 

The “maximum maturity” requirement summarized above and listed in detail in the table in the 
Permitted Investments section is defined as the number of days from trade date to maturity 
date, including the trade date but excluding the maturity date. 
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If any Investment held in any CEA Fund is downgraded below the credit quality required by the 
Applicable Laws and Regulations, or below the credit quality required by these Investment 
Policies, the CEA, in consultation with its Financial Advisor, will determine whether to retain the 
Investment or to divest CEA of the Investment. Evaluation of divestiture of Investments will be 
made on a case‐by‐case basis. 

MATURITY & 
DURATION 

The Investments made in the CEA Portfolio, consisting of all CEA Funds, Mitigation Fund shall 
have a combinedmaximum Modified Duration of no greater than 91 days. 
The Liquidity Fund shall have a maximum Modified Duration of no greater than 3.0181 days. 
The Primary Fund shall have a maximum Modified Duration of no greater than five (5) years. To 
minimize the risk of 
The Claims‐Paying Fund shall have a maximum Modified Duration of no greater than six (6) 
years. 

COMPOSITION 

Mitigation Fund 
 Treasury securities should represent at least 50% of the portfolio market value decline 

due to a change in market conditions, each Investment Manager managing Investments 
 Federal Agency and Other Agency securities and Supranationals should not represent 

more than 50% of the portfolio with maturity dates greaterno one agency representing 
more than 365 days shall spread5% of the maturities of those Investments to avoid 
having 10% or more of the market valueportfolio 

Liquidity Fund 
 Treasury securities should represent at least 50% of the portfolio 
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Formatted: List Paragraph, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.25" + Indent at: 0.5", Tab stops: 5", Left,Leader: ___ 

 Federal Agency and Other Agency securities and Supranationals should not represent 
more than 25% of the Investment Manager’s Fund of Investments maturing on a single 
date.portfolio with no one agency representing more than 5% of the portfolio 

The “maximum maturity” requirement listed in the charts in the Fund Permitted Investments 
section below is defined as the number of days from trade date to maturity date, including the 
trade date but excluding the maturity date. An Investment with a maximum maturity of 181 
days means the Investment must mature in 180 days or less. 

DIVERSIFICATION 

Diversification is one of the fundamental principles of investing. Properly exercised, it allows for 
risks to be minimized and returns maximized within a given investment framework. The CEA 
and its Financial Advisor and Investment Managers shall seek prudent amounts of 
diversification at all levels of its investment‐management process. This includes diversification 
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both among and within allowable asset classes, as well as diversification of Investment 
Managers. The Investment Policies provide guidance on diversification, including allowable 
limits for various asset classes, industry sectors, issuers, and investment types. Consistent with 
the Investment Policies, the CEA and its Financial Advisor and Investment Managers shall 
adhere to prudent practices of diversification to safeguard the assets under their management. 

 Commercial Paper shall not exceed 25% of the total portfolio 
 Corporate securities should not represent more than 50% of the portfolio (including 

Certificates of Deposit, Commercial Paper, and Banker Acceptances) with a 2% issuer 
limit and 20% industry / sector limit 

Primary Fund 
 Treasury securities should represent at least 50% of the portfolio 
 Federal Agency and Other Agency securities and Supranationals should not represent 

more than 25% of the portfolio with no one agency representing more than 5% of the 
portfolio 

 Commercial Paper shall not exceed 10% of the total portfolio 
 Corporate securities should not represent more than 50% of the portfolio (including 

Certificates of Deposit, Commercial Paper, and Banker Acceptances) with a 2% issuer 
limit and 20% industry / sector limit 

Claims‐Paying Fund 
 Treasury securities should represent at least 40% of the portfolio 
 Federal Agency and Other Agency securities and Supranationals should not represent 

more than 25% of the portfolio with no one agency representing more than 5% of the 
portfolio 

 Commercial Paper shall not exceed 10% of the total portfolio 
 Corporate securities should not represent more than 50% of the portfolio (including 

Certificates of Deposit, Commercial Paper, and Banker Acceptances) with a 2% issuer 
limit and 20% industry / sector limit 

CUSTODY 

All CEA Investments shall be secured or held by a custody bank. CEA will obtain a custody bank 
through a competitive procurement process. 

UNINVESTED CASH 

Each Investment Manager shall seek to minimize the amount of cash remaining at the end of a 
Business Day that is not invested in a manner consistent with thesethe Investment 
PoliciesPolicy. 

In addition to the requirements in the charts above, the following are further requirements that 
the CEA’s Investment Managers must follow: 

COMMERCIAL PAPER 
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Consistent with California Insurance Code section 10089.6, subdivision (b), and California 
Government Code section 16430, subdivision (f), eligible commercial paper for the CEA’s 
Liquidity, Claim‐Paying, Claims‐Paying, and Mitigation Funds is limited to commercial paper of 
issuers expressly approved by the State of California’s Pooled Money Investment Board 
(“PMIB”) and designated by PMIB an “Active Issuer.” The CEA will use reasonable efforts to 
continue to provide updated PMIB‐approval lists, as updates are made available by the PMIB 
and the California State Treasurer’s Office (“STO”) on its website, currently at 
http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia‐laif/investments/cp.pdf, to all CEA Investment Managers 
responsible for managing commercial‐paper assets in any CEA Fund. The CEA’s Investment 
Managers, however, have separate, independent responsibility for ensuring that, in any Fund or 
Funds they manage or oversee, any Investments purchased on the CEA’s behalf comply with 
this requirement, with all other requirements of any of the Applicable Laws and Regulations, 
and with these Investment Policies. 
Any un‐invested moneys in the Portfolios may be held un‐invested pending cash investment, 
distribution, resolution of a dispute, or for other operational reasons and may be deposited in 
the associated sweep account prior to the Fed wire cut off time. 

NEGATIVE YIELDS 

The Investment Managers are encouraged to hold cash until an allowable Security with a positive 
yield becomes available. The Investment Managers must notify the CEA when yields are negative. 

MINIMUM TRADE RETURN 

Subject to guidance from the CEA, Investment Managers should not execute a trade if the 
expected return is less than the cost of executing the trade. If any Investment Manager believes 
that circumstances warrant making such a trade, it must contact the office of the CEA’s Chief 
Financial Officer to discussCEA. 
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INVESTMENT GOALS 

Consistent with the CEA’s published Investment Philosophy, and in order of priority, the CEA’s 
investment goals are: 

1) Portfolio Safety/Diversification 
Where allowed by theUnder these Investment Policies, the Portfolio shall contain 
a sufficient number and diversitywith multiple maturity dates of marketable 
Investmentssecurities so that a reasonable portion of the Portfolio can be readily 
converted to cash at a price closely approximating amortized cost. 

2) Liquidity 
The Portfolio shall be managed to ensure that the CEA’s usual cash needs to pay 
eligible claims can be met; if unforeseen cash needs arise, the CEA or another 
individual designated by the CEA will work with individual Managers when needed 
to plan to meet liquidity requirements. 

3) Rate of Return 
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Investments shall be made in such a way as to realize the maximum return 
consistent with the principles of prudence expressed in the CEA’s Investment 
Philosophy and these Guidelines. 

InvestmentsThe investments in the Portfolio are primarily buy and hold but investments may 
be sold to: 

 Provide liquidity, 
 Address deterioration in the credit quality of an issuer, or 
 Purchase an Investment that better meets the current needs of the Portfolio, after 

notification to and consultation with the CEA. 

REPORTING 

Each Investment Manager shall report to the CEA, via email to investreports@calquake.com, by 
9:00 a.m. Pacific Time each Business Day, the previous day’s holdings in each Fund, or a portion 
of athe Fund, under its management. 

For each Investment it makes, the Investment Manager shall transmit to the CEA, via email to 
investreports@calquake.com sent by 911:00 a.m. Pacific Time on the trade date, a copy of the 
trade ticket generated for that Investment transaction. The CEA will use this trade ticket in the 
Daily quality assurance process and to update CEA’s investment accounting system and other 
trade‐related information as requested by the CEA, its Chief Financial Officer, or another 
individual designated by the CEA. (or his or her designee). 

Each Investment Manager shall compile a monthly report of each Fund, or a portion of the 
Fund, managed by the Investment Manager and deliver the report electronically to the CEA on 
or by the fifth Business Day of the following month. The report shall contain information as 
requested by the CEA, its Chief Financial Officer, or another individual designated by the CEA. 
(or his or her designee). 
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Formatted: Heading 1, Keep with next 

FUND PERMITTED INVESTMENTS 

The following tables list permissible Investment types for each Fund in the CEA Portfolio that 
comply with both Applicable Laws and Regulations and the CEA’s Investment Policies. [Note 
that in some instances, Investments permitted by the CEA may be more restrictive than 
Investments otherwise permitted under Applicable Laws and Regulations.] For example, the 
maturity requirements below act to limit commercial paper in the Liquidity Fund to a maximum 
maturity of 180 days, while the Applicable Laws and Regulations would limit commercial paper 
to a maximum maturity of 270 days (see Cal. Gov. Code, § 16430, subd. (f)(2)(A)); such 
variances are intentional, and Investment Managers are to follow the requirements below. In 
the event, however, that any requirement below may appear to be inconsistent with any of the 
Applicable Laws and Regulations, the Applicable Laws and Regulations shall be followed, and 
the Investment Manager shall immediately notify the CEA of any such inconsistency. If there is 
any question regarding any table or any permissible Investment described in the table, the 
Investment Manager shall contact the CEA for clarification. 
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CEA staff may issue interpretive memorandum for the intended purpose to further enhance 
understanding of the Investment Policy or provide guidance for matters not covered by the 
Investment Policy. 
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Liquidity Fund 

PROHIBITTED INVESTMENTS 

Due to the nature of the environmental risk from the consumption of fossil fuel, investments in 
corporations whose primary business or majority of revenues are derived from fossil fuel are 
prohibited. 

All structured securities are prohibited. 
All non‐US Corporate Securities are prohibited. 
All 144A Securities are prohibited. 
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Investment 
Mitigation Liquidity Primary Claims‐

Paying 
U.S. Treasury Yes, maturity limit of 91 days and 

should represent at least 50% of the 
portfolio 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 
year and should 
represent at least 50% of 
the portfolio 

Yes, maturity 
limit of 10 years 
and one month 
and should 
represent at least 
50% of the 
portfolio 

Yes, 
maturity 
limit of 10 
years and 
one month 
and should 
represent 
at least 40% 
of the 
portfolio 

U.S. Agency Yes, maturity limit of 91 days, single 
agency limit of 5%, and should not 
represent more than 50% of the 
portfolio 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 
year, single agency limit 
of 5%, and should not 
represent more than 
25% of the portfolio 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years 
and one month, single agency 
limit of 5% and should not 
represent more than 25% of the 
portfolio 

Investment U.S. Treasury Federal AgencyLand Banks or 
Federal Intermediate Credit 
Banks 

Banker’s Acceptance (BA)Yes, 
maturity limit of 91 days (part of 
Agency allocation) 

Certificate of Deposit 
(CDs)Yes, maturity limit 
of 1 year (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Commercial 
Paper 

(CP)Yes, maturity 
limit of 10 years 
and one month 
(part of Agency 
allocation) 

Corporate 
Bond / 
Note 
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Investment 
Mitigation Liquidity Primary Claims‐

Paying 

Maximum MaturityCentral Bank for Cooperatives 181 daysYes, maturity limit of 91 days 
(part of Agency allocation) 

181 daysYes, maturity 
limit of 1 year (part of 
Agency allocation) 

181 
daysYes, 
maturity 
limit of 10 
years and 
one 
month 
(part of 
Agency 
allocation) 

181 
days 

180 
days 

181 
days 

Federal Home Loan Bank Yes, maturity limit of 91 days (part of 
Agency allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 
year (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years 
and one month (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Federal National Mortgage Association Yes, maturity limit of 91 days (part of 
Agency allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 
year (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years 
and one month (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Yes, maturity limit of 91 days (part of 
Agency allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 
year (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years 
and one month (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Tennessee Valley Authority Yes, maturity limit of 91 days (part of 
Agency allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 
year (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years 
and one month (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Commodity Credit Corporation for the Export of California 
Agricultural Products 

Yes, maturity limit of 91 days (part of 
Agency allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 
year (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years 
and one month (part of Agency 
allocation) 

United States Small Business Administration or the United States 
Farmers Home Administration 

Yes, maturity limit of 91 days (part of 
Agency allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 
year (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years 
and one month (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Export‐Import Bank of the United States Yes, maturity limit of 91 days (part of 
Agency allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 
year (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years 
and one month (part of Agency 
allocation) 
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Investment 
Mitigation Liquidity Primary Claims‐

Paying 
International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, the Inter‐
American Development Bank, the Asian Development Bank, the 
African Development Bank, the International Finance Corporation, 
the Government Development Bank of Puerto Rico 

Yes, maturity limit of 91 days (exclude 
GDB of Puerto Rico) (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 
year (exclude GDB of 
Puerto Rico) (part of 
Agency allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years 
and one month (exclude GDB of 
Puerto Rico) (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Bankers Acceptances No Yes, for those that are eligible for purchase by the Federal 
Reserve System, maximum maturity of 1 year 

Negotiable Certificates of Deposits No Yes, for those issued by a federally or state‐chartered bank 
or savings and loan association, a state‐licensed branch of a 
foreign bank, or a federally or state‐chartered credit union 
and with a maturity limit of 1 year 

Negotiable Order of Withdrawal Accounts (NOW Accounts) Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Student Loan Marketing Association No No No No 

California Municipals No No No No 
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Maximum Par Value, TotalCommercial Paper None 
No 

50% 25%Yes 
 Approved by the 

Pooled Money 
Investment Board by 
(A) being organized 
and operating within 
the U.S. and having 
total assets in excess 
of $500MM OR (B) 
organized within the 
U.S. as a federally or 
state‐chartered bank 
or a state‐licensed 
branch of a foreign 
bank, special 
purpose 
corporation, trust, or 
limited liability 
company and having 
program‐wide credit 
enhancements 

 Not exceeding 270 
days 

 Not represent more 
than 10% of 
outstanding CP of an 
issuing federally or 
state‐chartered bank 
or a state‐licensed 
branch of a foreign 
bank, corporation, 
trust, or limited 
liability company 

 Not exceeding 25% 
of the total portfolio 
for the Liquidity 
Fund 

 Not exceeding 10% 
of the total portfolio 
for each the Primary 
and Claims‐Paying 
Fund 
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Maximum Par Value 
Per Name 

None 25% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Maximum Par Value 
Per Maturity 

None None None None None None 

Credit 
Corporate Bonds / Notes 

Full faith and 
credit of the 
Federal 
Government 
No 

Implied 
government 
guarantee ‐
credit 
analysis of 
certain 
issuing 
agencies 

Long‐term debtYes 
 Maturity limit of 1 year for the Liquidity Fund 
 Maturity limit of 10 years and one month for the Primary and 

Claims‐Paying Fund 
 No more than 20% of the corporate portfolio (10% of the total 

portfolio) should mature between 8‐10 years for the Primary and 
Claims‐Paying Fund 

 Ratings from at least 2 of the 3 ratings agencies 
 Ratings of at least “A” by Standard & Poor’s or “A2” by Moody’s 

or‐” or “A3” for long‐term securities 
 Ratings of at least “P‐1”, “A” by Fitch OR‐1”, “F‐1+” for short term 

debtsecurities 
 Corporates should not represent more than 50% of the Liquidity 

Fund (including CDs, CP, and BAs) 
 Securities rated in the long‐term “A” ratings of “A‐1” by Standard 

& Poor’s or “P‐1” by Moody’s or “F‐1+” by Fitchcategory should 
not represent more than 30% of the total portfolio 

 Securities rated in the long‐term “A‐/A3” as a subset of “A” 
ratings category should not represent more than 10% of the total 
portfolio and will be part of the total portfolio limit of 30% for “A” 
ratings category 

 2% limit per issuer and 20% industry / sector limit of the 
corporate portfolio 

Long‐
term 
debt 
ratings 
of at 
least “A” 
by 
Standard 
& Poor’s 
or “A2” 
by 
Moody’s 
or “A” 
by Fitch 
OR 
short‐
term 
debt 
ratings 
of “A‐1” 
by 
Standard 
& Poor’s 
or “P‐1” 
by 
Moody’s 
or “F‐1+” 
by Fitch 

Long‐
term 
debt 
ratings 
of at 
least “A” 
by 
Standard 
& Poor’s 
or “A2” 
by 
Moody’s 
or “A” 
by Fitch 
OR 
short‐
term 
debt 
ratings 
of “A‐1” 
by 
Standard 
& Poor’s 
or “P‐1” 
by 
Moody’s 
or “F‐1+” 
by Fitch 

Long‐
term 
debt 
ratings 
of at 
least “A” 
by 
Standard 
& Poor’s 
or “A2” 
by 
Moody’s 
or “A” 
by Fitch 
OR 
short‐
term 
debt 
ratings 
of “A‐1” 
by 
Standard 
& Poor’s 
or “P‐1” 
by 
Moody’s 
or “F‐1+” 
by Fitch 

Other Requirements Exclude: 
 Treasury Inflation 
Protect Security 
(TIPS) 

 Separate Trading of 
Registered Interest 

Exclude: 
 Federal Home 
Loan Bank note 

 Must be purchased 
directly from the 
issuer and are 
eligible for 
purchase by the 
Federal Reserve 
System 

 Must be purchased 
directly from the 
issuer 

 Organized in U.S. 
 Total assets must 
be >$500M 

 On Pooled Money 
Investment Board’s 
approved list of 
active issuers 

 Organized in U.S. 
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and Principal of 
Securities (STRIPS) 

 <10% of the 
outstanding paper 
of the issuer 

 If over 15% of the 
fund is invested in 
CP, the dollar‐
weighted average 
maturity of the 
entire fund 
amount cannot 
exceed 31 days 

Primary Fund 

Investment U.S. Treasury Federal Agency 
Banker’s 

Acceptance (BA) 

Certificate of 
Deposit 
(CDs) 

Commercial Paper 
(CP) 

Corporate Bond / 
Note 

Maximum Maturity 5 years Not Permitted Not Permitted Not Permitted Not Permitted Not Permitted 

Maximum Par Value, 
total Portfolio 

None Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Maximum Par Value 
Per Name 

None Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Maximum Par Value 
Per Maturity 

None Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Credit Full faith and credit of 
the Federal 
Government 

Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Other Requirements Exclude: 
 Treasury Inflation 
Protect Security (TIPS) 

 Separate Trading of 
Registered Interest 
and Principal of 
Securities (STRIPS) 

Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable 
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Claim‐Paying Fund 

Investment U.S. Treasury Federal Agency 
Banker’s 

Acceptance (BA) 

Certificate of 
Deposit 
(CDs) 

Commercial paper 
(CP) 

Corporate Bond / 
Note 

Maximum Maturity 5 years 181 days 181 days 181 days 180 days 180 days 
Maximum Par Value, 
Total 

None 50% 25% 25% 25% 25% 

Maximum Par Value 
Per Name 

None 25% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Maximum Par Value 
Per Maturity 

None None None None None None 

Credit Full faith and credit 
of the Federal 
Government 

Implied government 
guarantee ‐ credit 
analysis of 
certain issuing 
agencies 

Long‐term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short‐term debt 
ratings of “A‐1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P‐1” by Moody’s or 
“F‐1+” by Fitch 

Long‐term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short‐term debt 
ratings of “A‐1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P‐1” by Moody’s or 
“F‐1+” by Fitch 

Long‐term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short‐term debt 
ratings of “A‐1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P‐1” by Moody’s or 
“F‐1+” by Fitch 

Long‐term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short‐term debt 
ratings of “A‐1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P‐1” by Moody’s or 
“F‐1+” by Fitch 

Other Requirements Exclude: 
 Treasury Inflation 
Protect Security 
(TIPS) 

 Separate Trading of 
Registered Interest 
and Principal of 
Securities (STRIPS) 

Exclude: 
 Federal Home 
Loan Bank note 

 Must be purchased 
directly from the 
issuer and are 
eligible for 
purchase by the 
Federal Reserve 
System 

 Must be 
purchased directly 
from the issuer 

 Organized in U.S. 
 Total assets must 
be >$500M 

 On Pooled Money 
Investment Board’s 
approved list of 
active issuers 

 <10% of the 
outstanding paper 
of the issuer 

 If over 15% of the 
fund is invested in 
CP, the dollar‐
weighted average 
maturity of the 
entire fund 
amount cannot 
exceed 31 days 

 Organized in U.S. 
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Reinsurance Fund 

Investment U.S. Treasury Federal Agency 
Banker’s 

Acceptance (BA) 

Certificate of 
Deposit 
(CDs) 

Commercial paper 
(CP) 

Corporate Bond / 
Note 

Maximum Maturity 181 days 181 days 181 days 181 days 180 days 180 days 
Maximum Par Value, 
Total 

None 50% 25% 25% 25% 25% 

Maximum Par Value 
Per Name 

None 25% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Maximum Par Value 
Per Maturity 

None None None None None None 

Credit Full faith and credit 
of the Federal 
Government 

Implied government 
guarantee ‐ credit 
analysis of 
certain issuing 
agencies 

Long‐term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short‐term debt 
ratings of “A‐1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P‐1” by Moody’s or 
“F‐1+” by Fitch 

Long‐term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short‐term debt 
ratings of “A‐1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P‐1” by Moody’s or 
“F‐1+” by Fitch 

Long‐term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short‐term debt 
ratings of “A‐1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P‐1” by Moody’s or 
“F‐1+” by Fitch 

Long‐term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short‐term debt 
ratings of “A‐1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P‐1” by Moody’s or 
“F‐1+” by Fitch 

Other Requirements Exclude: 
 Treasury Inflation 
Protect Security 
(TIPS) 

 Separate Trading of 
Registered Interest 
and Principal of 
Securities (STRIPS) 

Exclude: 
 Federal Home 
Loan Bank note 

 Must be purchased 
directly from the 
issuer and are 
eligible for 
purchase by the 
Federal Reserve 
System 

 Must be 
purchased directly 
from the issuer 

 Organized in U.S. 
 Total assets must 
be >$500M 

 On Pooled Money 
Investment Board’s 
approved list of 
active issuers 

 <10% of the 
outstanding paper 
of the issuer 

 If over 15% of the 
fund is invested in 
CP, the dollar‐
weighted average 
maturity of the 
entire fund 
amount cannot 
exceed 31 days 

 Organized in U.S. 
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Mitigation Fund 

Investment U.S. Treasury Federal Agency 
Banker’s 

Acceptance (BA) 

Certificate of 
Deposit 
(CDs) 

Commercial paper 
(CP) 

Corporate Bond / 
Note 

Maximum Maturity 91 days 91 days 91 days 91 days 91 days 91 days 
Maximum Par Value, 
Total 

None 50% 25% 25% 25% 25% 

Maximum Par Value 
Per Name 

None 25% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Maximum Par Value 
Per Maturity 

None None None None None None 

Credit Full faith and credit 
of the Federal 
Government 

Implied government 
guarantee ‐ credit 
analysis of 
certain issuing 
agencies 

Long‐term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short‐term debt 
ratings of “A‐1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P‐1” by Moody’s or 
“F‐1+” by Fitch 

Long‐term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short‐term debt 
ratings of “A‐1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P‐1” by Moody’s or 
“F‐1+” by Fitch 

Long‐term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short‐term debt 
ratings of “A‐1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P‐1” by Moody’s or 
“F‐1+” by Fitch 

Long‐term debt 
ratings of at least “A” 
by Standard & Poor’s 
or “A2” by Moody’s 
or “A” by Fitch OR 
short‐term debt 
ratings of “A‐1” by 
Standard & Poor’s or 
“P‐1” by Moody’s or 
“F‐1+” by Fitch 

Other Requirements Exclude: 
 Treasury Inflation 
Protect Security 
(TIPS) 

 Separate Trading of 
Registered Interest 
and Principal of 
Securities (STRIPS) 

Exclude: 
 Federal Home 
Loan Bank note 

 Must be purchased 
directly from the 
issuer and are 
eligible for 
purchase by the 
Federal Reserve 
System 

 Must be 
purchased directly 
from the issuer 

 Organized in U.S. 
 Total assets must 
be >$500M 

 On Pooled Money 
Investment Board’s 
approved list of 
active issuers 

 <10% of the 
outstanding paper 
of the issuer 

 If over 15% of the 
fund is invested in 
CP, the dollar‐
weighted average 
maturity of the 
entire fund 
amount cannot 
exceed 31 days 

 Organized in U.S. 
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California Government Code, Statute 16430 

“Eligible securities for the investment of surplus moneys shall be any of the following: 
“(a) Bonds or interest‐bearing notes or obligations of the United States, or those for which the faith and credit of the United States 

are pledged for the payment of principal and interest. 
“(b) Bonds or interest‐bearing notes on obligations that are guaranteed as to principal and interest by a federal agency of the 

United States. 
“(c) Bonds, notes, and warrants of this state, or those for which the faith and credit of this state are pledged for the payment of 

principal and interest. 
“(d) Bonds or warrants, including, but not limited to, revenue warrants, of any county, city, metropolitan water district, California 

water district, California water storage district, irrigation district in the state, municipal utility district, or school district of this state. 
“(e) Any of the following: 
“(1) Bonds, consolidated bonds, collateral trust debentures, consolidated debentures, or other obligations issued by federal land 

banks or federal intermediate credit banks established under the Federal Farm Loan Act, as amended (12 U.S.C. Sec. 2001 et seq.). 
“(2) Debentures and consolidated debentures issued by the Central Bank for Cooperatives and banks for cooperatives established 

under the Farm Credit Act of 1933, as amended (12 U.S.C. Sec. 2001 et seq.). 
“(3) Bonds or debentures of the Federal Home Loan Bank Board established under the Federal Home Loan Bank Act (12 U.S.C. Sec. 

1421 et seq.). 
“(4) Stocks, bonds, debentures, and other obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association established under the National 

Housing Act, as amended (12 U.S.C. Sec. 1701 et seq.). 
“(5) Bonds of any federal home loan bank established under that act. 
“(6) Obligations of the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation. 
“(7) Bonds, notes, and other obligations issued by the Tennessee Valley Authority under the Tennessee Valley Authority Act, as 

amended (16 U.S.C. Sec. 831 et seq.). 
“(8) Other obligations guaranteed by the Commodity Credit Corporation for the export of California agricultural products under the 

Commodity Credit Corporation Charter Act, as amended (15 U.S.C. Sec. 714 et seq.). 
“(f)(1) Commercial paper of “prime” quality as defined by a nationally recognized organization that rates these securities, if the 

commercial paper is issued by a federally or state‐chartered bank or a state‐licensed branch of a foreign bank, corporation, trust, or 
limited liability company that is approved by the Pooled Money Investment Board as meeting the conditions specified in either 
subparagraph (A) or subparagraph (B): 

“(A) Both of the following conditions: 
“(i) Organized and operating within the United States. 
“(ii) Having total assets in excess of five hundred million dollars ($500,000,000). 
“(B) Both of the following conditions: 
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“(i) Organized within the United States as a federally or state‐chartered bank or a state‐licensed branch of a foreign bank, special 
purpose corporation, trust, or limited liability company. 

“(ii) Having programwide credit enhancements including, but not limited to, overcollateralization, letters of credit, or surety bond. 
“(2) A purchase of eligible commercial paper may not do any of the following: 
“(A) Exceed 270 days maturity. 
“(B) Represent more than 10 percent of the outstanding paper of an issuing federally or state‐chartered bank or a state‐licensed 

branch of a foreign bank, corporation, trust, or limited liability company. 
“(C) Exceed 30 percent of the resources of an investment program. 
“(3) At the request of the Pooled Money Investment Board, an investment made pursuant to this subdivision shall be secured by 

the issuer by depositing with the Treasurer securities authorized by Section 53651 of a market value at least 10 percent in excess of the 
amount of the state's investment. 

“(g) Bills of exchange or time drafts drawn on and accepted by a commercial bank, otherwise known as bankers acceptances, that 
are eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve System. 

“(h) Negotiable certificates of deposits issued by a federally or state‐chartered bank or savings and loan association, a state‐licensed 
branch of a foreign bank, or a federally or state‐chartered credit union. For the purposes of this section, negotiable certificates of 
deposits are not subject to Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 16500) and Chapter 4.5 (commencing with Section 16600). 

“(i) The portion of bank loans and obligations guaranteed by the United States Small Business Administration or the United States 
Farmers Home Administration. 

“(j) Bank loans and obligations guaranteed by the Export‐Import Bank of the United States. 
“(k) Student loan notes insured under the Guaranteed Student Loan Program established pursuant to the Higher Education Act of 

1965, as amended (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1001 et seq.) and eligible for resale to the Student Loan Marketing Association established pursuant 
to Section 133 of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1087‐2). 

“(l) Obligations issued, assumed, or guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, the Inter‐American 
Development Bank, the Asian Development Bank, the African Development Bank, the International Finance Corporation, or the 
Government Development Bank of Puerto Rico. 

“(m) Bonds, debentures, and notes issued by corporations organized and operating within the United States. Securities eligible for 
investment under this subdivision shall be within the top three ratings of a nationally recognized rating service. 

“(n) Negotiable Order of Withdrawal Accounts (NOW Accounts), invested in accordance with Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 
16500).” 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Investment Policies 

Adopted: June [x], 2021 
Revised: 09/12/18 (Format Change Only) 
Revised: 12/16/15 
Revised: 08/01/02 
Revised: 06/20/02 
Revised: 10/28/99 
Revised: 05/28/98 
Revised: 10/09/97 
Revised: 11/01/96 
Adopted: 10/07/96 

DEFINITIONS 

“Applicable Laws and Regulations” or “Legal Restrictions” means California Insurance Code 
section 10089.6, subdivision (b)(1), California Government Code section 16430, and California 
Code of Regulations, Title 10, section 2697.4, as well as any amendments or successor 
provisions to those sections. 

“Business Day” or “Business Days” means a day or days other than Saturdays, Sundays, or state 
holidays. 

“CEA Portfolio” or “Portfolio” means the entirety of all the individual Funds of the California 
Earthquake Authority Fund collectively, i.e., the Primary Fund, the Liquidity Fund, the Claim-
Paying Fund, the Reinsurance Fund, and the Mitigation Fund. 

“Daily” refers to Business Days. 

“Financial Advisor” means a firm contracted by the CEA to provide analysis for the CEA 
concerning debt issuance and that may, if contracted to do so, provide services related to 
oversight of the CEA’s Investment Managers. 

“Fund” means a fund within the California Earthquake Authority Fund such as, but not by way 
of limitation, the CEA’s Primary Fund, Liquidity Fund, Claim-Paying Fund, Claims-Paying 
Fund, Reinsurance Fund, and Earthquake Loss Mitigation Fund. 
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“Investment Manager” means a firm or firms contracted by the CEA to invest monies on its 
behalf, in accordance with all Applicable Laws and Regulations and the CEA’s Investment 
Policies. 

“Investment” refers to a Security purchased for, and owned by, the CEA. 

“Modified Duration” is the average length of time to receive the present value of bond cash 
flows. 

A “Security” is a financial instrument before it is purchased for, or owned by, the CEA. 

PHILOSOPHY 

The California Earthquake Authority (CEA) is an insurance provider whose primary business is to 
pay policyholder claims in a timely manner while maintaining quality customer service and a 
sound financial posture. In furtherance of those goals, the CEA should have Investment Policies 
that provide for the following prioritized goals: 

1) Safety and preservation of principal; 
2) Liquidity, so that claims can be paid in a timely manner; and 
3) Competitive returns (yield). 

As a public instrumentality, created by act of the California state government, the CEA discloses 
much of its operations and investment activity. The integrity of the CEA’s investment activities 
should be above that of private sector organizations conducting comparable business 
operations. Therefore, the CEA has the social and ethical obligation to require that Investments 
made on its behalf and held in its accounts be in corporations and entities that meet a high 
standard of conduct in their operations. Still, the investment of CEA assets should appropriately 
reflect sound judgment that each Investment will produce an attractive rate of return, within 
the bounds of all Applicable Laws and Regulations and these Investment Policies. 

PRINCIPLES 

After the primary goals of safety and preservation of principal and attention to appropriate 
liquidity requirements are met, rate of return must be considered. Safe and prudent 
investment management will be the primary and underlying criterion for the selection of 
Securities and retention and disposition of Investments. 

Non-economic factors will supplement profit factors in making investment decisions.  Non-
economic factors are defined as those considerations not directly related to providing for the 
safety of principal, maintaining adequate liquidity, and maximizing income, but which seek to 
ensure that in making or holding its Investments, the CEA does not, either through action or 
inaction, promote, condone, or facilitate social or environmental injury.  

Social or environmental injury may be said to exist when the activities of a corporation serve to 
undermine basic human rights and dignities, or when the CEA perceives that the practices of a 
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1) The sale of weapons and technology to governments known to engage in the 
systematic suppression of human rights; and 

2) The sale of goods to, or the purchase of goods from, countries known to employ 
forced labor. 

C. Practices that endanger human health, including: 

1) The sale and distribution of known contaminated products; 
2) The sale and distribution of dangerous drugs; and 
3) The sale of goods to, or the purchase of goods from, companies known to 

disregard worker safety. 

In addition, it is the CEA’s policy not to invest in expatriate companies. Expatriate companies 
are defined as U.S. corporations that relocate their “principal office,” for tax purposes only, to 
offshore tax havens. 

Investments shall not be selected or rejected based solely on non-economic factors. In general, 
non-economic factors, to the extent known after reasonable investigation, should be 
considered after all relevant financial criteria and Legal Restrictions have been satisfied. 

The CEA Portfolio will be managed to ensure the safety of the Portfolio by investing in high-
quality fixed-income Securities with limited durations. 

PRUDENT INVESTOR STANDARD 

In addition to complying with the Investment Policy and all Applicable Laws and Regulations, all 
CEA Portfolio Investments and evaluation of such Investments shall be made with regard to the 

corporation result in undesirable side effects for others and that those side effects are 
substantial in nature. Side effects that may be deemed undesirable and substantial include, but 
are not limited to, the following: 

A. Subject to current federal, state, and local law, any practice that is known to endanger, 
directly or indirectly, human health or the environment: 

B. Practices that result in the suppression of human rights, including: 

“prudent investor” standard of care, that is, with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under 
the circumstances then prevailing, that persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence 
exercise in the professional management of their business affairs, not for speculation, but for 
investment, considering the probable safety of their capital, including liquidity of the 
Investment, as well as the probable income to be derived. 

ETHICS, AVOIDANCE OF CONFLICT OF INTERESTS, AND COMPLIANCE WITH INVESTMENT 
ADVISERS ACT OF 1940 
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No officer or employee of the CEA, or of any firm contracted with the CEA involved in the 
investment of CEA Portfolio, shall engage in any personal or business activity that may conflict 
with proper execution of the CEA’s investment program or that may impair his or her ability to 
make impartial investment decisions for the CEA. Any personal investments in entities that do 
business with the CEA, either by contract or where the CEA has Investments with that entity, 
shall be disclosed as required in regulations of the Fair Political Practice Commission (using its 
Form 700, which shall be filed according to law) and the CEA’s Conflict of Interest Code. 

The CEA’s Financial Advisor and Investment Managers shall ensure that they are registered 
with, and comply with the rules, advice, rulings, and regulations of, the Securities and Exchange 
Commission as an investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 that is 
licensed to choose investments for clients. The CEA’s Financial Advisor and Investment 
Managers shall procure and fully and currently maintain the permits and licenses, if any, 
necessary to advise the CEA on investments and to make investments on the CEA’s behalf. 

PERMISSIBLE INVESTMENTS 

In accordance with California Insurance Code section 10089.6, subdivision (b), paragraph (1), 
Investments made by the CEA or on behalf of the CEA shall be made in compliance with 
California Government Code section 16430, as section 16430 is in effect at the time the 
Investment is made. California Government Code section 16430 may be amended from time to 
time, and the CEA’s Financial Advisor and Investment Managers shall be responsible for being 
aware and informed of any amendments to section 16430 and to all Applicable Laws and 
Regulations. 

The CEA’s Portfolio may be invested in any of the following securities listed below and detailed 
in the Permitted Investments section: 

• Treasury securities including TIPS and Floating Rate Notes; 

• Federal Agency securities including Floating Rate Notes; 

• Other Agency securities; 

• International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, the Inter-American 
Development Bank, the Asian Development Bank, the African Development Bank, the 
International Finance Corporation (“Supranationals”); 

• Commercial Paper; 

• Certificates of Deposit; 

• Bankers Acceptances; and 

• Corporate Bonds including Notes and Floating Rate Notes 

COMPLIANCE 

These Investment Policies, and all Applicable Laws and Regulations, shall be observed by 
the CEA’s Independent Financial Advisor and acted on by all Investment Managers in the 
course of their administration of CEA Funds. All Investment Policies are subject to 
continual monitoring and review by the CEA’s Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”). 
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A trade executed for the CEA’s Portfolio shall be deemed to be in compliance with these 
Investment Policies if, as of the trade date, the trade met both (A) the requirements of the 
Investment Policy and (B) all Applicable Laws and Regulations. Notwithstanding, however, the 
deemed trade-day compliance of any individual trade, if at the close of any day any fund 
maturity or duration exceeds the limit stated in these Investment Policies or the ratings are 
below the minimum ratings requirement as stated in the Investment Policy, the Investment 
Manager must, within one business day, consult with the CEA in order that the CEA in its sole 
discretion, may provide a directive to correct maturity or duration limit or any other action 
needed for correction of ratings downgrade; if the CEA (or his or her designee) provides no such 
directive, the Investment Manager must bring the exceeded maturity or duration limit or 
ratings back into compliance with these Investment Policies as soon as reasonably possible. 

The CEA will perform Daily quality-assurance checks of the Portfolio and of each Fund (or 
portion of a Fund in the case where an Investment Manager is managing a defined portion of a 
Fund) to ensure compliance with these Investment Policies and with all Applicable Laws and 
Regulations. If the CEA becomes aware of any noncompliance with any Investment Policy, the 
CEA will contact the Investment Manager immediately to discuss the situation so that the CEA 
may determine the appropriate actions to be taken by the Investment Manager and CEA to 
bring the Fund into compliance; if an Investment Manager or the Financial Advisor becomes 
aware of any noncompliance with any Investment Policy, it shall contact the CEA immediately 
to discuss the situation so that the CEA may determine the appropriate actions to be taken by 
the Investment Manager and CEA to bring the Fund into compliance. 

The performance by CEA of a Daily quality-assurance check does not relieve any CEA 
Investment Manager of its respective independent duties to ensure that all Investments made 
and held for the CEA comply with these Investment Policies and all Applicable Laws and 
Regulations. CEA’s failure to discover, or failure to report the discovery to the CEA’s Financial 
Advisor or Investment Managers (or any of them), any noncompliance, does not constitute (A) 
CEA’s acceptance or ratification of that noncompliance or (B) any waiver by CEA of its right to 
require compliance by Investment Managers with these Investment Policies and all Applicable 
Laws and Regulations. 

THE CEA PORTFOLIO 
For the purposes of these Investment Policies, the “CEA Portfolio” consists of the following 
Funds: 

• Mitigation Fund 
o This fund consists of one custody account, which fund mitigation-related 

activities. 

• Liquidity Fund 
o This fund consists of one custody account, which provides funds used for 

CEA’s operational cash-flow. 

• Primary Fund 
o This fund consists of a number of custody accounts, which primarily provide 

funds for paying CEA claims and claim expenses. 

• Claim-Paying Fund 
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o This fund consists of a number of custody accounts, which receive the 
proceeds of CEA’s debt issuances. 

• Reinsurance Fund 
o This fund may consist of one or more custody accounts, which receive 

reinsurance recoverables collected after earthquake events. 

RATINGS AND MATURITY LIMIT 

• Treasury securities 
o Mitigation: Maturity limit of 91 days 
o Liquidity: Maturity limit of 1 year 
o Primary and Claims: Maturity limit of 10 years and one month 

• Federal Agency securities, other Agency securities 
o Mitigation: Maturity limit of 91 days 
o Liquidity: Maturity limit of 1 year 
o Primary and Claims: Maturity limit of 10 years and one month 

• Supranationals 
o Mitigation: Maturity limit of 91 days 
o Liquidity: Maturity limit of 1 year 
o 

• Commercial Paper 
o Mitigation: Not permissible 
o 

• Certificates of Deposit 
o 
o 

Liquidity, Primary, and Claims: Yes, for those that are eligible for purchase by the 

▪ Maturity limit of 1 year for Liquidity, 10 years and one month for Primary 
and Claims and no more than 20% of maximum corporate allocation may 
have maturities greater than 8 years but less than 10 years 

Primary and Claims: Maturity limit of 10 years and one month 

Liquidity, Primary, and Claims: Maturity limit of 270 days 

Mitigation: Not permissible 
Liquidity, Primary, and Claims: For those issued by a federally or state-chartered 
bank or savings and loan association, a state-licensed branch of a foreign bank, 
or a federally or state-chartered credit union and with a maturity limit of 1 year 

• Bankers Acceptances 
o Mitigation: Not permissible 
o 

Federal Reserve System, maximum maturity of 1 year 

• Corporate Bonds/Notes 
o Mitigation: Not permissible 
o Liquidity, Primary, and Claims 

▪ Ratings from at least two of three rating agencies of at least: 

• “A-” from S&P, “A-” from Fitch, or “A3” from Moody’s for long-
term securities (securities rated “A-”/“A3”, “A”/“A2”, “A+”/“A1” 
should be not represent more than 30% of the total portfolio and 
securities rated “A-”/“A3” should not represent more than 10% of 
the total portfolio and will be part of the total portfolio limit of 
30% for “A” ratings category) - No ratings below “A-” or “A3” is 
allowed 
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• “A-1” from S&P, “F-1+” from Fitch, or “P-1” from Moody’s for 
short-term securities - No ratings below “A-1”or ”F-1+” or “P-1” is 
allowed 

▪ 2% limit per issuer and 20% industry / sector limit of the corporate 
portfolio 

The “maximum maturity” requirement summarized above and listed in detail in the table in the 
Permitted Investments section is defined as the number of days from trade date to maturity 
date, including the trade date but excluding the maturity date.  

The minimum rating requirement for each Security is further defined within the Permissible 
Investments section, above, and in the Fund Permitted Investments section, below. 

If any Investment held in any CEA Fund is downgraded below the credit quality required by the 
Applicable Laws and Regulations, or below the credit quality required by these Investment 
Policies, the CEA, in consultation with its Financial Advisor, will determine whether to retain the 
Investment or to divest CEA of the Investment. Evaluation of divestiture of Investments will be 
made on a case-by-case basis.  

DURATION 

The Mitigation Fund shall have a maximum Modified Duration of no greater than 91 days. 
The Liquidity Fund shall have a maximum Modified Duration of no greater than 181 days. 
The Primary Fund shall have a maximum Modified Duration of no greater than five (5) years.  
The Claims-Paying Fund shall have a maximum Modified Duration of no greater than six (6) 
years. 

COMPOSITION 

Mitigation Fund 

• Treasury securities should represent at least 50% of the portfolio 

• Federal Agency and Other Agency securities and Supranationals should not represent 
more than 50% of the portfolio with no one agency representing more than 5% of the 
portfolio 

Liquidity Fund 

• Treasury securities should represent at least 50% of the portfolio 

• Federal Agency and Other Agency securities and Supranationals should not represent 
more than 25% of the portfolio with no one agency representing more than 5% of the 
portfolio 

• Commercial Paper shall not exceed 25% of the total portfolio 

• Corporate securities should not represent more than 50% of the portfolio (including 
Certificates of Deposit, Commercial Paper, and Banker Acceptances) with a 2% issuer 
limit and 20% industry / sector limit 

Primary Fund 
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• Treasury securities should represent at least 50% of the portfolio 

• Federal Agency and Other Agency securities and Supranationals should not represent 
more than 25% of the portfolio with no one agency representing more than 5% of the 
portfolio 

• Commercial Paper shall not exceed 10% of the total portfolio 

• Corporate securities should not represent more than 50% of the portfolio (including 
Certificates of Deposit, Commercial Paper, and Banker Acceptances) with a 2% issuer 
limit and 20% industry / sector limit 

Claims-Paying Fund 

• Treasury securities should represent at least 40% of the portfolio 

• Federal Agency and Other Agency securities and Supranationals should not represent 
more than 25% of the portfolio with no one agency representing more than 5% of the 
portfolio 

• Commercial Paper shall not exceed 10% of the total portfolio 

• Corporate securities should not represent more than 50% of the portfolio (including 
Certificates of Deposit, Commercial Paper, and Banker Acceptances) with a 2% issuer 
limit and 20% industry / sector limit 

CUSTODY 

All CEA Investments shall be secured or held by a custody bank.  

UNINVESTED CASH 

Each Investment Manager shall seek to minimize the amount of cash remaining at the end of a 
Business Day that is not invested in a manner consistent with the Investment Policy. 
Any un-invested moneys in the Portfolios may be held un-invested pending cash investment, 
distribution, resolution of a dispute, or for other operational reasons and may be deposited in 
the associated sweep account prior to the Fed wire cut off time. 

NEGATIVE YIELDS 

The Investment Managers are encouraged to hold cash until an allowable Security with a positive 
yield becomes available. The Investment Managers must notify the CEA when yields are negative. 

MINIMUM TRADE RETURN 

    

      

        
           

    

       
       

      

  

      

        
           

    

       
       

      

 

      

  

          
         

          
          

       

  

           
        

  

       
            

     

  

        
   

  

Subject to guidance from the CEA, Investment Managers should not execute a trade if the 
expected return is less than the cost of executing the trade. If any Investment Manager believes 
that circumstances warrant making such a trade, it must contact the CEA. 

INVESTMENT GOALS 

Consistent with the CEA’s published Investment Philosophy, and in order of priority, the CEA’s 
investment goals are: 
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eligible claims can be met; if unforeseen cash needs arise, the CEA or another 
individual designated by the CEA will work with individual Managers when needed 
to plan to meet liquidity requirements. 

3) Rate of Return 
Investments shall be made in such a way as to realize the maximum return 
consistent with the principles of prudence expressed in the CEA’s Investment 
Philosophy and these Guidelines. 

The investments in the Portfolio are primarily buy and hold but investments may be sold to: 

• Provide liquidity, 

• Address deterioration in the credit quality of an issuer, or 

• Purchase an Investment that better meets the current needs of the Portfolio, after 
notification to and consultation with the CEA. 

REPORTING 

Each Investment Manager shall report to the CEA, via email by 9:00 a.m. Pacific Time each 
Business Day, the previous day’s holdings in each Fund, or a portion of the Fund, under its 
management. 

For each Investment it makes, the Investment Manager shall transmit to the CEA, via email sent 
by 11:00 a.m. Pacific Time on the trade date, a copy of the trade ticket generated for that 
Investment transaction. The CEA will use this trade ticket in the Daily quality assurance process 
and to update CEA’s investment accounting system and other trade-related information as 
requested by the CEA (or his or her designee). 

1) Portfolio Safety 
Under these Investment Policies, the Portfolio shall contain a sufficient number 
with multiple maturity dates of securities so that a reasonable portion of the 
Portfolio can be readily converted to cash at a price closely approximating 
amortized cost. 

2) Liquidity 
The Portfolio shall be managed to ensure that the CEA’s usual cash needs to pay 

Each Investment Manager shall compile a monthly report of each Fund, or a portion of the 
Fund, managed by the Investment Manager and deliver the report electronically to the CEA on 
or by the fifth Business Day of the following month. The report shall contain information as 
requested by the CEA (or his or her designee). 

PERMITTED INVESTMENTS 

The following tables list permissible Investment types for each Fund in the CEA Portfolio that 
comply with both Applicable Laws and Regulations and the CEA’s Investment Policies. In the 
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event, however, that any requirement below may appear to be inconsistent with any of the 
Applicable Laws and Regulations, the Applicable Laws and Regulations shall be followed, and 
the Investment Manager shall immediately notify the CEA of any such inconsistency.  If there is 
any question regarding any table or any permissible Investment described in the table, the 
Investment Manager shall contact the CEA for clarification. 

CEA staff may issue interpretive memorandum for the intended purpose to further enhance 
understanding of the Investment Policy or provide guidance for matters not covered by the 
Investment Policy. 

PROHIBITTED INVESTMENTS 

prohibited. 

All structured securities are prohibited. 
All non-US Corporate Securities are prohibited. 
All 144A Securities are prohibited. 

Due to the nature of the environmental risk from the consumption of fossil fuel, investments in 
corporations whose primary business or majority of revenues are derived from fossil fuel are 
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-Investment Mitigation Liquidity Primary Claims Paying 

U.S. Treasury Yes, maturity limit of 91 
days and should 
represent at least 50% 
of the portfolio 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 year and 
should represent at least 50% of 
the portfolio 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years 
and one month and should 
represent at least 50% of the 
portfolio 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years 
and one month and should 
represent at least 40% of the 
portfolio 

U.S. Agency Yes, maturity limit of 91 
days, single agency limit 
of 5%, and should not 
represent more than 
50% of the portfolio 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 year, 
single agency limit of 5%, and 
should not represent more than 
25% of the portfolio 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and one month, single agency limit of 
5% and should not represent more than 25% of the portfolio 

Federal Land Banks or Federal 
Intermediate Credit Banks 

Yes, maturity limit of 91 
days (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 year (part 
of Agency allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and one month (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Central Bank for Cooperatives Yes, maturity limit of 91 
days (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 year (part 
of Agency allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and one month (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Federal Home Loan Bank Yes, maturity limit of 91 
days (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 year (part 
of Agency allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and one month (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Federal National Mortgage 
Association 

Yes, maturity limit of 91 
days (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 year (part 
of Agency allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and one month (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
Corporation 

Yes, maturity limit of 91 
days (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 year (part 
of Agency allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and one month (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Tennessee Valley Authority Yes, maturity limit of 91 
days (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 year (part 
of Agency allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and one month (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Commodity Credit Corporation for 
the Export of California Agricultural 
Products 

Yes, maturity limit of 91 
days (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 year (part 
of Agency allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and one month (part of Agency 
allocation) 

United States Small Business 
Administration or the United States 
Farmers Home Administration 

Yes, maturity limit of 91 
days (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 year (part 
of Agency allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and one month (part of Agency 
allocation) 
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-Investment Mitigation Liquidity Primary Claims Paying 

Export-Import Bank of the United 
States 

Yes, maturity limit of 91 
days (part of Agency 
allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 year (part 
of Agency allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and one month (part of Agency 
allocation) 

International Bank for 
Reconstruction and Development, 
the Inter-American Development 
Bank, the Asian Development Bank, 
the African Development Bank, the 
International Finance Corporation, 
the Government Development Bank 
of Puerto Rico 

Yes, maturity limit of 91 
days (exclude GDB of 
Puerto Rico) (part of 
Agency allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 1 year 
(exclude GDB of Puerto Rico) 
(part of Agency allocation) 

Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and one month (exclude GDB of Puerto 
Rico) (part of Agency allocation) 

Bankers Acceptances No Yes, for those that are eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve System, maximum maturity of 1 year 

Negotiable Certificates of Deposits No Yes, for those issued by a federally or state-chartered bank or savings and loan association, a state-
licensed branch of a foreign bank, or a federally or state-chartered credit union and with a maturity limit 
of 1 year 

Negotiable Order of Withdrawal 
Accounts (NOW Accounts) 

Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Student Loan Marketing Association No No No No 

California Municipals No No No No 

Commercial Paper No Yes 

• Approved by the Pooled Money Investment Board by (A) being organized and operating within the 
U.S. and having total assets in excess of $500MM OR (B) organized within the U.S. as a federally or 
state-chartered bank or a state-licensed branch of a foreign bank, special purpose corporation, trust, 
or limited liability company and having program-wide credit enhancements 

• Not exceeding 270 days 

• Not represent more than 10% of outstanding CP of an issuing federally or state-chartered bank or a 
state-licensed branch of a foreign bank, corporation, trust, or limited liability company 

• Not exceeding 25% of the total portfolio for the Liquidity Fund 

• Not exceeding 10% of the total portfolio for each the Primary and Claims-Paying Fund 
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-Investment Mitigation Liquidity Primary Claims Paying 

Corporate Bonds / Notes No Yes 

• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• 

• 

Maturity limit of 1 year for the Liquidity Fund 

Maturity limit of 10 years and one month for the Primary and Claims-Paying Fund 

No more than 20% of the corporate portfolio (10% of the total portfolio) should mature between 8-10 
years for the Primary and Claims-Paying Fund 

Ratings from at least 2 of the 3 ratings agencies 
Ratings of at least “A-” or “A3” for long-term securities 

Ratings of at least “P-1”, “A-1”, “F-1+” for short-term securities 

Corporates should not represent more than 50% of the Liquidity Fund (including CDs, CP, and BAs) 

Securities rated in the long-term “A” ratings category should not represent more than 30% of the total 
portfolio 

Securities rated in the long-term “A-/A3” as a subset of “A” ratings category should not represent 
more than 10% of the total portfolio and will be part of the total portfolio limit of 30% for “A” ratings 
category 

2% limit per issuer and 20% industry / sector limit of the corporate portfolio 
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“(a) Bonds or interest-bearing notes or obligations of the United States, or those for which the faith and credit of the United States 
are pledged for the payment of principal and interest. 

“(b) Bonds or interest-bearing notes on obligations that are guaranteed as to principal and interest by a federal agency of the 
United States. 

“(c) Bonds, notes, and warrants of this state, or those for which the faith and credit of this state are pledged for the payment of 
principal and interest. 

“(d) Bonds or warrants, including, but not limited to, revenue warrants, of any county, city, metropolitan water district, California 
water district, California water storage district, irrigation district in the state, municipal utility district, or school district of this state. 

“(e) Any of the following: 
“(1) Bonds, consolidated bonds, collateral trust debentures, consolidated debentures, or other obligations issued by federal land 

banks or federal intermediate credit banks established under the Federal Farm Loan Act, as amended (12 U.S.C. Sec. 2001 et seq.). 
“(2) Debentures and consolidated debentures issued by the Central Bank for Cooperatives and banks for cooperatives established 

under the Farm Credit Act of 1933, as amended (12 U.S.C. Sec. 2001 et seq.). 
“(3) Bonds or debentures of the Federal Home Loan Bank Board established under the Federal Home Loan Bank Act (12 U.S.C. Sec. 

1421 et seq.). 
“(4) Stocks, bonds, debentures, and other obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association established under the National 

Housing Act, as amended (12 U.S.C. Sec. 1701 et seq.). 
“(5) Bonds of any federal home loan bank established under that act. 
“(6) Obligations of the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation. 
“(7) Bonds, notes, and other obligations issued by the Tennessee Valley Authority under the Tennessee Valley Authority Act, as 

amended (16 U.S.C. Sec. 831 et seq.). 
“(8) Other obligations guaranteed by the Commodity Credit Corporation for the export of California agricultural products under the 

Commodity Credit Corporation Charter Act, as amended (15 U.S.C. Sec. 714 et seq.). 
“(f)(1) Commercial paper of “prime” quality as defined by a nationally recognized organization that rates these securities, if the 

commercial paper is issued by a federally or state-chartered bank or a state-licensed branch of a foreign bank, corporation, trust, or 
limited liability company that is approved by the Pooled Money Investment Board as meeting the conditions specified in either 
subparagraph (A) or subparagraph (B): 

“(A) Both of the following conditions: 

California Government Code, Statute 16430 

“Eligible securities for the investment of surplus moneys shall be any of the following: 

June [x], 2021 Page 14 of 15 
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“(i) Organized within the United States as a federally or state-chartered bank or a state-licensed branch of a foreign bank, special 
purpose corporation, trust, or limited liability company. 

“(ii) Having programwide credit enhancements including, but not limited to, overcollateralization, letters of credit, or surety bond. 

“(j) Bank loans and obligations guaranteed by the Export-Import Bank of the United States. 

to Section 133 of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1087-2). 

Government Development Bank of Puerto Rico. 

“(2) A purchase of eligible commercial paper may not do any of the following: 
“(A) Exceed 270 days maturity. 
“(B) Represent more than 10 percent of the outstanding paper of an issuing federally or state-chartered bank or a state-licensed 

branch of a foreign bank, corporation, trust, or limited liability company. 
“(C) Exceed 30 percent of the resources of an investment program. 
“(3) At the request of the Pooled Money Investment Board, an investment made pursuant to this subdivision shall be secured by 

the issuer by depositing with the Treasurer securities authorized by Section 53651 of a market value at least 10 percent in excess of the 
amount of the state's investment. 

“(g) Bills of exchange or time drafts drawn on and accepted by a commercial bank, otherwise known as bankers acceptances, that 
are eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve System. 

“(h) Negotiable certificates of deposits issued by a federally or state-chartered bank or savings and loan association, a state-licensed 
branch of a foreign bank, or a federally or state-chartered credit union. For the purposes of this section, negotiable certificates of 
deposits are not subject to Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 16500) and Chapter 4.5 (commencing with Section 16600). 

“(i) The portion of bank loans and obligations guaranteed by the United States Small Business Administration or the United States 
Farmers Home Administration. 

“(k) Student loan notes insured under the Guaranteed Student Loan Program established pursuant to the Higher Education Act of 
1965, as amended (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1001 et seq.) and eligible for resale to the Student Loan Marketing Association established pursuant 

“(l) Obligations issued, assumed, or guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, the Inter-American 
Development Bank, the Asian Development Bank, the African Development Bank, the International Finance Corporation, or the 

“(m) Bonds, debentures, and notes issued by corporations organized and operating within the United States. Securities eligible for 
investment under this subdivision shall be within the top three ratings of a nationally recognized rating service. 

“(n) Negotiable Order of Withdrawal Accounts (NOW Accounts), invested in accordance with Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 
16500).” 
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DRAFT 

Investment 16430 Current CEA Proposed CEA 

U.S. Treasury Yes Liquidity: Yes, maturity limit of 181 days 
Primary: Yes, maturity limit of 5 years 
Claims: Yes, maturity limit of 5 years 

Liquidity: Yes, maturity limit of 1 year and should 
represent at least 50% of the portfolio 
Primary: Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and one month 
and should represent at least 50% of the portfolio 
Claims: Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and one month and 
should represent at least 40% of the portfolio 

U.S. Agency Yes Primary: No 
Liquidity and Claims: Yes, maturity limit of 
181 days 

Liquidity: Yes, maturity limit of 1 year, single agency limit 
of 5%, and should not represent more than 25% of the 
portfolio 
Primary and Claims: Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and 
one month, single agency limit of 5% and should not 
represent more than 25% of the portfolio 

California Municipals • Bonds / notes of the 
State (CA), or those 
for which the faith 
and credit of CA are 
pledged 

• Bonds / notes of any 
county, city, 
metropolitan water 
district, California 
water district, 
California water 
storage district, 
irrigation district in 
the state, municipal 
utility district, or 
school district of this 
state 

Liquidity, Primary, Claims: No No 

Federal Land Banks or Federal 
Intermediate Credit Banks 

Yes Primary: No 
Liquidity and Claims: Yes, maturity limit of 
181 days 

Liquidity: Yes, maturity limit of 1 year (part of Agency 
allocation) 
Primary and Claims: Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and 
one month (part of Agency allocation) 

Central Bank for Cooperatives Yes Liquidity, Primary, Claims: No Liquidity: Yes, maturity limit of 1 year (part of Agency 
allocation) 
Primary and Claims: Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and 
one month (part of Agency allocation) 

Federal Home Loan Bank Yes Liquidity, Primary, Claims: No Liquidity: Yes, maturity limit of 1 year (part of Agency 
allocation) 
Primary and Claims: Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and 
one month (part of Agency allocation) 
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DRAFT 

Investment 16430 Current CEA Proposed CEA 

Federal National Mortgage 
Association 

Yes Primary: No 
Liquidity and Claims: Yes, maturity limit of 
181 days 

Liquidity: Yes, maturity limit of 1 year (part of Agency 
allocation) 
Primary and Claims: Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and 
one month (part of Agency allocation) 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
Corporation 

Yes Primary: No 
Liquidity and Claims: Yes, maturity limit of 
181 days 

Liquidity: Yes, maturity limit of 1 year (part of Agency 
allocation) 
Primary and Claims: Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and 
one month (part of Agency allocation) 

Tennessee Valley Authority Yes Primary: No 
Liquidity and Claims: Yes, maturity limit of 
181 days 

Liquidity: Yes, maturity limit of 1 year (part of Agency 
allocation) 
Primary and Claims: Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and 
one month (part of Agency allocation) 

Commodity Credit 
Corporation for the Export of 
California Agricultural 
Products 

Yes Liquidity, Primary, Claims: No Liquidity: Yes, maturity limit of 1 year (part of Agency 
allocation) 
Primary and Claims: Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and 
one month (part of Agency allocation) 

Bankers Acceptances Yes, for those that are 
eligible for purchase by 
the Federal Reserve 
System 

Primary: No 
Liquidity and Claims: Yes, for those that are 
eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve 
System 

Liquidity, Primary, Claims: Yes, for those that are eligible 
for purchase by the Federal Reserve System, maximum 
maturity of 1 year 

Negotiable Certificates of 
Deposits 

Yes, for those issued by a 
federally or state-
chartered bank or savings 
and loan association, a 
state-licensed branch of a 
foreign bank, or a federal 
or state-chartered credit 
union 

Primary: No 
Liquidity and Claims: Yes, for those issued by 
a federally or state-chartered bank or savings 
and loan association, a state-licensed branch 
of a foreign bank, or a federally or state-
chartered credit union and with a maturity 
limit of 181 days 

Liquidity, Primary, Claims: Yes, for those issued by a 
federally or state-chartered bank or savings and loan 
association, a state-licensed branch of a foreign bank, or a 
federally or state-chartered credit union and with a 
maturity limit of 1 year 

United States Small Business 
Administration or the United 
States Farmers Home 
Administration 

Yes Primary: No 
Liquidity and Claims: Yes, maturity limit of 
181 days 

Liquidity: Yes, maturity limit of 1 year (part of Agency 
allocation) 
Primary and Claims: Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and 
one month (part of Agency allocation) 

Export-Import Bank of the 
United States 

Yes Primary: No 
Liquidity and Claims: Yes, maturity limit of 
181 days 

Liquidity: Yes, maturity limit of 1 year (part of Agency 
allocation) 
Primary and Claims: Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and 
one month (part of Agency allocation) 

Student Loan Marketing 
Association 

Yes Liquidity, Primary, Claims: No Liquidity, Primary, Claims: No 
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DRAFT 

Investment 16430 Current CEA Proposed CEA 

Negotiable Order of 
Withdrawal Accounts (NOW 
Accounts) 

Yes Liquidity, Primary, Claims: No Liquidity, Primary, Claims: Yes 

International Bank for 
Reconstruction and 
Development, the Inter-
American Development Bank, 
the Asian Development Bank, 
the African Development 
Bank, the International 
Finance Corporation, the 
Government Development 
Bank of Puerto Rico 

Yes Liquidity, Primary, Claims: No Liquidity: Yes, maturity limit of 1 year (exclude GDB of 
Puerto Rico) (part of Agency allocation) 
Primary and Claims: Yes, maturity limit of 10 years and 
one month (exclude GDB of Puerto Rico) (part of Agency 
allocation) 
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DRAFT 

Investment 16430 Current CEA Proposed CEA 

Commercial Paper • 
• 

• 
• 

• 

“Prime” quality 
Approved by the 
Pooled Money 
Investment Board by 
(A) being organized 
and operating within 
the U.S. and having 
total assets in excess 
of $500MM OR 
(B) organized within 
the U.S. as a federally 
or state-chartered 
bank or a state-
licensed branch of a 
foreign bank, special 
purpose corporation, 
trust, or limited 
liability company and 
having program-wide 
credit enhancements 

Not exceed 270 days 

Not represent more 
than 10% of 
outstanding CP of an 
issuing federally or 
state-chartered bank 
or a state-licensed 
branch of a foreign 
bank, corporation, 
trust, or limited 
liability company 

Not exceed 30% of 
the resources of an 
investment program 

Primary: No 
Liquidity and Claims: Yes 

• “Prime” quality 
• Approved by the Pooled Money 

Investment Board by (A) being organized 
and operating within the U.S. and having 
total assets in excess of $500MM OR (B) 
organized within the U.S. as a federally or 
state-chartered bank or a state-licensed 
branch of a foreign bank, special purpose 
corporation, trust, or limited liability 
company and having program-wide credit 
enhancements 

• Not exceed 180 days 

• Not represent more than 10% of 
outstanding CP of an issuing federally or 
state-chartered bank or a state-licensed 
branch of a foreign bank, corporation, 
trust, or limited liability company 

• Not exceed 30% of the resources of an 
investment program 

• If  greater than 15% of the fund is in CP, 
the dollar weighted average maturity of 
the fund cannot exceed 31 days 

Yes 

• Approved by the Pooled Money Investment Board by 
(A) being organized and operating within the U.S. and 
having total assets in excess of $500MM OR (B) 
organized within the U.S. as a federally or state-
chartered bank or a state-licensed branch of a foreign 
bank, special purpose corporation, trust, or limited 
liability company and having program-wide credit 
enhancements 

• Not exceeding 270 days 

• Not represent more than 10% of outstanding CP of an 
issuing federally or state-chartered bank or a state-
licensed branch of a foreign bank, corporation, trust, 
or limited liability company 

• Not exceeding 10% of the total portfolio for Primary 
and Claims and 25% for Liquidity 
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DRAFT 

Investment 16430 Current CEA Proposed CEA 

Corporate Bonds / Notes Yes, for those securities 
within the top three 
ratings of a nationally 
recognized rating service 
(i.e. “A”, “AA”, and “AAA” 
categories or at least “A-
/A3”) 

Primary: No 
Liquidity and Claims: Yes, for those securities 
that are rated at least “A/A2” or “P-1/A-1/F-
1+” with a maturity limit of 180 days 

Yes 

• 

• 
• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Maturity limit of 1 year for Liquidity, 10 years and 
one month for Primary and Claims 

Ratings from at least 2 of the 3 ratings agencies 

Ratings of at least “A-” or “A3” for long-term 
securities 

Ratings of at least “P-1”, “A-1”, “F-1+” for short-term 
securities 

Corporates should not represent more than 50% of 
Liquidity (unchanged), Primary and Claims (including 
CDs, CP, and BAs) 

Securities rated in the long-term “A” ratings category 
should not represent more than 30% of the total 
portfolio 
Securities rated in the long-term “A-/A3” as a subset 
of “A” ratings category should not represent more 
than [10%] of the total portfolio and will be part of 
the total portfolio limit of 30% for “A” ratings 
category 

No more than 20% of the corporate portfolio (10% of 
the total portfolio) for Primary and Claims portfolio 
should mature between 8-10 years for Primary and 
Claims 

2% limit per issuer and 20% industry / sector limit of 
the corporate portfolio 

CEA Proposed Policy Changes – Summary 

Liquidity Fund 
Maintain duration at 181 days and increase maximum maturity limit to 1 year. Corporate exposure (including CP, CDs, and BAs) unchanged at up to 
a maximum of 50% and Agency (including other entities such as International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, Tennessee Valley Authority, 
and Export-Import Bank of the United States) exposure unchanged at up to a maximum of 25%.  Treasury composition should be at least 50%. 

Mitigation Fund 
No changes to the Mitigation Fund. Maintain maximum maturity at 91 days with Treasury composition of at least 50% and Agency (including other 
entities such as International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, Tennessee Valley Authority, and Export-Import Bank of the United States) 
exposure up to a maximum of 50%.  
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DRAFT 

Primary Fund 
Increase duration from three years to five years with a maximum maturity limit of 10 years and one month with a maximum of 20% of corporate 
portfolio (10% of total portfolio) maturing between 8-10 years. Include increased corporate exposure (including CP, CDs, and BAs) up to a maximum 
of 50% and Agency (including other entities such as International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, Tennessee Valley Authority, and Export-
Import Bank of the United States) exposure up to a maximum of 25%.  Treasury composition should be at least 50%. 

Claims-Paying Fund 
Increase duration from three years to six years with a maximum maturity limit of 10 years and one month with a maximum of 20% of corporate 
portfolio (10% of total portfolio) maturing between 8-10 years. Include increased corporate exposure (including CP, CDs, and BAs) up to a maximum 
of 50% and Agency (including other entities such as International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, Tennessee Valley Authority, and Export-
Import Bank of the United States) exposure up to a maximum of 25%.  Treasury composition should be at least 40%. 
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Governing Board Memorandum 

10 June 2021 

Agenda Item 6: Proposed CEA 2021 Revenue Bond Program 

Recommended Action: Approve the initiation of CEA’s Series 2021A and Series 
2021B Revenue Bond Programs 

Background: 

CEA’s governing statutes authorize CEA to use debt (such as bonds, notes, or commercial 
paper) as a mechanism to build claim-paying capacity. CEA is authorized to enter such 
debt transactions before the occurrence of a major earthquake, after an earthquake, or 
both. In CEA’s 25-year history, no major earthquake or series of earthquakes have required 
CEA to issue post-event debt in order to pay claims and claim expenses. To date, CEA has 
exclusively used pre-event debt to enhance claim-paying capacity. 

Specifically, in 2006, the CEA issued $315 million of ten-year revenue bonds (the “Series 
2006” bonds), in 2014, the CEA issued $350 million of revenue bonds with varying 
maturities of up to five years (the “Series 2014” bonds), in 2020, the CEA issued $400 
million of bonds with a three and a half month maturity (the “Series 2020A” bonds) and 
$300 million of bonds with varying maturities of up to two and a half years (the “Series 
2020B” bonds). Of the CEA’s bond issuances, only the Series 2020B bonds are currently 
outstanding in the amount of $250 million. These pre-event revenue bonds have provided 
liquidity, flexibility, and stability for the CEA’s capital structure, and have reduced the need 
for risk transfer purchases. 

The CEA is now prepared to return to the bond market to issue additional bonds and has 
structured a program that includes two series of bonds that are similar to the Series 2020A 
and Series 2020B bonds, including both intermediate and short duration maturities to 
maximize efficiency and flexibility. For the reasons explained below, CEA is recommending 
that the Governing Board authorize CEA to initiate the process of preparing to issue 
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Series 2021A and Series 2021B revenue bonds under the programs described in this 
memorandum and the attachments. 

Analysis: 

In the opinion of CEA’s financial and executive staff and its financial advisor, the CEA is 
in an excellent position to issue pre-event revenue bonds on very favorable terms. The 
current interest-rate environment for high-quality debt issuers is very favorable. In 
addition, CEA’s robust financial condition makes it an attractive issuer for investors. 
Accordingly, staff proposes the issuance of new revenue bonds under a program that 
includes both short and intermediate duration bonds, designated as the “Series 2021A” 
bonds. Proceeds of the issuance of the Series 2021A bonds will augment CEA’s claim-
paying capacity, bolster the CEA’s sustainability, and reduce the amount of risk transfer 
CEA would otherwise need to purchase. 

The proposed Series 2021A revenue bond issuance will be in the aggregate amount 
of $600-700 million, and will be comprised of two subseries: 

• Series 2021A, consisting of $250-300 million in short-term bonds (two-
month maturity), and 

• Series 2021B, consisting of $350-400 million in bonds with maturities from 
two to four years, approximately $[100-150] million of which would mature 
annually. 

Proposed Revenue-Bond Structure: 

Series 2021A 2021B 
Borrower California Earthquake

Authority 
California Earthquake
Authority 

Agent for Sale California State Treasurer California State Treasurer 
Estimated Par Amount $250-$300 million $350-$400 million 
Maturity Two-month Two to four years 
Tax Status Federally taxable (not subject 

to California state income tax) 
Federally taxable (not subject 
to California state income tax) 

Bond type Fixed rate Fixed rate 
Expected Closing Date September / October 2021 September / October 2021 
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Flow of Funds 

CEA will pledge revenue to secure repayment of both sub-series of the proposed 
Series 2021A bonds; the pledged revenue will consist of CEA’s policyholder premium, 
less the commissions and participating-insurer operating costs that CEA’s participating 
insurance companies retain. The Series 2021A principal and interest payments will be 
pre-funded at closing with available capital, which enables the CEA to meet its 
additional bonds test as defined in the Master Trust Indenture. 

All pledged revenue will be deposited with the trustee bank, U.S. Bank. Using the 
deposited revenue, U.S. Bank will fund the pledged revenue account in an amount 
sufficient for timely repayment of bond principal and interest. For a more detailed 
depiction of the flow of funds and accounts, see the attached flow-of-funds charts. 
The Series 2021A bonds are shown on Attachment A, and the Series 2021B bonds are 
shown on Attachment B. 

Disposition and Investment of Revenue-Bond Proceeds 

CEA will commit to use the Series 2021A bond proceeds only to pay policyholder 
claims and claim-related expenses. The proposed revenue bond proceeds will fund a 
pledged revenue account at CEA’s custody bank, State Street Bank. 

CEA’s investment managers will invest the bond proceeds, on behalf of CEA, in 
accordance with the Board-approved investment policies and procedures pertaining 
to CEA’s existing Claims-Paying Fund. Using the investment policy, CEA will be able 
to match the Series 2021A bonds’ interest-rate characteristics to minimize any 
mismatch between investment income and bond-interest payments. Also, because 
the claim-paying account may be accessed to pay claims before the bonds’ maturity, 
using those investment policies ensures that the claim-paying account will consist of 
high-quality liquid securities. 

Key Revenue-Bond Documents 

The following is a brief description of the key documents for the proposed 
Series 2021A bond issuance: 
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Indenture of Trust: The bond indenture of trust is a master agreement between 
the borrower (CEA) and the trustee (U.S. Bank) and presents both the general 
structure of the bond transactions and the respective duties and obligations of 
the borrower and the trustee. 

Supplemental Indenture of Trust: The supplemental indenture of trust is an 
agreement between the borrower (CEA) and the trustee (U.S. Bank) and 
describes the structure of each bond series in the transaction and, for each 
such series, the respective duties and obligations of the borrower and the 
trustee. 

Preliminary Official Statement: The preliminary official statement is the 
bond-transaction disclosure document given to potential investors, which 
presents the history, background, and financial results of the borrower (CEA), 
a summary of the bond transactions, and the risk factors inherent in the 
transaction. 
Bond Purchase Contract: The bond purchase contract is an agreement 
among the borrower (CEA), the underwriter(s), and the agent for sale (the 
California State Treasurer) that states the terms and conditions of the bond 
sale. 

Continuing Disclosure Agreement: The continuing disclosure agreement 
states the borrower’s representations regarding periodic reporting 
requirements during the term of the bonds or as long as the bonds 
remain outstanding. 

Governing Board Resolution: The proposed Governing Board resolution 
gives CEA staff authorization to sell the revenue bonds on the terms and 
conditions presented above, and as elaborated on in the resolution. 

Proposed Timeline 

If the Board approves CEA’s recommendation to start the process of issuing additional 
pre-event revenue bonds, a finance team would be established, and work would 
commence on all steps and documentation necessary to support the bond transaction. 
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Once the documentation is complete, CEA staff will either include final approval of the 
transactions on the Agenda of the Board’s scheduled September 16, 2021, or if necessary 
will notice a special Board meeting to authorize the bond issuance. 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board approve the initiation of the 2021 Revenue Bond 
programs, including: (1) forming a financing team to structure an issuance of up to $700 
million in pre-event revenue bonds, as described generally above; and (2) once 
documentation for the bond transaction is complete, direct staff to bring the 
documentation to the Board for consideration and final approval at a duly noticed 
meeting. 
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Governing Board Memorandum 

10 June 2021 

Agenda Item 7: Request for Approval of Annual Set-Aside for the CEA Loss 

Mitigation Fund 

Recommended Action: Approve the Annual Set-Aside for the CEA Loss Mitigation 

Fund 

Background: 

California Insurance Code section 10089.37 states, in pertinent part: 

The board shall set aside in each calendar year an amount equal to 5 percent of 

investment income accruing on the authority's invested funds, or five million 

dollars ($5,000,000), whichever is less, if deemed actuarially sound by a 

consulting actuary employed or hired by the authority, to be maintained as a 

subaccount in the California Earthquake Authority Fund. The authority shall use 

those funds to fund the establishment and operation of an earthquake Loss 

Mitigation Fund. 

The Governing Board last approved set-aside funding for the CEA Loss Mitigation Fund 

in June 2020. The Board authorized a set-aside amount of $5,000,000. 

Analysis: 

The CEA Loss Mitigation Fund is established by law to hold the money to be used for the 

operational and program expenses of the CEA’s mitigation activities. The majority of the 

mitigation activity is conducted through the California Residential Mitigation Program 

(CRMP), a joint powers authority in which the CEA and CalOES are members. CRMP’s 
primary program is the well-know Earthquake Brace + Bolt retrofit grant program, but 

CRMP continues to develop additional programs to address the mitigation needs of other 

types of residential structures. 
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The Insurance Code also requires that the set-aside of monies for the CEA Loss Mitigation 

Fund be reviewed “by a consulting actuary employed or hired by the authority” to 
determine if it will impair the CEA’s actuarial soundness. The CEA’s Chief Risk and 

Actuarial Officer, Shawna Ackerman, has reviewed the staff proposal to transfer funds to 

the Loss Mitigation Fund, and has determined that the requested transfer will not impair 

the CEA’s actuarial soundness, as documented in Attachment A. 

Staff requests Board authorization and approval to set aside $5,000,000 for the CEA Loss 

Mitigation Fund, as calculated and shown on Attachment B. 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends the Board authorize a set-aside of $5,000,000 for the CEA Loss 

Mitigation Fund. 
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 Attachment A 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: May 24, 2021 

TO: Tom Hanzel, Chief Financial Officer 

FROM: Shawna Ackerman, Chief Risk and Actuarial Officer 

RE: 2020 Earthquake Loss Mitigation Fund 

Pursuant to California Insurance Code §10089.37, the California Earthquake Authority (CEA) 
shall set aside in each calendar year an amount equal to the lesser of 5% of its annual investment 
income or $5,000,000 for the Earthquake Loss Mitigation Fund, if deemed actuarially sound. 
The amount under review for calendar year 2020 is $5,000,000. 

The term “actuarially sound” is often applied to rates. When used in this context “actuarially 
sound” means that the rate covers the expected future costs for the transfer of risk. In this 
context, the current rate structure considers and provides for a sufficient provision for the 
mitigation fund. 

In the context of the statute for the mitigation fund, the term may also apply to the CEA’s 
solvency. I have reviewed the financial data provided to me including the provision for the 
mitigation fund. As of December 31, 2020, CEA available capital is $5.9 billion and total claims 
paying capacity is $19.2 billion. The mitigation funds available to set aside are approximately 
0.08% of the CEA’s available capital and 0.03% of the CEA’s total claims paying capacity. 
Because the mitigation fund represents a small percentage of the CEA’s total claims paying 
capacity, the absence of the funds for claims paying will not impair the CEA’s solvency. 
Additionally, the mitigation funds can increase the CEA’s ability to pay 100% of claims 
liabilities to the extent that the funds are used to support activities that reduce the CEA’s losses 
in the event of a damaging earthquake. Therefore, I conclude that the mitigation fund amount as 
proposed is actuarially sound as contemplated in the statute. 
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Attachment B 

A B C (A + B + C) 

Beginning-of-Year 
Remaining Funds Lesser of 5% of End-of-Year 

5% of Investment Available for Set Investment Income Funds Set Aside by Remaining Funds 
Year Investment Income Income Aside or $5 million ** the Governing Board Available for Set Aside 

Balance as of December 31, 2000 $ -

2001 $ 44,184,990.04 $ 2,209,249.50 $ - $ 2,209,249.50 $ (309,275.55) $ 1,899,973.95 

2002 $ 24,782,830.64 $ 1,239,141.53 $ 1,899,973.95 $ 1,239,141.53 $ (2,509,232.25) $ 629,883.23 

2003 $ 25,562,896.69 $ 1,278,144.83 $ 629,883.23 $ 1,278,144.83 $ - $ 1,908,028.07 

2004 $ 35,851,094.85 $ 1,792,554.74 $ 1,908,028.07 $ 1,792,554.74 $ - $ 3,700,582.81 

2005 $ 64,786,415.96 $ 3,239,320.80 $ 3,700,582.81 $ 3,239,320.80 $ (3,700,582.81) $ 3,239,320.80 

2006 $ 118,647,844.32 $ 5,932,392.22 $ 3,239,320.80 $ 5,000,000.00 $ (3,239,320.80) $ 5,000,000.00 

2007 $ 125,616,215.18 $ 6,280,810.76 $ 5,000,000.00 $ 5,000,000.00 $ (5,000,000.00) $ 5,000,000.00 

2008 $ 84,700,308.00 $ 4,235,015.40 $ 5,000,000.00 $ 4,235,015.40 $ (5,000,000.00) $ 4,235,015.40 

2009 $ 55,449,955.00 $ 2,772,497.75 $ 4,235,015.40 $ 2,772,497.75 $ (4,235,015.40) $ 2,772,497.75 

2010 $ 40,385,063.00 $ 2,019,253.15 $ 2,772,497.75 $ 2,019,253.15 $ (2,772,497.75) $ 2,019,253.15 

2011 $ 31,693,442.00 $ 1,584,672.10 $ 2,019,253.15 $ 1,584,672.10 $ (2,019,253.15) $ 1,584,672.10 

2012 $ 24,766,000.00 $ 1,238,300.00 $ 1,584,672.10 $ 1,238,300.00 $ (1,584,672.10) $ 1,238,300.00 

2013 $ 21,291,499.16 $ 1,064,574.96 $ 1,238,300.00 $ 1,064,574.96 $ (1,238,300.00) $ 1,064,574.96 

2014 $ 25,375,330.26 $ 1,268,766.51 $ 1,064,574.96 $ 1,268,766.51 $ (1,064,574.96) $ 1,268,766.51 

2015 $ 42,808,825.00 $ 2,140,441.25 $ 1,268,766.51 $ 2,140,441.25 $ - $ 3,409,207.76 * 

2016 $ 110,719,225.00 $ 5,535,961.25 $ 3,409,207.76 $ 5,000,000.00 $ (3,409,207.76) $ 5,000,000.00 

2017 $ 81,770,000.00 $ 4,088,500.00 $ 5,000,000.00 $ 4,088,500.00 $ (5,000,000.00) $ 4,088,500.00 

2018 $ 105,539,322.00 $ 5,276,966.10 $ 4,088,500.00 $ 5,000,000.00 $ (4,088,500.00) $ 5,000,000.00 

2019 $ 125,681,687.00 $ 6,284,084.35 $ 5,000,000.00 $ 5,000,000.00 $ (5,000,000.00) $ 5,000,000.00 

2020 $ 112,261,212.00 $ 5,613,060.60 $ 5,000,000.00 $ 5,000,000.00 $ (5,000,000.00) $ 5,000,000.00 

Balance as of December 31, 2020 $ 5,000,000.00 

*Note:  The 2014 set-aside amount $1,268,766.51 was transferred March 2016. 

**By law, "(t)he board shall set aside in each calendar year an amount equal to 5 percent of investment 
income accruing on the authority's invested funds, or five million dollars ($5,000,000), whichever is less…" 
Insurance Code section 10089.37. 
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Governing Board Memorandum 

10 June 2021 

Agenda Item 8: Request for approval to contract with investment managers 
(CEA RFQ #02-21) 

Recommended Action: Approve staff recommendation to contract with investment 
managers for the CEA Investment Portfolio 

Background 

In April 2021, the CEA began a formal process of seeking additional investment managers 
to ensure that the CEA maintains adequate resources to continue with its prudent 
management of the CEA’s invested assets. This formal procurement process (designated 
as CEA RFQ #02-21) was open to both existing investment managers and firms that have 
not previously worked with CEA. The CEA placed an emphasis on actively recruiting firms 
with diverse and inclusive ownership and staffing. 

Procurement Process and Analysis 

On April 1, 2021, the CEA issued a Request for Qualifications (“RFQ”) seeking 
investment-manager services for its Liquidity and Mitigation Funds, Primary Fund, and 
Claims-Paying Fund. The services available for procurement were listed under three 
separate mandates: Liquidity and Mitigation (Mandate A), Primary Fund (Mandate B), 
and Claims-Paying Fund (Mandate C). The procurement was for one investment 
manager for the Liquidity and Mitigation Fund (Mandate A) and multiple managers for 
the Primary Fund (Mandate B) and Claims Fund (Mandate C). 

The RFQ was advertised on the websites of the following media outlets: 

• The Wall Street Journal 

• Pensions & Investments 

This opportunity to contract with the CEA was also followed and reported on by several 
trade publications. The CEA received responses from 15 investment-management firms, 
including three minority or women-owned firms. 
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The RFQ responses were evaluated by a selection panel consisting of: 

• Ben Kirwan, CEA Controller 

• Paolo Gonzalez, CEA Investment Officer 

• Anthony Tassone, Financial Reporting Supervisor 

• Kapil Bhatia, Raymond James & Associates, Inc. (CEA’s Independent Financial 
Advisor) 

The RFQ selection process sought to identify the most qualified firms to provide 
investment management services to the CEA, and placed an emphasis on recruiting and 
seeking participation by well qualified firms with diverse and inclusive ownership, 
consistent with the CEA’s overarching commitment to enhanced diversity and inclusion 
both within CEA and among our vendors. 

Based on evaluation of proposals by each panel member, the selection panel ranked the 
firms that responded to the RFQ and selected one firm for the Liquidity and Mitigation 
Funds, four firms for the Primary Fund, and three firms for the Claims-Paying Fund. 
Through review of the proposals, staff believes that the selected firms display robust 
systems for trading, compliance, reporting, and recovery. In addition, the RFQ panel was 
confident in the expertise and depth of experience of the selected firms. 

The RFQ panel selected and recommends that the CEA be authorized to contract with 
the following firms: 

• Liquidity Fund and Mitigation Fund (Mandate A) 

o Eaton Vance Management 

• Primary Fund (Mandate B) 

o PFM Asset Management, LLC 

o Payden & Rygel 

o Garcia Hamilton & Associates L.P. (MWBE Firm) 

o Ramirez Asset Management (MWBE Firm) 

• Claims-Paying Fund (Mandate C) 

o Franklin Templeton Institutional, LLC 

o Lazard Asset Management LLC 

o AAM Insurance Investment Management 
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Upon approval by the Board, the selected firms will be invited to enter into a contract 
with the CEA in a form substantially as described in the RFQ. The anticipate duration of 
these agreements will be for approximately four (4) years, with a target expiration of 
March 31, 2025. CEA’s standard form of Investment Management Agreement provides 
for the right to terminate upon 30 days written notice, with or without cause. 

Recommendations: 

Staff recommends that the Board authorize CEA staff to: 

1. Prepare and finalize contract for investment-management services with the 
selected firms, on terms substantially as identified in RFQ #02-21. 

2. Authorize CEO Glenn Pomeroy to execute contracts for and on behalf of the 
CEA with the selected investment managers. 
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Governing Board Memorandum 

10 June 2021 

Agenda Item 9: Discussion of Procedures for Board Approval Procedures; 

Ratification of Cyber Insurance and Print Vendor Renewals 

Recommended Actions: (1) Ratify recent renewals of CEA’s Cyber Insurance Coverage, 
and Print Vendor Contract; and (2) Authorize CEA to study 

options to update the Board Delegation Resolution last 

amended in 2000, and present options for discuss at a future 

meeting. 

Background: 

More than 20 years ago, the Governing Board adopted a standing Delegation Resolution 

that defined various aspects of the orderly and efficient governance of the CEA, including 

specifying the level of authority delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to enter into 

agreements for goods and services needed for CEA operations. Since that time, CEA has 

managed within that delegation, and will continue to do so unless the Board modifies 

that delegation in the future. 

With respect to procurement matters, and the Board’s role in approving certain contracts, 
the delegation resolution provides as follows: 

The Chief Executive Officer has the authority to act finally with respect to the 

following matters: 

1. Planning, organizing, and directing the work of the Authority as deemed 

necessary to fulfill the functions of the Authority. 

2. In keeping with the character of the Authority as a privately-financed, publicly 

managed provider of basic earthquake insurance, negotiating, entering into, 

amending, and terminating those contracts as may be necessary or 

convenient for the administration of the Authority, including contracts for 

legal counsel, investment advisors, investment managers, and other external 

advisors and consultants, and authorize expenditures for the services of the 
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foregoing. Managing all affairs that pertain to the office facilities of the 

Authority, as necessary for the efficiency of CEA staff while providing fully for 

the Authority’s functions and legal obligations. Overseeing, directing, and 
monitoring the performance of services from all contractors, vendors, 

consultants, and advisors, but the Board will maintain ultimate oversight over 

key vendors that provide services directly to the Board, including Board-

retained actuaries, financial advisors, and counsel. The Board must approve 

by prior authorization or ratification contracts that either (a) involve a 

cost or obligation to the Authority greater than $100,000 annually (or if 

the contract is not for a set amount, where the obligation is likely to 

exceed $100,000 annually); or (b) through their adoption or performance, 

present a significant policy impact on the Authority. 

Pursuant to this provision, CEA has consistently brought contracts to the Board for 

approval or ratification if they result in or are likely to result in an incurred cost to CEA of 

more than $100,000 annually. The foregoing language, however, does not clearly specify 

whether the Board desires to be given an opportunity to reauthorize previously-

authorized contracts or obligations at the time of such contracts are renewed or extended, 

nor does the language address how to deal with existing smaller, longer duration vendors 

whose fees and expenses gradually increase to greater than $100,000 per year. CEA staff 

has brought to the Board renewing contracts for vendors of less than $100,000 annually 

when the cost upon renewal for the first time exceeds the $100,000 annual amount. 

Several examples of these types of agreement recently arose, and are being brought to 

the Board for review and ratification, as described below. 

Analysis of and Request for Ratification of Recently Renewed Contracts: 

1. Ratification of Cyber Insurance Renewal 

The CEA first secured cyber insurance coverage in May 2020 to protect it from the 

seemingly ever-increasing risk of cyber attacks. In addition to protecting CEA’s access, 
these coverages also give CEA access to value-added specialty services in the event of a 

breach or attack. At its March 23, 2020 meeting the Board authorized expenditure of up 

to $1.5 million to procure cyber insurance, and CEA ultimately secured $25 million in cyber 

insurance coverage in May 2020, with Aspen Specialty Insurance providing the entire 

$25 million limit at a cost of just over $382,000. 
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Shortly before the Aspen policy came up for renewal last month, Aspen informed CEA’s 
broker that it was largely withdrawing from offering the type and large coverage amount 

it had issued to CEA the prior year. CEA’s broker also advised CEA that the significant 

uptick in cyber attacks, particularly ransom ware attacks, was significantly driving up the 

cost of cyber coverage, and that CEA should expect its premiums on renewal to increase 

as much as 35% year-on-year. Even with Aspen declining to renew the prior, CEA’s broker 
was quickly able to arrange renewal of the entire $25 million coverage amount, with a mix 

of insurers shown below: 

As predicted, the total premium increase for the coverage rose by 31% over the prior year. 

Nonetheless, the protection from the consequences of cyber attacks, particularly in 

today’s cyber environment, warranted the added expense (which remains well below the 

previously-authorized expenditure). CEA bound the renewal effective in May, and now 
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recommends the Board ratify that renewal. CEA also recommends that it be authorized to 

continue annual renewals of its cyber insurance program to ensure that this important 

coverage remains in place. 

2. Ratification of Print Vendor Agreement Renewal (Zoom Cross Media) 

CEA entered into a Master Agreement with its print vendor, Zoom Cross Media (a certified 

women-owned firm) in 2016, principally to ensure that CEA could meet printing and 

mailing obligations related to its statutory obligation to provide Participating Insurers (PIs) 

with a supply of mandatory marketing documents (MMDs) to be distributed to the PIs‘ 

residential property insurance policyholders. CEA designed, produced and printed the 

MMDs at CEA’s expense, and in some cases (at the election of the PI) arranged for mailing 
and related services. The CEA’s obligation under Insurance Code section 10089.42 to 

provide MMDs to the PIs took effect on January 1, 2016. Zoom Media has remained under 

contract since that time. 

To ensure that CEA was securing best available pricing for these services, CEA issued an 

RFP (RFP #01-21) soliciting bids for these printing and mail house services. Zoom Media 

prevailed in this competitive process, which will result in the renewal (or amendment and 

restatement) of the printing vendor contract with CEA. The pricing under the agreement 

is based on volume of materials printed and related services. This contract is an example 

of an agreement that is not for a fixed aggregate price, but is one that CEA believes that 

“the obligation is likely to exceed $100,000 annually” (in the words of the Delegation 
Resolution). Thus, CEA staff believes that this contract is one that should be approved or 

ratified by the Board under the Resolution. Ratification is essential to CEA’s continuing 

ability to meet its printing obligations under the MMD statute, Insurance Code section 

10089.42. 

Recommendation: 

The CEA recommends the Board ratify the renewal and future annual renewals of the 

CEA’s cyber insurance coverage. CEA also recommends the Board ratify the renewal of 

CEA’s printing and mail house services agreement with Zoom Media. 

In addition, because the current Governing Board has inherited this long-standing 

delegation structure and fixed thresholds established in early 2000, if the Board desires, 

CEA staff will examine whether an update to the delegation is warranted or could improve 

the efficiency of CEA operations. CEA staff is not making any specific recommended 

changes to the Delegation Resolution at this point, but rather can conduct an orderly 
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outreach and survey process during the second half of this year to explore options for 

ensuring the continued prudency of the Board’s management of the private policyholder 
premium funds under the Board’s fiduciary control. If that study process reveals possible 

process improvements, CEA staff will present options for the Board’s consideration at a 

future meeting. 
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Governing Board Memorandum 

10 June 2021 

Agenda Item 10: Independent Financial Auditor, Plante Moran PLLC, 

Presentation of Results of 2020 Financial Audit 

Recommended Action: No action required—information only. 

Background: 

Plante Moran, PLLC, CEA’s independent auditor, has performed an audit of CEA’s financial 
statements for the years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019. Plante Moran 

conducted this audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 

United States of America, as well as the standards of the Governmental Accounting 

Standards Board (GASB). 

The audit report for GASB financial statements are found in Attachment A and consist of: 

• Independent Auditor’s Report 

• Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

• Audited Financial Statements and accompanying notes 

• Starting in fiscal year 2019, the financial statements include the 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and the Statement of Changes in 

Fiduciary Net Position, which report the net position restricted 

(segregated) for the California Wildfire Fund (CWF) and the increase 

in net position for the year. 

• The net position of the CWF is not reflected as part of the CEA net 

position because the CWF resources are not available to pay CEA 

earthquake insurance liabilities. 

• Supplementary Information 
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Audit Results: 

According to the Independent Auditor’s Report, CEA’s 2020 audited GAAP financial 

statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of CEA, in 

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Representatives of Plante Moran, PLLC will be in attendance at this meeting to 

present the results of its most recent audit, and to answer any questions the Board 

may have regarding the audit. 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Governing Board 
California Earthquake Authority 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the enterprise fund and fiduciary fund of the California 
Earthquake Authority (CEA) as of and for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the CEA's basic financial statements, as listed in the table of 
contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these basic financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
basic financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
basic financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the basic 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the basic financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the basic financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the basic financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the enterprise fund and fiduciary fund of the California Earthquake Authority as of December 31, 2020 
and 2019 and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows thereof for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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To the Governing Board 
California Earthquake Authority 

Other Matters 

Required Supplemental Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis, the schedule of the CEA's proportionate share of the net pension liability, and the 
schedule of pension contributions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in 
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplemental information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide 
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Supplemental Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the California Earthquake Authority's basic 
financial statements. The accompanying schedules of participating insurer capital contributions, participating 
insurer premiums written, participating insurer unearned premiums, participating insurer commissions, and 
participating insurer operating costs are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required 
part of the basic financial statements. 

The schedules of participating insurer capital contributions, participating insurer premiums written, participating 
insurer unearned premiums, participating insurer commissions, and participating insurer operating costs are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the schedules of participating insurer capital contributions, participating insurer premiums written, 
participating insurer unearned premiums, participating insurer commissions, and participating insurer operating 
costs are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

June 1, 2021 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

History and Financing 

This discussion provides an assessment by management of the financial position, revenue, expenses, changes in 
net position, cash flows and liquidity of the California Earthquake Authority (CEA). Readers are encouraged to 
consider the information presented in conjunction with the financial statements as a whole, which follow the 
management's discussion and analysis. 

Following the unprecedented losses from the 1994 Northridge earthquake, many insurance companies either 
stopped or severely restricted selling new homeowners' insurance policies in California. The insurer response 
was largely due to state law that requires insurers to offer earthquake insurance when selling or renewing 
residential property insurance. 

In September 1996, legislation to create the CEA was approved by the California State Legislature. On November 
26, 1996, the State of California Insurance Commissioner certified that all statutory conditions necessary for the 
CEA to become operational had been met, and the CEA began writing earthquake policies on December 1, 1996. 
The CEA is overseen by a three-member governing board consisting of the governor, the treasurer, and the 
insurance commissioner or their designees. The speaker of the assembly and the chairperson of the Senate 
Rules Committee or their designees serve on the governing board as nonvoting members. The governing board 
establishes premium rates, subject to the prior approval of the insurance commissioner. The governing board is 
advised by an 11-member advisory panel, consisting of members of the public, consumers, and insurance 
industry representatives. 

The CEA uses its available capital (net position) to leverage approximately $19 billion in claims-paying capacity at 
December 31, 2020. The CEA’s claims-paying capacity is determined from the CEA’s available capital, risk-
transfer coverage, debt, and post-event prospective participating insurance company assessments. The CEA 
derives its capital from participating insurer capital contributions and from increases in net position generated 
from the sale of earthquake insurance policies. The CEA is exempt from federal income tax and from state 
insurance-premium tax. California Insurance Code Section 10089.44 provides, in pertinent part, that “… 
premiums collected by the authority shall be exempt from collection of the state’s insurance premium tax, and the 
amount of tax foregone by the state shall be considered for all purposes a contribution by the state and its citizens 
to the capital and operating revenue of the authority.” 

The CEA had 1,136,983 policyholders at December 31, 2020, most of whom insure single-family dwellings 
through the CEA. The CEA offers a basic residential earthquake policy to homeowners, which includes coverage 
for the insured dwelling and limited coverage for contents and loss of use if the residence is uninhabitable due to 
an earthquake. The CEA also offers policies to condominium unit owners, mobile homeowners, and renters. For 
an additional premium, CEA policyholders can significantly increase insured limits on contents and for loss of use. 
The CEA policy deductible ranges from 5 percent to 25 percent, which is determined by the homeowner and will 
affect the premium amount paid. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

The CEA employs contract employees, employees subject to civil-service provisions, and an extensive network of 
contract vendors to perform functions on behalf of the CEA. The CEA is continuing to transition to more 
employees subject to civil service provisions to handle these functions, which over time will reduce the number of 
contract vendors necessary to handle these internal functions. 

Using This Report 

While the CEA is an instrumentality of the state, the State of California’s General Fund is not liable for CEA 
claims, losses, or other liabilities. However, the CEA meets the definition of a governmental organization, as 
defined by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The CEA’s financial 
statements for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 have been prepared using accounting standards 
applicable to governmental entities. This financial report consists of five financial statements with accompanying 
notes. The balance sheet, prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, includes all assets, liabilities, and net 
position of the CEA. The statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position, also prepared on the 
accrual basis, considers all revenue and expenses for the CEA regardless of when cash is received or paid. The 
statement of cash flows reflects the actual cash receipts and disbursements for a specified period. The statement 
of fiduciary net position and changes in fiduciary net position report the net position restricted for the California 
Wildfire Fund (CWF) and the increase in net position for the year. The net position of the CWF is not reflected as 
part of the CEA net position because the CWF resources are not available to support CEA operations, nor are 
CEA resources available to support CWF operations. Required information concerning the CWF can be found in 
Note 15. 

Condensed Balance Sheet 

The CEA's assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, and net position as of December 31 are 
summarized as follows: 

2020 2019 2018 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and investments $ 7,696,359,343 $ 7,017,586,206 $ 6,610,077,544 
Premiums receivable - Net 81,457,207 73,539,876 69,456,437 
Prepaid reinsurance premium 90,585,910 20,840,283 19,854,113 
Other current assets 39,848,747 33,321,063 34,651,019 

Total current assets 7,908,251,207 7,145,287,428 6,734,039,113 

Noncurrent assets - Capital assets 107,269 152,485 208,044 

Total assets 7,908,358,476 7,145,439,913 6,734,247,157 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,595,417 3,170,535 4,462,640 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities: 

Unearned premiums 448,496,910 423,593,078 417,448,201 
Revenue bonds payable - Current portion 100,000,000 - 105,000,000 
Other current liabilities 24,785,616 22,652,987 12,623,686 

Total current liabilities 573,282,526 446,246,065 535,071,887 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Revenue bond payable - Noncurrent portion 200,000,000 - -

Other noncurrent liabilities 12,806,006 11,067,316 12,745,149 

Total noncurrent liabilities 212,806,006 11,067,316 12,745,149 

Total liabilities 786,088,532 457,313,381 547,817,036 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 370,083 386,030 103,316 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

2020 2019 2018 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets $ 107,269 $ 152,485 $ 208,044 
Restricted - Expendable 70,127,522 13,315,861 327,622,508 
Unrestricted 7,055,260,487 6,677,442,691 5,862,958,893 

Total net position $ 7,125,495,278 $ 6,690,911,037 $ 6,190,789,445 

Assets 

Total assets increased $763 million (10.7 percent) in 2020. The increase was primarily due to cash and 
investments, which grew $679 million (9.7 percent). The remaining increase is associated with prepaid 
reinsurance premiums of $70 million (334.7 percent), premiums receivable of $8 million (10.8 percent), and other 
current assets of $7 million (19.6 percent). 

In 2019, total assets increased $411 million (6.1 percent). The increase was primarily due to cash and 
investments, which grew $408 million (6.2 percent). The remaining increase is associated with premiums 
receivable of $4 million (5.9 percent). 

Deferred Outflows of Resources/Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Deferred outflows of resources had an increase of $0.4 million (13.4 percent) in 2020 and a decrease in 2019 of 
$1 million (29.0 percent). Deferred inflows of resources decreased by $15,947  (4.1 percent) and increased 
$282,714 (273.6 percent) in 2020 and 2019, respectively. These balances are associated with the recording of 
the CEA’s proportionate share of net pension liability as reported to the CEA by the state controller in accordance 
with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68. See Note 11 to the financial 
statements for further discussion of these balances. 

Liabilities 

Total liabilities increased $329 million (71.9 percent) in 2020, driven by an increase of $300 million (100 percent) 
in revenue bonds payable and $25 million (5.9 percent) of unearned premiums. See Note 5 in the notes to 
financial statements for further discussion of the revenue bonds. 

Total liabilities decreased $91 million (16.5 percent) in 2019, driven by a decrease of $105 million (100 percent) in 
revenue bonds payable due to debt repayments. This decrease was offset by an increase in various other liability 
accounts, primarily unearned premiums, accounts payable, and loss and loss expense reserves. 

Net Position 

The CEA classifies its net position into three components; invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted 
- expendable; and unrestricted. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of equipment and 
leasehold improvements, and there is no debt related to the purchase of these assets. Restricted net position 
includes the net position of the Earthquake Loss Mitigation Fund (the "Mitigation Fund"), unspent bond proceeds 
restricted for payment of claims as defined in the debt agreements offset by underlying debt, funds held for debt 
service by the revenue bond trustee, and investment income earned on the bond proceeds restricted as pledged 
revenue for debt service. 

The Mitigation Fund was created by statute, and related funds must be used solely for the establishment and 
operation of earthquake loss mitigation programs. The remaining net position of the CEA is classified as 
unrestricted. The CEA’s net position increased $435 million (6.5 percent) and $500 million (8.1 percent) in 2020 
and 2019, respectively. 

The 2020 increase was primarily composed of the underwriting profit of $214 million, premium tax contributions 
from the State of California of $20 million, and net investment income of $209 million. The 2019 increase was 
primarily composed of the underwriting profit of $238 million, premium tax contributions from the State of 
California of $19 million, and net investment income of $249 million. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

Condensed Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

The CEA's operating and nonoperating results for the current year compared to the prior years are presented in 
the following table: 

2020 2019 2018 

Premiums Earned 
Premiums written $ 845,164,654 $ 816,640,879 $ 778,340,984 
Less premiums ceded - Reinsurance (426,722,911) (373,457,574) (366,630,729) 

Net premiums written 418,441,743 443,183,305 411,710,255 

Change in net unearned premiums (24,903,828) (6,144,877) (43,992,185) 

Net premiums earned 393,537,915 437,038,428 367,718,070 

Expenses 
Losses and loss adjustment (recoveries) expenses (2,798,034) 4,875,685 148,833 
Other underwriting expenses 182,778,540 194,155,788 185,518,102 

Total expenses 179,980,506 199,031,473 185,666,935 

Underwriting Profit 213,557,409 238,006,955 182,051,135 

Nonoperating Income (Expenses) 
Net investment income 208,841,795 248,719,233 92,745,186 
Other nonoperating income 32,168,913 20,426,997 18,774,366 
Other nonoperating expense (19,983,876) (7,031,593) (10,031,627) 

Total nonoperating income 221,026,832 262,114,637 101,487,925 

Income - Before capital contributions 434,584,241 500,121,592 283,539,060 

Capital Contributions - - 13,272,000 

Change in Net Position $ 434,584,241 $ 500,121,592 $ 296,811,060 

The increase in net position was $435 million in 2020, which resulted in a net profit margin of 51.4 percent, and 
was a $66 million (13.1 percent) decrease compared to 2019. The decrease in 2020 compared to 2019 was 
driven by net investment income decreasing $40 million (16.0 percent) and net premiums earned decreasing by 
$44 million (10.0 percent). 

The investment income decrease was driven by a negative change in unrealized gains/losses of $28 million and a 
$15 million decrease in interest income. The net premiums earned decrease was primarily driven by an increase 
of ceded premiums of $53 million offset by an increase in premiums written of $29 million. 

The increase in net position was $500 million in 2019, which resulted in a net profit margin of 61.2 percent, and 
was a $203 million (68.5 percent) increase compared to 2018. The increase in 2019 compared to 2018 was 
driven by net investment income increasing $156 million (168.2 percent) and net premiums earned increasing by 
$69 million (18.9 percent). 

The investment income increase was driven by a positive change in unrealized gains/losses of $133 million and a 
$20 million increase in interest income. The net premiums earned increase was primarily driven by an increase in 
premiums written of $38.3 million and an increase in the change in unearned premiums of $37.8 million. 

6 
128



 

 

 

 

 

    

     

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

California Earthquake Authority 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows 

Primary sources of cash included cash flows from operations and proceeds from maturities of investments. The 
primary uses of cash was for operating expenses, repayment of debt, and the purchase of short-term and long-
term investment securities. 

The cash flows of the CEA are summarized as follows: 

2020 2019 2018 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 167,640,775 $ 254,637,641 $ 237,095,275 
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities 297,458,571 (104,313,814) (104,756,546) 
Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities - 7,742,000 5,530,000 
Net cash used in investing activities (441,036,191) (245,011,486) (303,410,981) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ 24,063,155 $ (86,945,659) $ (165,542,252) 

Cash from operating activities decreased $87 million (34.2 percent) and increased $18 million (7.4 percent) in 
2020 and 2019, respectively. The 2020 decrease resulted primarily from an increase in cash received from 
premiums of $25 million, offset by an increase in payments for reinsurance of $119 million. The 2019 increase 
resulted primarily from an increase in cash received from premiums of $39 million, offset by an increase in 
payments for reinsurance of $12 million and an increase in payments for other operating expenses of $8 million. 

For the remaining cash flow activities, the biggest change from 2020 compared to 2019 was net bond proceeds of 
$300 million and cash used in investing activities. Cash used in investing activities increased by $196 million in 
2020 compared to 2019. This is mostly driven by timing of purchases and proceeds as most investments are held 
until maturity. 

For 2019 compared to 2018, the biggest change was cash used in investing activities. Cash used in investing 
activities decreased by $58 million in 2019 compared to 2018. This was mostly driven by timing of purchases and 
proceeds as most investments are held until maturity. 

Liquidity 

The CEA maintains a liquid investment portfolio in order to be able to pay claims in the event of a large 
earthquake. As of December 31, 2020, 13.3 percent of the portfolio was scheduled to mature in 90 days or less, 
securities maturing between 91 days and one year accounted for 19.7 percent of the portfolio, and securities 
maturing between one to five years accounted for the remaining 67 percent of the portfolio, with a total portfolio 
modified duration of approximately two years. Based on earthquake modelers’ results of analyzing the CEA’s 
portfolio, management believes the CEA has sufficient liquidity to meet its obligations as they become due 
resulting from an earthquake or series of earthquakes. The CEA pays policyholder claims from its claims-paying 
capacity. 

The following depicts the CEA's claims-paying capacity in effect as of December 31, 2020, in millions of dollars: 

CEA capital available for claims $ 5,945 
Risk transfer financial products 9,146 
Revenue bonds 1,449 
Policyholders surcharge 1,000 
Post-earthquake industry assessments (second layer) 1,663 

Total $ 19,203 

Capital Assets 

The CEA’s investment in capital assets as of December 31, 2020 was $107,269 (net of accumulated 
depreciation). No major capital asset purchases were made in the current year. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

Debt Administration 

At December 31, 2020, the CEA had short-term debt obligations of $100 million and long-term debt obligations of 
$200 million associated with 2020 debt issuances. Additional information on the CEA’s long-term debt can be 
found in Note 5 in the notes to the financial statements. 

Current Economic Factors and Conditions 

The California economy has experienced significant economic and financial turmoil due to the COVID-19 
pandemic. The unemployment rate in California went from 3.9 percent at December 31, 2019 to 9.3 percent at 
December 31, 2020. California lost 2,615,800 nonfarm jobs due to the COVID-19 pandemic in March and April 
2020. In the U.S., multiple federal stimulus packages were passed in an attempt to shore up economic conditions 
and mitigate the impacts of the pandemic on businesses and individuals. Real GDP decreased 3.5 percent in 
2020, compared with an increase of 2.2 percent in 2019. Real GDP is projected to be 4.5 percent higher by the 
end of 2021 or close to $22 trillion or marginally above where the U.S. was at the end of 2019, making 2020 and 
at least the first half of 2021 lost time from an economic perspective. 

The CEA continues to experience year-over-year growth in policy counts. As of December 31, 2020, CEA 
policyholders increased 2.28 percent from December 31, 2019. The growth in 2020 was most likely the result of 
several lifestyle changes brought on by the COVID-19 pandemic and renewed importance by many California 
homeowners' to safeguard their most valuable possession - their home. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the CEA’s finances for all those interested. 
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information 
should be addressed to California Earthquake Authority, 801 K Street, Suite 1000, Sacramento, CA 95814. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Balance Sheet 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

2020 2019 

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Current assets: 

Cash and investments: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 94,506,738 $ 128,649,686 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 66,881,868 8,675,765 
Restricted investments 299,715,540 -
Investments 7,235,255,197 6,880,260,755 

Premiums receivable - Net of allowance for doubtful accounts of 
$5,956,168 and $6,156,102 81,457,207 73,539,876 

Interest receivable 26,629,329 27,711,837 
Prepaid reinsurance premium 90,585,910 20,840,283 
Prepaid transformer maintenance premium 7,221,187 3,783,920 
Other current assets 5,998,231 1,825,306 

Total current assets 7,908,251,207 7,145,287,428 

Noncurrent assets - Capital assets - Net 107,269 152,485 

Total assets 7,908,358,476 7,145,439,913 

Deferred Outflows of Resources - Related to pension 3,595,417 3,170,535 

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 11,842,150 15,006,680 
Losses and loss adjustment expense reserves 864,862 3,815,000 
Compensated absences - Current portion 982,524 546,259 
Revenue bond interest payable 409,158 -
Securities payable 6,870,023 3,120,551 
Unearned premiums 448,496,910 423,593,078 
SB 84 loan payable - Current portion - 164,497 
Revenue bond payable - Current portion 100,000,000 -

Accrued reinsurance premium expenses 3,816,899 -

Total current liabilities 573,282,526 446,246,065 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
SB 84 loan payable - 926,503 
Net pension liability 11,823,481 9,621,334 
Revenue bond payable - Net of current portion 200,000,000 -

Compensated absences 982,525 519,479 

Total liabilities 786,088,532 457,313,381 

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Related to pension 370,083 386,030 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 107,269 152,485 
Restricted - Expendable 70,127,522 13,315,861 
Unrestricted 7,055,260,487 6,677,442,691 

Total net position $ 7,125,495,278 $ 6,690,911,037 

See notes to financial statements. 9 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 

2020 2019 

Premiums Earned 
Premiums written $ 845,164,654 $ 816,640,879 
Less premiums ceded - Reinsurance (426,722,911) (373,457,574) 

Net premiums written 418,441,743 443,183,305 

Change in unearned premiums (24,903,828) (6,144,877) 

Net premiums earned 393,537,915 437,038,428 

Operating Expenses 
Losses and loss adjustment (recoveries) expenses (2,798,034) 4,875,685 
Participating insurer commissions 84,528,163 81,673,616 
Participating insurer operating costs 27,108,127 26,346,131 
Reinsurance broker commissions 2,800,000 2,800,000 
Premium taxes 19,872,473 19,202,293 
Other underwriting expenses 48,469,777 64,133,748 

Total operating expenses 179,980,506 199,031,473 

Underwriting Profit 213,557,409 238,006,955 

Nonoperating Income (Expenses) 
Net investment income 208,841,795 248,719,233 
Investment income on bond proceeds - Net of related expenses (2,451,709) 1,680,322 
Other income 592,133 478,489 
Grant revenue 11,704,307 746,215 
Grant expenses (11,704,307) (746,215) 
Mitigation Fund expenses (1,827,860) (1,665,700) 
California Residential Mitigation Program contribution (4,000,000) (6,300,000) 
State of California premium tax contribution 19,872,473 19,202,293 

Total nonoperating income 221,026,832 262,114,637 

Increase in Net Position 434,584,241 500,121,592 

Net Position - Beginning of year 6,690,911,037 6,190,789,445 

Net Position - End of year $ 7,125,495,278 $ 6,690,911,037 

See notes to financial statements. 10 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 

2020 2019 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Cash received from premiums $ 837,247,323 $ 812,557,440 
Cash payments for premiums ceded - Reinsurance (496,088,906) (376,959,541) 
Cash payments for operating expenses (143,516,080) (152,319,873) 
Cash payments to employees for services (30,001,562) (28,640,385) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 167,640,775 254,637,641 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 
Repayment of revenue bonds (400,000,000) (105,000,000) 
Interest paid on revenue bonds (2,275,620) (3,035,513) 
Interest income on revenue bond proceeds 233,068 3,243,210 
Grant revenue 11,704,307 746,215 
Grant expense (11,704,307) (746,215) 
Other income 592,123 478,489 
Proceeds from revenue bond issuances 700,000,000 -

Repayment of SB 84 loan (1,091,000) -

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities 297,458,571 (104,313,814) 

Cash Flows Provided by Financing Activities - Contributed capital receipts - 7,742,000 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Proceeds from maturities of investments 3,606,789,459 1,717,474,394 
Purchases of investments (4,168,475,646) (2,078,195,740) 
Investment income 123,576,579 118,526,106 
Investment expense (2,926,583) (2,816,246) 

Net cash used in investing activities (441,036,191) (245,011,486) 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 24,063,155 (86,945,659) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of year 137,325,451 224,271,110 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of year $ 161,388,606 $ 137,325,451 

Reconciliation to Balance Sheet 
Cash and investments $ 94,506,738 $ 128,649,686 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 66,881,868 8,675,765 

$ 161,388,606 $ 137,325,451Total cash and cash equivalents 

See notes to financial statements. 11 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Statement of Cash Flows (Continued) 

Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 

2020 2019 

Reconciliation of Underwriting Profit to Net Cash from Operating 
Activities 

Underwriting profit $ 213,557,409 $ 238,006,955 
Adjustments to reconcile underwriting profit to net cash from operating 

activities: 
Depreciation on equipment 45,216 55,560 
Premium tax expense 19,872,473 19,202,293 
Contribution to California Residential Mitigation Program (4,000,000) (6,300,000) 
Mitigation Fund expenses (1,827,860) (1,665,700) 
Net periodic pension expense 1,761,312 125,669 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Premiums receivable (7,917,331) (4,083,439) 
Unearned premiums 24,903,832 6,144,877 
Other assets (4,172,924) (1,499,299) 
Prepaid reinsurance premium (69,745,627) (986,170) 
Prepaid transformer maintenance premium (3,437,267) (2,515,797) 
Losses and loss adjustment expenses (2,950,138) 3,699,886 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (3,164,530) 4,585,931 
Compensated absences payable 899,311 (133,125) 
Accrued reinsurance premium expense 3,816,899 -

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 167,640,775 $ 254,637,641 

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities - The change in the fair value of investments, which is 
included as a component of net investment income in the statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net 
position, was an increase of $99.7 million in 2020 and an increase of $127.9 million in 2019. Premium tax 
contributed by the State of California and recognized as a component of expense in the statement of revenue, 
expenses, and changes in net position was $19.9 million and $19.2 million in 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

See notes to financial statements. 12 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Fiduciary Funds 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Fund of California Wildfire 

Fund 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Custodial Funds 
2020 2019 

Assets 
Cash and investments: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 511,921,154 $ 170,912,277 
Investments 9,583,274,855 4,599,954,544 

Total assets 10,095,196,009 4,770,866,821 

Liabilities - Securities payable 387,224 447,511 

Net Position 
Restricted - Restricted for CWF 10,094,808,785 4,770,419,310 

$ 10,094,808,785 $ 4,770,419,310Total net position 

See notes to financial statements. 13 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Fiduciary Funds 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds of 

California Wildfire Fund 

Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Custodial Funds 
2020 2019 

Additions - Deposits from CWF $ 5,470,764,833 $ 4,789,829,741 

Deductions - Withdrawals by CWF 146,375,358 19,410,431 

Net Increase in Fiduciary Net Position 5,324,389,475 4,770,419,310 

Net Position - Beginning of year 4,770,419,310 -

$ 10,094,808,785 $ 4,770,419,310Net Position - End of year 

See notes to financial statements. 14 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 1 - Reporting Entity 

The California Earthquake Authority  (CEA) is a privately financed, publicly managed authority that 
provides insurance coverage for earthquake damage to residential property owners, condominium 
owners, mobile homeowners, and renters in the state of California. In September 1996, legislation to 
create the CEA was approved by the California State Legislature. On November 26, 1996, the State of 
California insurance commissioner certified that all statutory conditions necessary for the CEA to become 
operational had been met, and the CEA began writing earthquake policies on December 1, 1996. The 
CEA is overseen by a three-member governing board consisting of the governor, the treasurer, and the 
insurance commissioner or their designees. The speaker of the assembly and the chairperson of the 
Senate Rules Committee or their designees serve on the governing board as nonvoting members. The 
Governing Board is advised by an 11-member advisory panel, consisting of members of the public, 
consumers, and insurance industry representatives. 

CEA policies are sold to policyholders by participating insurers of the CEA. Insurance companies 
admitted to write residential property insurance in California and who elect to become participating 
members of the CEA sign Insurer Participation Agreements with the Insurance Commissioner and the 
CEA. Under these agreements, participating insurers act as independent contractor agents on behalf of 
the CEA by performing policy and claims services, which include policy issuance, premium collection, and 
claims adjustment. Under the agreements, the CEA reimburses participating insurers for non-claims-
related costs incurred by these companies in servicing CEA policies. The operating cost reimbursement 
was 3.25 percent throughout 2018 and changed to 3.21 percent on July 1, 2019 as a result of the most 
recent form filing approved by the Department of Insurance. The producer commission is equal to 10 
percent of written premium of all new and renewal CEA policies. Additionally, participating insurers 
receive reimbursement for expenses associated with servicing CEA claims equal to 9 perfect of paid 
claims. As of December 31, 2020, there are 25 participating insurers, of which 19 insurers are writing 
CEA policies. Four participating insurers account for 69 percent of CEA’s written premiums. 

The CEA has eligibility requirements that compel the CEA to issue and renew policies if the insured 
structure has no preexisting, noncosmetic earthquake damage and the policyholder has a companion 
policy of residential property insurance from a participating insurer. 

In the event that a natural disaster program is enacted by Congress, the advisory panel is required to 
prepare a plan to dissolve the CEA or to conform the sections of the California Insurance Code regarding 
the CEA to the federal program and recommend an action plan to the CEA governing board and the 
California State Legislature. 

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Accounting 

While the CEA is an instrumentality of the state, the State of California's General Fund is not liable for 
CEA claims, losses, or other liabilities. However, the CEA meets the definition of a governmental 
organization, as defined by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

The CEA is accounted for as an enterprise fund and is financed and operated in a manner similar to that 
of a private business enterprise. The CEA uses the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Under this method, revenue is recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded 
when incurred. In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet 
and revenue and expenses for the period, as well as the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates applied in the preparation of the accompanying financial 
statements. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

The custodial fund accounts for the activities of the California Wildfire Fund (CWF). As a separate 
fiduciary fund, classified as a custodial fund for the asset holdings of the CWF, the custodial fund reports 
net position restricted for payment or reimbursement of eligible claims from a covered wildfire by a utility 
company that participates in the CWF. As a result, the funds are not available to support CEA operations. 
The reporting focus of the custodial fund is on net position and changes in net position and employs 
accounting principles similar to the CEA, as described above. As further described in Note 15, the 
financial statements of the custodial fund are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting. 

Operating revenue is revenue that is generated from providing earthquake insurance policies.  All other 
revenue is reported as nonoperating revenue. Operating expenses are those costs related to providing 
those earthquake insurance policies. All other expenses are reported as nonoperating expenses. 

Revenue Recognition 

Premiums are recognized as earned on a pro rata basis over the policy contract period. All premium rates 
charged by the CEA must be approved by the State of California insurance commissioner before use. 
Unearned premiums represent amounts written which relate to coverage in future periods. 

Premiums paid or accrued by the CEA under reinsurance agreements are accounted for as a reduction in 
the related premium revenue earned and amortized over the remaining reinsurance contract period. 
Prepaid insurance premiums are the pro rata portion of premiums ceded applicable to the unexpired 
period of reinsurance coverage. 

Use of Restricted/Unrestricted Net Position 

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is 
available, the CEA’s policy is to apply unrestricted net position before applying any restricted net position 
available. 

CEA’s policy could change if California experiences a major earthquake event. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the CEA considers investments in certificates of deposit, 
U.S. Treasurys, commercial paper, corporate bonds, and bankers' acceptances with original maturities of 
three months or less, to be cash equivalents. Restricted cash and cash equivalents are composed of 
unspent bond proceeds, debt service sinking funds, and moneys transferred to the Earthquake Loss 
Mitigation Fund (the "Mitigation Fund"). 

Investments 

Investments consist primarily of certificates of deposit, U.S. Treasurys, U.S. agencies, and commercial 
paper, as authorized by California Insurance Code (Code) Section 10089.6. All investments are reported 
at fair value in the balance sheet. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be 
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties and is determined from published data 
provided by the exchanges, computerized pricing sources, securities custodians, and other authoritative 
sources. The CEA is permitted to invest in securities eligible in California Government Code Section 
16430. Restricted investments are composed of unspent bond proceeds and moneys transferred to the 
Mitigation Fund. The CEA intends to hold the majority of investments to maturity. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets are stated at historical cost. The capitalization threshold for assets with a useful life 
beyond one year is $5,000. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives 
as follows: 

Depreciable Life -
Years 

Leasehold improvements 
Computer equipment and software 
Furniture and other equipment 
Capital leases 

Shorter of useful life or remaining lease term 
3 
5 

Shorter of useful life or remaining lease term 

Risk-capital Surcharge 

Under California Insurance Code Section 10089.16(d), effective July 1, 2008, the CEA Governing Board 
must calculate a risk-capital surcharge one year after the date that a new participating insurer first places 
or renews business into the CEA. The law provides that each annual risk-capital surcharge must equal 
the CEA's increased cost of providing or securing capacity to insure the new participant's excess 
earthquake insurance risk. Amica Mutual Insurance Company (Amica) joined the CEA and started 
transferring earthquake exposure to the CEA in August 2018 and, thus, has completed the transfer of its 
residential earthquake insurance exposure to the CEA. 

CEA staff analyzed Amica’s earthquake insurance risk profile as of December 31, 2020 and determined 
that the addition of Amica’s business was more likely to produce losses for the CEA, or was likely to 
produce greater losses for the CEA, than would a book of existing CEA business of similar size. 
Therefore, the governing board required Amica to pay a first annual risk-capital surcharge in the amount 
of $112,000. The CEA recorded the risk-capital surcharge payment as other income for the year ended 
December 31, 2020. 

Policy Acquisition Costs 

Acquisition costs, consisting of participating insurer commissions and operating costs, vary with and are 
primarily related to the issuance of new and renewal insurance policies. These costs are expensed as 
incurred. 

Losses and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves 

Reserves for insurance losses and loss adjustment expenses include the accumulation of case estimates 
for claims reported, claims incurred but not reported, and estimates of expenses for investigating and 
adjusting all incurred claims. The reserve is established at a level that management estimates to be 
sufficient to satisfy those claims. Estimates are revised as more information becomes available. Since the 
CEA’s inception, there has not been a major earthquake. The CEA had $864,862 and $3,815,000 in 
losses and loss adjustment expense reserves as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

If the CEA's governing board determines that the CEA's net position, bond proceeds, additional 
participating insurer capital contributions and reinsurance proceeds are exhausted and that no source of 
additional funds is available to the CEA to pay policyholder claims, the governing board is required to 
develop a plan for approval by the State of California insurance commissioner to pay policyholder claims 
on a pro rata or installment basis. In such circumstances, the insurance code states that the 
commissioner shall order the CEA to cease renewing or accepting new earthquake insurance policies. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Participating Insurer Capital Contributions 

Each insurer that elected to participate in the CEA during its first year of operations was required to 
contribute, as its share of the CEA’s initial operating capital, an amount equal to $1,000,000,000 
multiplied by the percentage representing that insurer’s residential earthquake insurance market share as 
of January 1, 1994. Insurers that elect to participate in the CEA after December 1, 1996 are required to 
make an initial capital contribution calculated using their residential earthquake insurance market share 
as of January 1, 1994 or the latest date for which such market share information is available to the CEA, 
whichever contribution amount is greater. As of December 31, 2020, participating insurer capital 
contributions totaled $791 million and were 100 percent funded. 

Participating Insurer Assessments 

The California Insurance Code (the "Code") states that, subject to certain maximum limits as set forth in 
the Code, the CEA has the power to make additional assessments of participating insurers in the event of 
a major California earthquake, subject to the approval of the State of California Insurance Commissioner. 

As of December 31, 2019, participating insurers have a cumulative residential property insurance market 
share of approximately 75.4 percent of the total residential property insurance market in California based 
on written premium. The market share as of December 31, 2020 was unavailable as of the date the 
financial statements were issued. 

If participating insurers withdraw their participation in the CEA such that the cumulative residential 
property insurance market share is less than 65 percent, the insurance commissioner is required by law 
to make recommendations to the California Legislature for the continuation or termination of the CEA. 

Net Position 

The CEA classifies its net position into three components: net position invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt; restricted - expendable; and unrestricted net position. There is no debt related to capital 
assets, so the balance of net position invested in capital assets consists only of the capital assets 
balance. Restricted net position includes the net position of the Mitigation Fund, unspent bond proceeds 
restricted for payment of claims as defined in the debt agreements and funds held for debt service by the 
revenue bond trustee offset by underlying debt, and investment income earned on the bond proceeds 
restricted as pledged revenue for debt service. 

Income Taxes 

In a private letter ruling dated November 8, 1996, the Internal Revenue Service determined the CEA to be 
an integral part of the State of California for federal income tax purposes. As such, the CEA is exempt 
from federal income tax. 

State of California Premium Tax 

California Insurance Code Section 10089.44 provides that, “notwithstanding any other provision of law, 
premiums collected by the Authority shall be exempt from collection of the state's insurance premium tax, 
and the amount of tax foregone by the state shall be considered for all purposes a contribution by the 
state and its citizens to the capital and operating revenue of the authority.” As a result, CEA is exempt 
from remitting state premium tax. Premium tax contributions from the State of California were 
$19,872,473 and $19,202,293 for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, which 
offset the related operating expenses. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Compensated Absences 

Employees accrue vacation, holiday, and sick leave benefits. However, unused sick leave is not included 
in compensated absences because they do not vest to employees. CEA contract employees are paid at 
the time of termination from CEA employment. CEA civil-service employees are paid at the time of 
termination only for employees who have left civil service employment. CEA civil-service employees who 
retain employment within civil service are removed as a liability for CEA, without a payout, as CEA is no 
longer responsible for the vested balance of these employees. 

Pension Liability 

All CEA civil-service employees participate in the California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
(CalPERS), which is included in the State of California’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as a 
fiduciary component unit. The portion of the present value of projected benefit payments to be provided to 
civil-service employees attributable to past periods of service less CEA’s fiduciary net position is recorded 
as a liability. The CEA is using the measurement date as of June 30, 2019, which is the most recent 
information available. 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets and liabilities, the statement of net position/balance sheet will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred outflows and inflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent 
a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expense) until a future period. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net 
position that will be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) in a future period. Deferred outflows 
and inflows of resources as of December 31, 2020 related to pension results from the actuarially 
determined liability and pension contributions made after the measurement date. 

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncement 

In March 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct 
Borrowings and Direct Placements. This statement establishes criteria to improve the information that is 
disclosed in the notes to the government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings 
and direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing 
information related to debt. The CEA adopted this standard during the year ended December 31, 2020, 
which requires footnote disclosures to classify all debt as either a direct borrowing or other borrowing. 

Upcoming Accounting Pronouncement 

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. This statement will increase the usefulness of 
governments’ financial statements by requiring reporting of certain lease asset and liabilities that currently 
are not reported. It will enhance comparability of financial statements among governments by requiring 
lessees and lessors to report leases under a single model. This statement also will enhance the decision-
usefulness of the information provided to financial statement users by requiring notes to financial 
statements related to the timing, significance, and purpose of a government’s leasing arrangements. 
GASB Statement No. 87 is required to be adopted for years beginning after June 15, 2021 based on the 
extension from GASB Statement No. 95. The CEA does not expect this standard to have a significant 
impact on the financial statements. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 3 - Cash and Investments 

As of December 31, 2020 the CEA had the following cash and investments: 

Investment Maturities (in Years) 
Less Than 1 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 Total 

U.S. Treasurys 
Commercial paper 
Cash 
Money market 

$ 2,486,445,413 $ 1,559,085,379 $ 1,291,499,032 
10,640,054 - -
69,249,204 - -
57,796,588 - -

$ 997,273,169 $ 1,224,370,504 $ 7,558,673,497 
- - 10,640,054 
- - 69,249,204 
- - 57,796,588 

Total $ 2,624,131,259 $ 1,559,085,379 $ 1,291,499,032 $ 997,273,169 $ 1,224,370,504 $ 7,696,359,343 

As of December 31, 2019, the CEA had the following cash and investments: 

Investment Maturities (in Years) 
Less Than 1 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 Total 

U.S. Treasurys 
U.S. agencies 
Commercial paper 
Cash 

$ 2,445,611,003 $ 1,438,164,392 $ 1,313,134,515 $ 1,036,455,402 
68,818,185 - - -
48,826,810 - - -
8,705,420 - - -

$ 657,870,479 $ 6,891,235,791 
- 68,818,185 
- 48,826,810 
- 8,705,420 

Total $ 2,571,961,418 $ 1,438,164,392 $ 1,313,134,515 $ 1,036,455,402 $ 657,870,479 $ 7,017,586,206 

The tables below identify the investment types that are authorized for the CEA by the California 
Government Code or CEA's investment policy, where more restrictive. The tables also identify certain 
provisions of the CEA's investment policy that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration 
risk. 

Liquidity Fund 

Maximum Maximum 
Maximum Percentage of Investment in 

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio One Issuer 

U.S. Treasury securities 180 days None None 
Federal agency securities 180 days 50% 25% 
Bankers acceptances (BA) 180 days 25 5 
Certificates of deposit 180 days 25 5 
Commercial paper 180 days 25 5 
Corporate bonds/notes 180 days 25 5 

Primary Reserve Fund 

Maximum Maximum 
Maximum Percentage of Investment in 

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio One Issuer 

U.S. Treasury securities 5 years None None 
Federal agency securities N/A None None 
Bankers acceptances N/A None None 
Certificates of deposit N/A None None 
Commercial paper N/A None None 
Corporate bonds/notes N/A None None 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 3 - Cash and Investments (Continued) 

Mitigation Fund 

Maximum Maximum 
Maximum Percentage of Investment in 

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio One Issuer 

U.S. Treasury securities 90 days None None 
Federal agency securities 90 days 50% 25% 
Bankers acceptances 90 days 25 5 
Certificates of deposit 90 days 25 5 
Commercial paper 90 days 25 5 
Corporate bonds/notes 90 days 25 5 

Claims Paying Fund 

Maximum Maximum 
Maximum Percentage of Investment In 

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio One Issuer 

U.S. Treasury securities 5 years None None 
Federal agency securities 180 days 50% 25% 
Bankers acceptances 180 days 25 5 
Certificates of deposit 180 days 25 5 
Commercial paper 180 days 25 5 
Corporate bonds/notes 180 days 25 5 

Custodial Credit Risk of Bank Deposits 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of failure of a depository financial institution, 
the CEA will not be able to recover its deposits nor be able to recover collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. The CEA has no policy that would limit the exposure to custodial credit 
risk for deposits. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, approximately $69.4 million and $9.0 million, 
respectively, of CEA deposits were not covered by FDIC insurance. 

Custodial Credit Risk of Investments 

The CEA investment policy limits investments in banker’s acceptances and commercial paper to issuers 
with the highest rating category by all rating agencies that rate the issuer. The policy limits investments in 
corporate bonds to the top three ratings issued by nationally recognized rating services. As of December 
31, 2020, 98 percent of the portfolio consisted of U.S. Treasurys, and, 2 percent of the portfolio consisted 
of commercial paper, money market funds, and cash. 

The CEA's cash equivalents and investments are rated as follows: 

Standard & 
Security Type Moody's* Poor's* 

U.S. Treasury Aaa AA+ 
Commercial paper - Svenska Handelsbanken Aa1 AA-

*Although U.S. Treasury is the only security type that can be held long term, the long-term rating is used as the short-
term rating equivalent is too broad to show much difference between security type. 

Interest Rate Risk 

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses resulting from rising interest rates, the CEA’s 
investment policy limits all securities purchased to a maximum maturity duration of 180 days, except for 
U.S. Treasurys. U.S. Treasurys are allowed to have maturities of up to five years as long as the CEA’s 
combined portfolio does not exceed a maximum modified duration of three years. As of December 31, 
2020, the CEA’s combined portfolio had a maximum modified duration of two years. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 3 - Cash and Investments (Continued) 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

There is no concentration of investments in any one non-U.S. governmental issuer, which is not explicitly 
guaranteed, that represents 5 percent or more of total investments. 

Fair Value Measurements 

The CEA categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is divided into 3 levels with each level based on the source 
used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant 
unobservable inputs. The asset’s level within the hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement. The CEA’s assessment of the significance of particular inputs 
to these fair value measurements requires judgement and considers factors specific to each asset or 
liability. 

U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. agency securities classified in Level 1 are valued using prices quoted 
in active markets for those securities. 

The fair value of commercial paper was determined to be amortized cost due to the short-term duration of 
the security. 

In instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the above fair value 
hierarchy, fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the valuation. The CEA’s assessment of the significance of particular inputs to these fair 
value measurements requires judgment and considers factors specific to each asset or liability. 

The CEA has the following recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2020 and 2019: 

Assets Measured at Carrying Value on a Recurring Basis at 
December 31, 2020 

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets Significant Other 

for Identical Observable 
Assets Inputs 

(Level 1) (Level 2) 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2020 

Bonds: 
U.S. Treasurys 
Commercial paper 

$ 7,524,330,683 
-

$ -
10,640,054 

$ -
-

$ 7,524,330,683 
10,640,054 

Subtotal 7,524,330,683 10,640,054 - 7,534,970,737 

Cash and cash equivalents: 
U.S. Treasurys 
Money market 
Cash 

34,342,814 
57,796,588 
69,249,204 

-
-
-

-
-
-

34,342,814 
57,796,588 
69,249,204 

Subtotal 161,388,606 - - 161,388,606 

Total $ 7,685,719,289 $ 10,640,054 $ - $ 7,696,359,343 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 3 - Cash and Investments (Continued) 

Assets Measured at Carrying Value on a Recurring Basis at 
December 31, 2019 

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets 

for Identical 
Assets 

(Level 1) 

Significant Other 
Observable 

Inputs 
(Level 2) 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

Balance at 
December 31, 

2019 

Bonds: 
U.S. Treasurys 
Commercial paper 

$ 6,839,180,991 
-

$ -
41,079,764 

$ -
-

$ 6,839,180,991 
41,079,764 

Subtotal 6,839,180,991 41,079,764 - 6,880,260,755 

Cash and cash equivalents: 
U.S. Treasurys 
U.S. agencies 
Commercial paper 
Cash 

52,054,800 
68,818,185 

-
8,705,420 

-
-

7,747,046 
-

-
-
-
-

52,054,800 
68,818,185 
7,747,046 
8,705,420 

Subtotal 129,578,405 7,747,046 - 137,325,451 

Total $ 6,968,759,396 $ 48,826,810 $ - $ 7,017,586,206 

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments 

The recorded value of other receivables and payables, which are financial instruments, approximates fair 
value due to the short-term nature of these assets and liabilities. 

Note 4 - Investment Income 

Total investment income is composed of interest, realized gains and losses, and unrealized gains and 
losses due to changes in the fair value of investments held at year end. Investment income earned on 
unspent bond proceeds are offset against related interest expense and classified as investment income 
on bond proceeds, net of related expenses on the statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net 
position. 

Investment income for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows: 

2020 2019 

Interest income: 
U.S. agency securities $ 636,304 $ 2,231,942 
Commercial paper 293,201 1,330,213 
U.S. Treasurys 111,365,967 123,303,259 

Total interest income 112,295,472 126,865,414 

Change in fair value of investments 99,705,988 127,913,166 
Less investment expenses (2,926,596) (2,816,137) 

Net investment income $ 209,074,864 $ 251,962,443 

2020 2019 

Investment income on bond proceeds $ 233,069 $ 3,243,210 
Net investment income 208,841,795 248,719,233 

Total $ 209,074,864 $ 251,962,443 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 4 - Investment Income (Continued) 

The change in fair value of investments for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are calculated 
as follows: 

2020 2019 

Fair value of investments at the end of year $ 7,534,970,737 $ 6,880,260,755 
Add proceeds of investments matured 3,606,789,457 1,717,474,394 
Add amortization of discounts/premium 10,989,278 (2,707,564) 
Less realized gains/loss (557,611) 9,139 
Less cost of investments purchased (4,168,475,646) (2,078,195,740) 
Less change in securities payable (3,749,472) (3,121,384) 
Less fair value of investments at the beginning of year (6,880,260,755) (6,385,806,434) 

Change in fair value of investments $ 99,705,988 $ 127,913,166 

Note 5 - Long-term Liabilities 

The following is a summary of long-term liabilities, excluding the net pension liability (see Note 15) for the 
years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019: 

2020 
Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance 

Due within One 
Year 

Other borrowing - Revenue bonds 
Other borrowing - SB 84 loan 
Compensated absences 

Total 

$ 

$ 

-
1,091,000 
1,065,738 

2,156,738 

$ 

$ 

700,000,000 
-

1,881,836 

701,881,836 

$ 

$ 

(400,000,000) $ 
(1,091,000) 

(982,525) 

(402,073,525) $ 

300,000,000 
-

1,965,049 

301,965,049 

$ 100,000,000 
-

982,524 

$ 100,982,524 

Beginning 
Balance Additions 

2019 

Reductions Ending Balance 
Due within One 

Year 

Other borrowing - Revenue bonds $ 105,000,000 
Other borrowing - SB 84 loan 1,091,000 
Compensated absences 1,198,863 

$ -
-

413,134 

$ (105,000,000) $ 
-

(546,259) 

-
1,091,000 
1,065,738 

$ -
164,497 
546,259 

Total $ 107,289,863 $ 413,134 $ (105,546,259) $ 2,156,738 $ 710,756 

Revenue Bonds 

On November 6, 2014, CEA issued Series 2014 revenue bonds totaling $350,000,000, summarized as 
follows. The bonds were paid in full on July 1, 2019. 

Principal Amount Interest Rate Price or Yield Maturity Date 

$ 40,000,000 1.194% 1.194% July 1, 2016 
60,000,000 1.824 1.824 July 1, 2017 
40,000,000 2.805 2.805 July 1, 2017 

105,000,000 2.805 2.805 July 1, 2018 
105,000,000 2.805 2.805 July 1, 2019 

The bonds bore interest from their date of delivery at the rates shown above, payable semiannually on 
January 1 and July 1, commencing on January 1, 2015. 

The Series 2014 revenue bonds were used to enhance claims paying capacity. The net proceeds from 
the revenue bonds were deposited into their respective claims paying account and were used to 
purchase investments according to the CEA’s investment policy. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 5 - Long-term Liabilities (Continued) 

Interest paid during 2019 was $2,945,250. 

On March 17, 2020, the CEA issued Series 2020A revenue bonds totaling $400,000,000, summarized as 
follows: 

Principal Amount Interest Rate Price or Yield Maturity Date 

$ 400,000,000 1.3% 1.3% July 1, 2020 

The CEA made a debt service deposit for the Series 2020A bonds that prefunded principal and interest 
payments due upon maturity and were invested in Treasury money market funds. The Series 2020A 
bonds were repaid in July 2020 by pledged revenue, which consisted of pledged policyholder premiums 
(defined as premiums for basic residential earthquake policies net of participating insurer costs) and 
interest and other income from investment of funds held by the trustee and debt service deposits. The 
proceeds of the revenue bonds were deposited in the 2020A claims paying account and the interest 
earnings helped to offset the interest costs on the 2020A revenue bonds. 

On November 24, 2020, the CEA issued Series 2020B revenue bonds totaling $300,000,000, 
summarized as follows: 

Principal Amount Interest Rate Price or Yield Maturity Date 

$ 50,000,000 
50,000,000 

100,000,000 
100,000,000 

1.127% 
1.227 
1.327 
1.477 

1.127% 
1.227 
1.327 
1.477 

January 1, 2021 
July 1, 2021 
July 1, 2022 
July 1, 2023 

The bonds bear interest from their date of delivery at the rates shown above, payable semiannually on 
January 1 and July 1, commencing on January 1, 2021. The Series 2020B bonds are not subject to 
optional redemption prior to maturity and are payable from future pledged policyholder premiums. 

The Series 2020B revenue bonds are used to enhance claims paying capacity. The net proceeds from 
the revenue bonds were deposited into their respective claims paying account and were used to 
purchase investments according to the CEA’s investment policy. The proceeds will only be used for future 
payments of earthquake policyholder claims and related loss adjustment expenses and may not be used 
to repay principal and interest of the debt. Revenue bond proceeds may be used for payment of claims 
after the CEA exhausts its capital available for claims and any capacity made available by reinsurance 
contracts. Repayment of debt does not affect the level of the claims paying account. 

The table below is the future scheduled debt service payments for the CEA’s long-term debt as follows as 
of December 31, 2020: 

Principal Interest Total 

2021 $ 100,000,000 $ 2,117,908 $ 102,117,908 
2022 100,000,000 2,804,000 102,804,000 
2023 100,000,000 1,477,000 101,477,000

 Total $ 300,000,000 $ 6,398,908 $ 306,398,908 

This schedule includes the mandatory sinking fund payments of $50 million due on January 1, 2021 and 
July 1, 2021 and $100 million due on July 1, 2022 and July 1, 2023. The sinking fund balance was $57.8 
million as of December 31, 2020. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 5 - Long-term Liabilities (Continued) 

With the issuance of the Series 2020B revenue bonds, the CEA was required to deposit $50,409,158 on 
November 25, 2020 in a trust account that was used to make the first principal and interest debt service 
payment on January 1, 2021. Starting on December 15, 2020, the CEA also was required to deposit one-
twelfth of the annual principal and interest payment by the 15th of each month into a trust account. Such 
amounts are held in restricted cash, cash equivalents, and investments. 

Interest paid during 2020 for the Series 2020 revenue bonds was $1,502,222. 

SB 84 Loan 

Senate Bill 84 (SB 84) authorized a one-time $6 billion supplemental pension payment in 2017-2018 to 
the California Public Employees’ Retirement System, in addition to the actuarially determined annual 
contribution, which is to be apportioned to the five state retirement plans based on their share of the 
aggregate unfunded liability. The supplemental pension payment was funded through a cash loan from 
the Surplus Money Investment Fund and other state funds that accrue interest to the General Fund, 
which will be paid back by June 30, 2030 through the General Fund and other funds responsible for 
retirement contributions for the state’s plans. 

The CEA paid off the loan early, in September 2020, in order to reduce the total interest paid on the loan. 
The total amount paid was $1,142,750, which included principal of $1,091,000 and interest of $51,750. 

Note 6 - Net Position 

As described in Note 2, net position includes restricted and unrestricted portions. The following table 
details the components of net position as it relates to restricted and unrestricted: 

2020 2019 

Restricted: 
Mitigation Fund $ 12,515,657 $ 13,315,861 
Claims paying account 57,611,865 -

Total restricted net position $ 70,127,522 $ 13,315,861 

Unrestricted: 
Contributed capital $ 790,656,796 $ 790,656,796 
Additional paid-in capital 313,667,933 293,795,461 
Other unrestricted 5,950,935,758 5,592,990,434 

Total unrestricted net position $ 7,055,260,487 $ 6,677,442,691 

Note 7 - Risk Transfer 

The CEA cedes risk to reinsurers under catastrophe excess-of-loss reinsurance contracts for purposes of 
limiting its maximum exposure. All contracts provide coverage for losses, as well as allocated loss 
adjustment expenses. Although the ceding of risk does not discharge the CEA from its primary 
responsibility to its policyholders, the reinsurance company that assumes the coverage assumes 
responsibility to reimburse the CEA for the related liability. Management believes that its reinsurers are 
and will continue to be able to satisfy their obligations under the reinsurance agreements. To date, losses 
have been recovered only under the supplemental coverage reinsurance contracts. In the event that 
legislation is enacted by the State of California that has the effect of increasing a reinsurer's exposure to 
loss under the reinsurance contract, a reinsurer has the right to cancel the reinsurance contract. 

Certain aggregate excess reinsurance contracts allowed for an adjustment of premium, based on the 
average aggregate insurance in force and the exposure adjustment limit, as defined in the contracts. As 
of December 31, 2020 and 2019, in accordance with these terms, CEA did not have a premium 
adjustment expense against the contracts. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 7 - Risk Transfer (Continued) 

As of December 31, 2020, the CEA ceded premium to reinsurers under catastrophe excess-of-loss 
reinsurance contracts and provided maximum limits of $9.15 billion at varying attachment points, and 29 
percent of the limit balance is fully collateralized. 

In addition to single-year contracts, the CEA contracts with reinsurers on multiyear contracts with a single 
limit over a two-, three-, or five-year term. The first-year premium for the reinsurance limit is calculated on 
the full limit, while subsequent premiums would be calculated on the remaining limit, if there were a 
recoverable from the reinsurance contract. An annual adjustment to the retention is based on the 
contracted probability of loss. At the end of 2020, the CEA had $6.047 billion, or 66 percent, of the 
reinsurance limit in multiyear terms. 

The CEA cedes risk to Bermuda-based special purpose reinsurers, Ursa Re Limited and Sutter Re 
Limited, under catastrophe excess-of-loss reinsurance contracts, which are backed by ILS contracts for 
purposes of limiting the CEA’s maximum exposure. The CEA is a sponsor of these transactions and not 
an issuer. As of December 31, 2020, the CEA has six contracts in effect for a two-year or three-year term 
totaling $1.35 billion. 

Note 8 - Statutory Compliance 

State of California Insurance Code limits the CEA’s operating expenses to a percentage of its premium 
income. In calculating this limitation, the CEA determined that its premium income is its reported 
premiums written. 

Effective January 1, 2015, statutory provisions pertaining to CEA operating expenses were amended by 
legislation, and items to be excluded from CEA operating expenses were spelled out in the new law, 
which (in effect) changed certain items of operating expense inclusion when compared to past practices 
of the CEA. The operating-expense cap was moved to 6 percent as defined in California Insurance Code 
Section 10089.6, subdivisions (c) and (d), as amended by AB 2064. Operating expenses underneath this 
legislation totaled $35.9 million and $35.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, 
respectively, and did not exceed 6 percent of premiums written in either year. 

Note 9 - Commitments and Contingencies 

The CEA is a defendant in various legal actions arising from the normal course of business. 
Management does not believe that the ultimate disposition of these actions will have a material adverse 
effect on CEA’s financial position or results of operations. 

Operating Leases 

The CEA leases office facilities and equipment under various noncancelable operating lease agreements 
that expire through June 2024. Rental expense associated with the lease agreements was $1,565,921 
and $1,304,342 for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Future minimum rental 
payments under these agreements are as follows: 

Years Ending Amount 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

$ 1,373,300 
1,417,278 
1,445,256 

793,367 

Total $ 5,029,201 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 10 - Mitigation Fund 

California Insurance Code Section 10089.37 created the Earthquake Loss Mitigation Fund as a 
subaccount of the CEA. According to statute, the Mitigation Fund must be used solely for the 
establishment and operation of an earthquake loss mitigation program. The Code requires the CEA to 
annually transfer an amount equal to the lesser of 5 percent of investment income or $5 million to the 
Mitigation Fund if deemed actuarially sound by a consulting actuary. The transfer and setting aside of 
those moneys into the Mitigation Fund subaccount have been formally approved by the CEA governing 
board. It is the opinion of the general counsel of the CEA and of the CEA’s outside counsel that the 
moneys that reside in the Mitigation Fund subaccount within the CEA are by statute not available to pay 
policyholder or other claims against the CEA. 

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the balance sheet includes expendable restricted net position 
related to the Mitigation Fund totaling $12,515,657 and $13,315,861, respectively. The expendable 
restricted net position of the Mitigation Fund as of December 31, 2020 includes the potential annual 
transfer amount of $5,000,000, which is subject to actuarial review and formal approval of the CEA’s 
governing board, as discussed in the previous paragraph. 

Note 11 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Plan Description 

All CEA civil service employees participate in the California Public Employees’ Retirement System, which 
is included in the State of California’s (the "State") Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as a fiduciary 
component unit. CalPERS administers the Public Employees’ Retirement Fund (PERF). PERF is an 
agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. CEA participates in the State Miscellaneous Plan 
(the "Plan") in a cost-sharing arrangement in which all risks and costs are shared proportionately by 
participating state agencies. 

CalPERS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that may be obtained by 
writing to the California Public Employees’ Retirement System, Fiscal Services Division, P.O. Box 
942703, Sacramento, California 94229 or by visiting the CalPERS website at www.CalPERS.ca.gov 
under Forms and Publications. 

Benefits Provided 

The PERF provides service retirement and disability benefits, survivor benefits, annual cost of living 
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. CEA 
has civil service employees who are members of the following bargaining units: Professional 
Administrative, Financial and Staff Service (Bargaining Unit 1); Attorneys and Hearing Officer (Bargaining 
Unit 2) and Professional Scientific (Bargaining Unit 10); all of CEA’s civil service employees are classified 
as members of the State Miscellaneous Plan. Vesting occurs after 5 years, or after 10 years for second-
tier employees. The benefit provisions are established by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) 
and the Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA). Benefits are based on a formula using 
a member’s years of service credit, age at retirement, and final compensation (average salary for a 
defined period of employment). Retirement formulas vary based on: 

- Classification (e.g., miscellaneous, peace officers and firefighters, or judges) 
- Membership category (pre-PEPRA and post-PEPRA) 
- Specific provisions in employees' contracts 

28 
150

www.CalPERS.ca.gov
https://10089.37


 

 
  

     

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 11 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

The Plan's provisions and benefits in effect at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are summarized as follows: 

State Miscellaneous Tier 1 State Miscellaneous Tier 2 
On or after 

Prior to January January 15, On or after Prior to January On or after 
Hire date 15, 2011 2011 January 1, 2013 1, 2013 January 1, 2013 

Benefit formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 60 2% @ 62 1.25% @ 65 1.25% @ 67 
5 years of 5 years of 5 years of 10 years of 10 years of 

Benefit vesting schedule service service service service service 
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life Monthly for life Monthly for life Monthly for life 
Retirement age 50-63 50-63 52-67 50-65 52-67 
Monthly benefits, as a percent of 

eligible compensation 1.1% - 2.5% 1.09% - 2.42% 1.1% - 2.5% 0.5% - 1.25% 0.65% - 1.25% 

Contributions 

Section 20814(a) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that employer contribution 
rates for all public employers to be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective 
on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan contributions are determined through 
CalPERS annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount 
necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional 
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The CEA is required to contribute the difference 
between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. 

The average active employee contribution rate and the employer's actuarially determined contribution 
rate, expressed as a percentage of payroll, for the measurement periods ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 
were: 

June 30, 2019 (the Measurement Date) 
Average Active Employee Employer Contribution 

Contribution Rate Rate 

State Miscellaneous Plan 6.90 % 29.37 % 

June 30, 2018 (the Measurement Date) 
Average Active Employee Employer Contribution 

Contribution Rate Rate 

State Miscellaneous Plan 6.77 % 28.40 % 

For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the contributions were $1,711,197 and 
$1,450,315, respectively. 

Senate Bill 84, approved by the governor on July 10, 2017, directed the State to contribute an additional 
$6 billion to the state plans during fiscal year 2017-2018 to pay down the unfunded accrued liability. 
Payments were made in three equal installments on or around October 31, 2017; January 16, 2018; and 
April 17, 2018. These payments are in addition to the actuarially required contributions for fiscal year 
2018-2019. 

The CEA’s portion of the $6 billion was $1,273,000 at December 31, 2019, which included principal of 
$1,091,000 and interest of $182,000. The interest rate was valued at the quarter-to-date yield at the two-
year constant maturity U.S. Treasury rate and was payable in July of each year starting in 2020 through 
2025. The California Department of Finance allowed the CEA to pay off its entire SB 84 loan liability in 
fiscal year 2020. In September 2020, the CEA made a principal payment of $1,091,000 along with an 
interest payment of $51,750. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 11 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, CEA reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate share of the 
Plan’s net pension liabilities in the amount of $11,823,481 and $9,621,334, respectively. 

The CEA’s net pension liability is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability of the 
Plan. The net pension liabilities of the Plan as of December 31, 2020 are measured as of June 30, 2019, 
and the total pension liabilities for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liabilities were determined 
by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018 rolled forward to June 30, 2019 using standard update 
procedures. The net pension liabilities of the Plan as of December 31, 2019 are measured as of June 30, 
2018, and the total pension liabilities for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liabilities were 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017 rolled forward to June 30, 2018 using standard 
update procedures. The CEA’s proportionate share of the net pension liability of the Plan was based on 
the state controller’s office (SCO) projection for the CEA based on its pensionable compensation 
(covered payroll). The SCO calculated and provided the CEA with its allocated pensionable 
compensation percentages by Plan. The CEA’s proportionate share of the net pension liabilities for the 
Plan as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 was 0.035152 and 0.030627 percent, respectively. 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related 
to Pensions 

For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the CEA recognized pension expense of $3,472,515 
and $1,575,984, respectively. 

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the CEA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

2020 2019 
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources Resources Resources 

The CEA's contributions to the plan 
subsequent to the measurement 
date $ 2,476,903 $ - $ 2,100,020 $ -

Changes in assumptions 498,066 248,024 867,898 318,999 
Net differences between expected 

and actual experience 620,448 34,012 103,221 67,031 
Difference between projected and 

actual earnings on pension plan 
investments - 88,047 99,396 -

Total $ 3,595,417 $ 370,083 $ 3,170,535 $ 386,030 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 11 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in future periods. Other 
amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be amortized into pension 
expense in future years. 

Actuarial Assumptions 

For the measurement period ended June 30, 2019 (measurement date), the total pension liability was 
determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2018 total pension liability using standard update procedures. 
The June 30, 2018 and the June 30, 2019 total pension liabilities of all plans were based on the following 
actuarial method and assumptions: 

State Miscellaneous Plan 

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal 

Actuarial assumptions: 
Discount rate 7.15 percent 
Inflation 2.50 percent 
Salary inflation Varies by entry age and service 
Mortality rate table Derived using CalPERS' membership data for all funds 

The lesser of Contract COLA or 2.50 percent until Purchasing 
Power Protection allowance floor on purchasing power 

Postretirement benefit increase applies, 2.50 percent thereafter 

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table includes 15 years of 
mortality improvements using the Society of Actuaries 90 percent of Scale MP-2016. For more details on 
this table, please refer to the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions 
report (the "Experience Study"). 

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 to 2015, including updates to salary increase, 
mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Study report is available at www.CalPERS.ca.gov. 

For the measurement period ended June 30, 2018 (measurement date), the total pension liability was 
determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2017 total pension liability using standard update procedures. 
The June 30, 2017 and the June 30, 2018 total pension liabilities of all plans were based on the following 
actuarial method and assumptions: 

State Miscellaneous Plan 

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal 

Actuarial assumptions: 
Discount rate 7.15 percent 
Inflation 2.75 percent 
Salary inflation Varies by entry age and service 
Mortality rate table Derived using CalPERS' membership data for all funds 

Contract COLA up to 2.00 percent until Purchasing Power 
Protection Allowance, Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 

Postretirement benefit increase 2.50 percent thereafter 

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table includes 15 years of 
mortality improvements using the Society of Actuaries 90 percent of Scale MP-2016. For more details on 
this table, please refer to the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions 
report. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 11 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 to 2015, including updates to salary increase, 
mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Study report is available at www.CalPERS.ca.gov. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at 
the current member contribution rates and that contributions from plan members will be made at 
statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan's fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan 
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods 
of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. CalPERS’ approach for the cash 
flow projections are presented in the GASB 67 and 68 Crossover Testing Report, which may be obtained 
from the CalPERS’ website. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and 
long-term market return expectations, as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical 
returns of all of the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over 
the short term (first 10 years) and the long term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the 
expected nominal returns for both short term and long term, the present value of benefits was calculated 
for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded single equivalent expected 
return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both 
short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent 
rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses. 

Investment Rate of Return 

For the measurement periods ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 (measurement date), the table below 
reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The real return years 1-10 used an 
expected inflation rate of 2.00 percent for this period. The real return years 11+ used an expected 
inflation rate of 2.92 percent for this period. 

Asset Class 
Current Target 

Allocation 
Real Return 
Years 1-10* 

Real Return 
Years 11+** 

Global equity 
Fixed income 
Inflation assets 
Private equity 
Real estate 
Liquidity 

50.00 % 
28.00 

-
8.00 

13.00 
1.00 

4.80 % 
1.00 
0.77 
6.30 
3.75 

-

5.98 % 
2.62 
1.81 
7.23 
4.93 

(0.92) 

* An expected inflation of 2.0 percent used for this period. 
** An expected inflation of 2.92 percent used for this period. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 11 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the CEA’s proportionate share of the net pension liabilities of the Plan as of June 
30, 2019 (measurement date), calculated using the discount rate of 7.15 percent, as well as what the 
CEA’s proportionate share of the net pension liabilities would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 
1 percentage point lower (6.15 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (8.15 percent) than the current 
discount rate: 

State Miscellaneous Plan 
1 Percentage 

Point Decrease 
(6.15%) 

Current Discount 
Rate 

(7.15%) 

1 Percentage 
Point Increase 

(8.15%) 

The CEA's proportionate share of plan's net pension 
liability $ 16,950,391 $ 11,823,481 $ 7,527,037 

The following presents the CEA’s proportionate share of the net pension liabilities of the Plan as of June 
30, 2018 (measurement date), calculated using the discount rate of 7.15 percent, as well as what the 
CEA’s proportionate share of the net pension liabilities would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 
1 percentage point lower (6.15 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (8.15 percent) that the current 
discount rate: 

State Miscellaneous Plan 
1 Percentage Current Discount 1 Percentage 

Point Decrease Rate Point Increase 
(6.15%) (7.15%) (8.15%) 

The CEA's proportionate share of plan's net pension 
liability $ 13,793,409 $ 9,621,334 $ 6,125,139 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the State of California Miscellaneous Plan’s fiduciary net position is available 
in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports. 

Note 12 - Defined Contribution Plan 

The CEA sponsors the California Earthquake Authority Retirement Plan (the "Plan"), a 401(A) defined 
contribution savings plan for contract employees. The Plan is administered by UBS Financial Services. 
Employees contribute 5 percent of base compensation. The CEA contributes 12.71 percent of the 
employee’s base compensation. The maximum base compensation for 2020 and 2019 was $285,000 and 
$280,000, respectively. The contributions are funded semiannually and allocated to the CEA based on 
employee contributions. 

Employees are fully vested in their account from the beginning of their employment. The CEA has no 
legal obligation for benefits under the Plan. Only the CEA board has the authority to amend the plan 
provisions. Employee contributions in 2020 and 2019 were $111,993 and $99,961, respectively. The 
CEA’s contributions in 2020 and 2019 were $284,932 and $254,319, respectively. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 13 - Risk Management 

The CEA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The CEA has insurance 
policies with private insurance companies for the following policies: 

Policy Type Policy Limits 

Workers' compensation 
Financial institution bond 
Business liability 
Director and officer liability 

$1,000,000 
$1,500,000 per incident, $3,000,000 aggregate 

$5,000,000 
$5,000,000 per incident, $10,000,000 aggregate 

Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the 
CEA. Claim amounts have not exceeded policy limits in the last three years. 

Note 14 - California Residential Mitigation Program 

On August 16, 2011, the CEA entered into a Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) with the California 
Emergency Management Agency (Cal EMA) to create the California Residential Mitigation Program 
(CRMP) for the purpose of supplying grants, loans, and loan guarantees (and related assistance and 
incentives) to owners of dwellings in California. Since the inception of the agreement, CalEMA, the name 
of the organization, has changed to California Emergency Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES). The 
CRMP governing board is composed of two representatives of each the CEA and Cal OES. Transfers 
approved by the CEA governing board from the CEA Mitigation Fund to the CRMP totaled $4,000,000 
and $6,300,000 in 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

In addition to the CEA governing board approved transfers, in 2020, the CEA Mitigation Fund transferred 
to CRMP $9,146,204 in Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) funds for the CRMP 
Earthquake Brace + Bolt program (CRMP EBB), which offers up to $3,000 for homeowners to seismically 
retrofit their houses. In 2019, the Mitigation Fund transferred $62,980 to CRMP in FEMA funds for the 
CRMP EBB. 

Requests for CRMP financial information should be addressed to California Residential Mitigation 
Program, 801 K Street, Suite 1000, Sacramento, CA 95814. 

Note 15 - Custodial Funds 

In July 2019, the California Legislature passed, and the governor signed AB 1054 and AB 111. The 2019 
Wildfire Legislation enacted a broad set of reforms and programs related to utility-caused wildfires in 
California. The 2019 Wildfire Legislation, which took immediate effect upon the governor’s signature, 
established the California Wildfire Fund. The purpose of the CWF is to provide a source of money to pay 
or reimburse eligible claims arising from a covered wildfire caused by a utility company that participates in 
the CWF by assisting in capitalizing the CWF, and undertaking certain other obligations specified in the 
law. 

Governance of the CWF is the responsibility of the newly created California Catastrophe Response 
Council (the "Council"). The Council has nine members, consisting of (1) the governor, (2) the insurance 
commissioner, (3) the treasurer, (4) the secretary of natural resources, (5 and 6) two members appointed 
by the Senate and the Assembly, and (7, 8, and 9) three members of the public appointed by the 
governor. The Council is charged with appointing a permanent administrator for the CWF. Until such time 
as the permanent administrator is appointed, the legislation provides for the CEA to act as the interim 
administrator. In April 2020, the CEA was named the permanent administrator. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 15 - Custodial Funds (Continued) 

The 2019 Wildfire Legislation created a capitalization structure that will result in a total of $21 billion 
flowing into the CWF to provide claim-paying capacity after utility-caused wildfires. The $21 billion in 
funding is split between Wildfire Nonbypassable Charges (NBCs) collected from utility ratepayers and 
contributions from the three large investor-owned utility companies in California. The legislation also 
required that the CWF be initially capitalized in the form of a short-term $2 billion loan from the treasurer’s 
Surplus Money Investment Fund (SMIF), a fund within the State’s Pooled Money Investment Account. 
The Department of Water Resources (DWR) is required to at least annually allocate or cause to be 
allocated the Wildfire NBCs for specified priority purposes, including, but not limited to, repayment of the 
SMIF loan, before transferring the remaining Wildfire NBCs to the CWF. In consultation with the State 
Treasurer's Office (STO), the Department of Finance (DOF), and CEA, DWR has determined to delay the 
issuance of DWR revenue bonds secured by the Wildfire NBCs, and instead will allocate the collected 
Wildfire NBCs to the repayment of the SMIF loan pursuant to an amortization schedule negotiated among 
CEA, STO, and DOF, with monthly principal payments of $70 million, which began on December 29, 
2020 and will end in April 2023. 

In December 2020, the CEA executed a SMIF Loan Repayment Agreement with the DWR. The CEA 
agreed to and established a SMIF Payment Account with one of its investment managers to receive NBC 
funds from the DWR Charge Fund and take reasonable steps to ensure that funds in the SMIF Payment 
Account are (a) segregated from the CWF general account from which eligible claims against the CWF 
are paid and (b) are applied for the sole and exclusive purpose of holding funds allocated to the 
repayment of principal and interest on the SMIF loan until the SMIF loan is paid in full. Once the $2 billion 
SMIF loan is repaid, the NBCs will flow directly into the CWF to provide claim paying capacity. 

During 2019, the CWF received $2,792,400,000 in contributions from two of the investor-owned utility 
companies. During 2020, the CWF received $5,307,600,000 in contributions from three of the investor-
owned utility companies. 

The 2019 Wildfire Legislation also requires that all costs and expenses related to the administration and 
operation of the Wildfire Fund be paid from the assets of the Wildfire Fund. Because CEA is now 
obligated to administer two separate and segregated funds - the Earthquake Authority Fund and the 
Wildfire Fund - and is using its operating assets and employees for the benefit of both funds, CEA is 
required to develop and implement a cost allocation methodology to ensure that each of the funds bear 
their own expenses. The CEA developed a methodology and systems to accomplish a fair and 
reasonable allocation of expenses between the two funds which was submitted and approved by the 
governing board in 2020. 

Under GASB 84, because the CEA is custodian of the CWF’s cash and investments, the holding of these 
assets is considered a fiduciary activity. This requires the CEA to report these held assets as a custodial 
fund in CEA’s separate stand-alone financial statements. The CWF does not issue a stand-alone financial 
report. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial statements of the Custodial Fund are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. 

Cash and Investments 

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the CWF had the following cash and investments: 

2020 
Less Than 1 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 5+ Total 

U.S. Treasurys 
U.S. agencies 
Corporate bond 
Certificate of deposit 
Cash 
Money market 

$ 1,774,278,074 
30,025,500 
17,725,773 
51,507,450 

40,527 
86,205,673 

$ 869,070,616 
104,455,837 
226,343,337 

-
-
-

$ 1,143,685,926 
839,230,573 
485,755,248 

-
-
-

$ 565,279,740 
-

490,817,985 
-
-
-

$ 259,868,522 
-

660,873,323 
-
-
-

$ 1,278,323,963 
-

1,211,707,942 
-
-
-

$ 5,890,506,841 
973,711,910 

3,093,223,608 
51,507,450 

40,527 
86,205,673 

Total $ 1,959,782,997 $ 1,199,869,790 $ 2,468,671,747 

35 

$ 1,056,097,725 $ 920,741,845 $ 2,490,031,905 $ 10,095,196,009 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 15 - Custodial Funds (Continued) 

2019 
Less Than 1 1 - 2 2 - 3 3 - 4 4 - 5 Total 

U.S. Treasurys 
Commercial paper 
Corporate bond 
Certificate of 

deposit 
Cash 
Money market 

$ 1,304,146,493 
79,276,869 
93,156,006 

10,002,500 
15,296,278 
11,480,897 

$ 838,393,289 
-
-

-
-
-

$ 765,632,851 
-
-

-
-
-

$ 867,923,802 
-
-

-
-
-

$ 785,557,836 $ 4,561,654,271 
- 79,276,869 
- 93,156,006 

- 10,002,500 
- 15,296,278 
- 11,480,897 

Total $ 1,513,359,043 $ 838,393,289 $ 765,632,851 $ 867,923,802 $ 785,557,836 $ 4,770,866,821 

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the CWF by the California 
Government Code or CWF’s investment policy, where more restrictive. The table also identifies certain 
provisions of the CWF’s investment policy that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration 
risk. 

Claims Paying Fund 

Maximum Maximum 
Maximum Percentage of Investment in 

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio One Issuer 

U.S. Treasury securities 12 years None None 
Federal agency securities 12 years 20% 5% 
Bankers acceptances 270 days 40 2 
Certificates of deposit 360 days 40 2 
Commercial paper 270 days 40 2 
Corporate bonds/notes 12 years 40 2 

In 2020, all funds were converted to claims paying funds; therefore, as of December 31, 2020, there are 
no primary funds. 

Interest Rate Risk 

U.S. Treasurys are allowed to have maturities of up to 12 years as long as the CWF’s combined portfolio 
does not exceed a maximum modified duration of 7 years. As of December 31, 2020, the CWF’s 
combined portfolio had a maximum modified duration of 7.0 years. As of December 31, 2019, the CWF’s 
combined portfolio had a maximum modified duration of 2.1 years. 

Credit Risk 

The CWF's investment policy limits investments in corporate bonds to the top three ratings issued by 
nationally recognized rating services. As of December 31, 2020, 58 percent of the portfolio consisted of 
U.S. Treasurys, and 42 percent of the portfolio consisted of commercial paper, corporate bond, certificate 
of deposit, cash, and money market funds. As of December 31, 2019, 96 percent of the portfolio 
consisted of U.S. Treasurys and 4 percent of the portfolio consisted of commercial paper, corporate bond, 
certificate of deposit, cash, and money market funds. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 15 - Custodial Funds (Continued) 

CWF's cash equivalents and investments are rated as follows: 

Security Rating -
Moody's Amount 

Security Rating -
S&P 500 Amount 

A1 
A2 
A3 

AA1 
AA2 
AA3 
AAA 

BAA2* 
Not rated 

$ 692,228,740 
957,331,934 
506,642,684 
110,785,211 
238,088,174 
335,080,798 

5,807,421,399 
16,459,200 

1,431,117,342 

A 
A-
A+ 
AA 
AA-
AA+ 
AAA 

BBB+* 
Not rated 

$ 717,123,863 
672,356,785 
699,380,840 
196,317,364 
391,272,108 

1,044,262,991 
238,028,425 

5,107,500 
6,131,305,606 

Total $ 10,095,155,482 $ 10,095,155,482 

*BAA2 and BBB+ refer to down-graded securities reported by Interactive Data Corporation. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

Corporate bonds/notes with maximum maturities of up to 12 years and no more than 25 percent of 
maximum corporate allocation may have maturities greater than 10 years but less than 12 years. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of failure of a depository financial institution, 
the CWF will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are 
in the possession of an outside party. The CWF has no policy that would limit the exposure to custodial 
credit risk for deposits. At December 31, 2020, all CWF deposits were covered by FDIC insurance. At 
December 31, 2019, approximately $15 million of CWF deposits were not covered by FDIC insurance. 

Investment Income 

Total investment income is comprised of interest, realized gains and losses, and unrealized gains and 
losses due to changes in the fair value of investments held at year end. 

Investment income for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 is as follows: 

2020 2019 

Interest income $ 85,785,422 $ 25,843,996 
Change in fair value of investments 104,136,204 (9,809,764) 
Less investment expenses (2,822,255) (670,355) 

Net investment income $ 187,099,371 $ 15,363,877 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 15 - Custodial Funds (Continued) 

Fair Value Measurement 

The CWF categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is divided into three levels with each level based on the 
source used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets, Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs, and Level 3 inputs are significant 
unobservable inputs. The asset’s level within the hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement. The CWF’s assessment of the significance of particular inputs 
to these fair value measurements requires judgment and considers factors specific to each asset. 

U.S. Treasury securities and corporate bonds classified as Level 1 measurements are valued using 
prices quoted in active markets for those securities. 

The fair value of commercial paper was determined to be amortized cost due to the short-term duration of 
the security and is classified in Level 2 measurement. Certificates of deposit are valued at amortized cost, 
which approximates fair value, and is classified in Level 2 measurement. 

The CEA has the following recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2020: 

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis at 
December 31, 2020 

Quoted Prices in Significant 
Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable Balance at 
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs December 31, 

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2020 

Bonds: 
U.S. Treasurys $ 5,472,334,094 $ - $ - $ 5,472,334,094 
U.S. agencies 973,711,910 - - 973,711,910 
Corporate bond 3,093,223,607 - - 3,093,223,607 
Certificate of deposit - 44,006,900 - 44,006,900 

Subtotal 9,539,269,611 44,006,900 - 9,583,276,511 

Cash and cash equivalents: 
U.S. treasuries 418,172,748 - - 418,172,748 
Certificate of deposit - 7,500,550 - 7,500,550 
Cash 40,527 - - 40,527 
Money market 86,205,673 - - 86,205,673 

Subtotal 504,418,948 7,500,550 - 511,919,498 

Total $ 10,043,688,559 $ 51,507,450 $ - $ 10,095,196,009 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Note 15 - Custodial Funds (Continued) 

The CEA has the following recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2019: 

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis at 
December 31, 2019 

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets Significant Other Significant 

for Identical Observable Unobservable Balance at 
Assets Inputs Inputs December 31, 

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2019 

Bonds: 
U.S. Treasurys $ 4,423,061,492 $ - $ - $ 4,423,061,492 
Commercial paper - 73,734,546 - 73,734,546 
Corporate bond 93,156,006 - - 93,156,006 
Certificate of deposit - 10,002,500 - 10,002,500 

Subtotal 4,516,217,498 83,737,046 - 4,599,954,544 

Cash and cash equivalents: 
U.S. treasury 138,592,779 - - 138,592,779 
Commercial paper - 5,542,323 - 5,542,323 
Cash 15,296,278 - - 15,296,278 
Money market 11,480,897 - - 11,480,897 

Subtotal 165,369,954 5,542,323 - 170,912,277 

Total $ 4,681,587,452 $ 89,279,369 $ - $ 4,770,866,821 

Note 16 - Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events up through and including June 1, 2021, which is the date 
the financial statements were made available to be issued. No events have occurred subsequent to 
December 31, 2020 requiring recording or disclosure in these financial statements. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Required Supplemental Information 
Schedule of the CEA's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

State Miscellaneous Plan 

Last Three Plan Years 

Plan Years Ended December 31 

2020* 2019** 2018*** 

CEA's proportion of the net pension liability 0.03515 % 0.03063 % 0.03030 % 

CEA's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 11,823,481 $ 9,621,334 $ 11,070,484 

CEA's covered payroll $ 4,539,247 $ 3,753,177 $ 3,512,318 

CEA's proportionate share of the net pension liability as a percentage of 
its covered payroll 260.47 % 256.35 % 315.19 % 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension liability 71.34 % 71.83 % 66.42 % 

Notes to Schedule 

2018 was the first year of implementation of GASB 68; therefore, only three years are presented. 

* Information is as of the June 30, 2019 measurement date. 
** Information is as of the June 30, 2018 measurement date. 
*** Information is as of June 30, 2017 measurement date. 
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California Earthquake Authority 

Required Supplemental Information 
Schedule of Pension Contributions 

State Miscellaneous Plan 

Last Three Fiscal Years 

Years Ended December 31 

2020 2019 2018 

Contractually required contribution $ 1,711,197 $ 1,450,315 $ 1,219,273 
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 1,711,197 1,450,315 1,219,273 

Contribution Excess $ - $ - $ -

CEA's Covered-employee Payroll $ 4,539,247 $ 3,753,177 $ 3,512,318 

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-employee Payroll 37.70 % 38.64 % 34.71 % 
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California Earthquake Authority 
Schedule of Participating Insurer Capital Contributions 

From Inception Through December 31, 2020 

1 State Farm General Insurance Company 
2 Allstate Insurance Company 
3 The Fire Insurance Exchange (Farmers) 
4 United Services Automobile Association1 

5 Safeco Insurance Company of America3 

6 California State Automobile Association Inter-Insurance Bureau2 

7 Nationwide Insurance Company7 

8 California FAIR Plan Association 
9 Interinsurance Exchange of the Automobile Club 

10 CNA/Continental4,6,12 

11 Amica11 

12 Prudential4 

13 Liberty Mutual Fire Insurance Company5 

14 Foremost Property and Casualty Insurance Company 
15 Mercury Casualty Company 
16 Armed Forces Insurance Exchange 
17 GuideOne (formerly Preferred Risk)4 

18 Homesite Insurance Company of California 
19 Pacific National Insurance4 

20 Encompass Insurance Company 
21 Glen Falls Insurance Company4 

22 Commerce West Insurance Company8 

23 Hyundai9 

24 Progressive10 

25 Toggle13 

$ 254,658,275 
145,612,517 
143,280,000 
58,992,512 
46,500,000 
39,013,494 
20,772,000 
15,029,487 
14,443,651 
13,924,611 
13,272,000 
11,531,455 
6,699,434 
4,614,304 
1,406,238 

783,685 
123,133 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

Total $ 790,656,796 

1 Includes Garrison Insurance Company 
2 Includes ACA Insurance Company 
3 Joined the CEA as of December 1, 2008 
4 Not currently writing residential property insurance in California 
5 Includes Golden Eagle Insurance Company 
6Withdrew from the CEA as of May 2011 
7Joined the CEA as of November 2011 
8Includes MAPFRE Insurance Company 
9Joined the CEA as of August 2014 
10Joined the CEA as of May 2015 
11 Joined the CEA as of August 2018 
12 Allstate bought CAN in 1999 and is writing underneath Encompass. 
13 Joined the CEA as of December 2019 
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California Earthquake Authority 
Schedule of Participating Insurer Premiums Written 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 

1 State Farm General Insurance Company 
2 Allstate Insurance Company 
3 The Fire Insurance Exchange (Farmers) 
4 United Services Automobile Association1 

5 Safeco Insurance Company of America3 

6 California State Automobile Association Inter-Insurance Bureau2 

7 Nationwide Insurance Company7 

8 California FAIR Plan Association 
9 Interinsurance Exchange of the Automobile Club 

10 CNA/Continental4,6,12 

11 Amica11 

12 Prudential4 

13 Liberty Mutual Fire Insurance Company5 

14 Foremost Property and Casualty Insurance Company 
15 Mercury Casualty Company 
16 Armed Forces Insurance Exchange 
17 GuideOne (formerly Preferred Risk)4 

18 Homesite Insurance Company of California 
19 Pacific National Insurance4 

20 Encompass Insurance Company 
21 Glen Falls Insurance Company4 

22 Commerce West Insurance Company8 

23 Hyundai9 

24 Progressive10 

25 Toggle13 

Total 

1 Includes Garrison Insurance Company 
2 Includes ACA Insurance Company 
3 Joined the CEA as of December 1, 2008 
4 Not currently writing residential property insurance in California 
5 Includes Golden Eagle Insurance Company 
6Withdrew from the CEA as of May 2011 
7Joined the CEA as of November 2011 
8Includes MAPFRE Insurance Company 
9Joined the CEA as of August 2014 
10Joined the CEA as of May 2015 
11Joined the CEA as of August 2018 
12Allstate bought CNA in 1999 and is writing underneath Encompass. 
13 Joined the CEA as of December 2019 

2020 

$ 288,116,669 
69,569,744 

109,834,327 
115,757,944 
48,581,248 
50,091,672 
19,530,108 
4,153,107 

56,058,503 
-

10,847,708 
-

16,660,425 
6,575,136 

39,168,388 
493,036 

-
3,795,721 

-
3,588,101 

-
169,943 

-
2,172,292 

582 

$ 845,164,654 

2019 

$ 271,105,855 
72,353,065 

108,605,541 
107,237,607 
48,428,142 
45,627,380 
20,049,270 
3,938,343 

57,329,894 
-

10,423,677 
-

17,817,693 
5,870,418 

38,288,704 
523,642 

-
3,503,397 

-
3,844,775 

-
140,640 

105 
1,552,731 

-

$ 816,640,879 
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California Earthquake Authority 
Schedule of Participating Unearned Premium 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 

1 State Farm General Insurance Company 
2 Allstate Insurance Company 
3 The Fire Insurance Exchange (Farmers) 
4 United Services Automobile Association1 

5 Safeco Insurance Company of America3 

6 California State Automobile Association Inter-Insurance Bureau2 

7 Nationwide Insurance Company7 

8 California FAIR Plan Association 
9 Interinsurance Exchange of the Automobile Club 

10 CNA/Continental4,6,12 

11 Amica11 

12 Prudential4 

13 Liberty Mutual Fire Insurance Company5 

14 Foremost Property and Casualty Insurance Company 
15 Mercury Casualty Company 
16 Armed Forces Insurance Exchange 
17 GuideOne (formerly Preferred Risk)4 

18 Homesite Insurance Company of California 
19 Pacific National Insurance4 

20 Encompass Insurance Company 
21 Glen Falls Insurance Company4 

22 Commerce West Insurance Company8 

23 Hyundai9 

24 Progressive10 

25 Toggle13 

Total 

1 Includes Garrison Insurance Company 
2 Includes ACA Insurance Company 
3 Joined the CEA as of December 1, 2008 
4 Not currently writing residential property insurance in California 
5 Includes Golden Eagle Insurance Company 
6Withdrew from the CEA as of May 2011 
7Joined the CEA as of November 2011 
8Includes MAPFRE Insurance Company 
9Joined the CEA as of August 2014 
10Joined the CEA as of May 2015 
11Joined the CEA as of August 2018 
12Allstate bought CNA in 1999 and is writing underneath Encompass. 
13 Joined the CEA as of December 2019 

2020 

$ 143,747,271 
35,708,036 
55,723,110 
73,719,674 
30,346,831 
26,237,006 
9,998,732 
2,052,390 

27,008,142 
-

5,598,828 
-

10,227,264 
3,444,111 

19,332,514 
267,503 

-
1,910,141 

-
1,744,936 

-
88,599 

-
1,341,472 

350 

$ 448,496,910 

2019 

$ 132,712,656 
36,233,691 
53,119,222 
67,163,549 
29,705,422 
23,949,350 
10,093,054 
1,884,092 

26,809,779 
-

5,259,394 
-

10,592,193 
2,983,535 

18,225,554 
270,286 

-
1,735,488 

-
1,848,217 

-
66,163 

24 
941,409 

-

$ 423,593,078 
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California Earthquake Authority 
Schedule of Participating Insurer Commissions 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 

2020 

1 State Farm General Insurance Company $ 28,812,879 
2 Allstate Insurance Company 6,957,574 
3 The Fire Insurance Exchange (Farmers) 10,983,390 
4 United Services Automobile Association1 11,576,253 
5 Safeco Insurance Company of America3 4,859,506 
6 California State Automobile Association Inter-Insurance Bureau2 5,009,349 
7 Nationwide Insurance Company7 1,956,790 
8 California FAIR Plan Association 415,343 
9 Interinsurance Exchange of the Automobile Club 5,613,477 

10 CNA/Continental4,6,12 -
11 Amica11 1,085,044 
12 Prudential4 -
13 Liberty Mutual Fire Insurance Company5 1,666,940 
14 Foremost Property and Casualty Insurance Company 655,330 
15 Mercury Casualty Company 3,917,147 
16 Armed Forces Insurance Exchange 49,303 
17 GuideOne (formerly Preferred Risk)4 -
18 Homesite Insurance Company of California 380,145 
19 Pacific National Insurance4 -
20 Encompass Insurance Company 358,802 
21 Glen Falls Insurance Company4 -
22 Commerce West Insurance Company8 17,002 
23 Hyundai9 -
24 Progressive10 217,261 
25 Toggle13 58 

Total $ 84,531,593 

1 Includes Garrison Insurance Company 
2 Includes ACA Insurance Company 
3 Joined the CEA as of December 1, 2008 
4 Not currently writing residential property insurance in California 
5 Includes Golden Eagle Insurance Company 
6Withdrew from the CEA as of May 2011 
7Joined the CEA as of November 2011 
8Includes MAPFRE Insurance Company 
9Joined the CEA as of August 2014 
10Joined the CEA as of May 2015 
11Joined the CEA as of August 2018 
12Allstate bought CNA in 1999 and is writing underneath Encompass. 
13 Joined the CEA as of December 2019 

2019 

$ 27,110,724 
7,235,561 

10,860,967 
10,724,040 
4,844,130 
4,562,937 
2,005,005 

393,855 
5,740,084 

-
1,042,550 

-
1,782,812 

585,192 
3,828,792 

52,365 
-

350,748 
-

384,491 
-

14,073 
11 

155,279 
-

$ 81,673,616 
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California Earthquake Authority 
Schedule of Participating Insurer Operating Costs 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 

1 State Farm General Insurance Company 
2 Allstate Insurance Company 
3 The Fire Insurance Exchange (Farmers) 
4 United Services Automobile Association1 

5 Safeco Insurance Company of America3 

6 California State Automobile Association Inter-Insurance Bureau2 

7 Nationwide Insurance Company7 

8 California FAIR Plan Association 
9 Interinsurance Exchange of the Automobile Club 

10 CNA/Continental4,6,12 

11 Amica11 

12 Prudential4 

13 Liberty Mutual Fire Insurance Company5 

14 Foremost Property and Casualty Insurance Company 
15 Mercury Casualty Company 
16 Armed Forces Insurance Exchange 
17 GuideOne (formerly Preferred Risk)4 

18 Homesite Insurance Company of California 
19 Pacific National Insurance4 

20 Encompass Insurance Company 
21 Glen Falls Insurance Company4 

22 Commerce West Insurance Company8 

23 Hyundai9 

24 Progressive10 

25 Toggle13 

Total 

1 Includes Garrison Insurance Company 
2 Includes ACA Insurance Company 
3 Joined the CEA as of December 1, 2008 
4 Not currently writing residential property insurance in California 
5 Includes Golden Eagle Insurance Company 
6Withdrew from the CEA as of May 2011 
7Joined the CEA as of November 2011 
8Includes MAPFRE Insurance Company 
9Joined the CEA as of August 2014 
10Joined the CEA as of May 2015 
11Joined the CEA as of August 2018 
12Allstate bought CNA in 1999 and is writing underneath Encompass. 
13Joined as of December 2019. 

2020 

$ 9,244,982 
2,231,271 
3,522,577 
3,713,364 
1,558,259 
1,607,678 

626,065 
133,283 

1,795,348 
-

348,029 
-

533,953 
209,094 

1,256,500 
15,801 

-
121,641 

-
115,125 

-
5,441 

-
69,696 

20 

$ 27,108,127 

2019 

$ 8,752,116 
2,335,189 
3,504,780 
3,455,617 
1,560,561 
1,471,930 

646,832 
127,166 

1,849,026 
-

336,370 
-

573,951 
187,846 

1,236,159 
16,889 

-
112,933 

-
124,196 

-
4,526 

4 
50,040 

-

$ 26,346,131 
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Governing Board Memorandum 

10 June 2021 

Agenda Item 11: Rate Filing Status Update 

Recommended Action: No action required - information only 

Background and Status: 

CEA staff submitted a rate filing to the Insurance Commissioner on March 12, 2021, 

following the Governing Board approval of the filing at its March 10, 2021 meeting. That 

filing was accepted for review by California Department of Insurance (CDI) and given an 

initial “deemer” date of May 25, 2021 (a “deemer” date is the date on which the filing is 
deemed approved unless rejected by CDI). On May 10, 2021, CDI requested that the CEA 

extend the review period to allow the CDI additional time to review the filing. This is a 

routine request from CDI, and the CEA immediately consented to this request, extending 

the review period to July 9, 2021. CEA staff continues to work with CDI staff to answer any 

questions that arise during CDI’s review of the filing. 

Implementation Steps: 

While implementation of the rate increase must await CDI’s final approval, the CEA has 

started to take steps to prepare for the rate increase if and when CDI approves the filing. 

The CEA has communicated with its participating insurers (PIs) about the filing and the 

potential need for them to adjust rates on CEA policies as of the beginning of 2022. The 

CEA has provided the PIs with a draft rate manual to assist them in updating their policy 

administration systems to implement any approved rate change. In addition, 

communication planning for policyholders, including updates that will be posted on the 

CEA website, is well underway. 

Subject to CDI approval, CEA is planning to implement the rate change for new and 

renewal policies effective January 1, 2022. 

Recommendation: 

This is a status report to the Board, and no action is recommended on this agenda item. 
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Governing Board Memorandum 

10 June 2021 

Agenda Item 12: Quarterly ERM Report  

Recommended Action: No action required—information only 

Background: 

The CEA Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Program is focused on monitoring and 

managing 13 priority risks: 

Financial Risks Insurance Risks Operational Risks Strategic Risks 

• Risk Transfer 

• Financial 

Management – 
Investments and 

Accounting 

• Policy Contracting 

and Servicing 

• Claim Handling 

• Earthquake Science 

and Modeling 

• CEA Residential 

Mitigation programs 

• Business Continuity 

• IT Systems and Data 

Security 

• Legal – Compliance 

and Litigation 

• Workforce 

• Wildfire Fund 

• Legislative / Regulatory 

• Reputation 

Since a major, damaging earthquake occurring in California is an overarching risk 

consideration for the CEA, each priority risk in the CEA’s ERM program is assessed from 

both a normal “steady-state” perspective and a post-earthquake or “stressed” perspective. 

The following scorecard represents CEA ERM risk-reporting on these priority risks for the 

2nd quarter 2021 and includes all activity since the March 10, 2021 CEA Governing Board 

meeting. The column “Q2 2021” indicates risk status and whether a risk escalation 

occurred during the preceding months. The column named Outlook indicates the 

potential future direction of the risk status—as either positive, negative, or stable—until 

the CEA Governing Board next meets. The final column is a brief summary of actions taken 

and risk-escalation status. 
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ERM Quarterly Report

Priority Risk Q2 2021 Outlook Activity Last Quarter / Comments

Risk Transfer Negative

Because the current ceded premium exceeds the provision in the 

current CEA rates, we have reached a checkpoint. As previously 

reported elsewhere, the CEA’s risk transfer costs are increasing and we 

have made a rate filing to reflect the increasing costs. 
Financial Management - 

Investments and Accounting Stable

Policy Sales and Servicing Stable
Business Continuity Stable

IT Systems and Data Security Stable

Legislative/Regulatory Stable
Claim Handling Stable

Legal - Compliance and Litigation Stable
Reputation Stable

Earthquake Science and Modeling Stable
Workforce Stable
Residential Mitigation Programs Stable

Wildfire Fund Stable

Status 

Legend

No risk checkpoints or limits reached.

Approaching or reached a risk checkpoint.

Approaching or reached a risk limit.

COVID-19 Response and Impact on Business Operations 

We continue to actively monitor our risks with the COVID-19 pandemic top-of-mind. 

Throughout the pandemic, CEA has been able to operate successfully with no significant 

impact on CEA’s business operations or financial position. Most staff continue to work 

remotely. 

The impacts of COVID-19 may change over time, and we will continue to monitor the 

situation and report changes to the Board. Planning is underway through a cross-

functional team of CEA staff to envision and plan for the CEA’s offices and work policies 

in a post-pandemic timeframe, with an emphasis on CEA’s readiness to respond to any 

catastrophic event within CEA’s scope of responsibility. 

Recommendation: 

This is a routine reporting item, and no action is recommended or required on this item. 
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Governing Board Memorandum 

10 June 2021 

Agenda Item 13: Mitigation and Research Program Update 

Recommended Action: No action required—information only 

MITIGATION: CRMP Earthquake Brace + Bolt Programs 

Within the next few weeks, more than 15,000 Earthquake Brace + Bold retrofits will have 

been completed through the California Residential Mitigation Program (CRMP), the JPA 

created by CalOES and CEA. CRMP is actively monitoring what appears to be a material increase 

in costs of wood products and labor in the second quarter that may be attributable to the effects 

of COVID-19 on the economy, supply chains and the labor market. 

A summary of the CRMP and CEA EBB programs are summarized in the tables and charts below: 

Earthquake Brace + Bolt Program 5/18/21 CRMP and CEA by Program Cycle 

Program Completed In 

Progress 

Status 

2014-2018 EBB 7,628 N/A Closed 

FEMA Napa EBB 84 N/A Closed 

CRMP 2019 EBB 576 23 Open 

FEMA – funded HMGP DR 4308 & 4344 5,530 2,271 Open 

CEA BB 822 83 Open 

Total 14,640 2,377 N/A 
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Source of funds: 

• EBB: Loss Mitigation Fund and State of California 
• CEA BB: CEA capital (available only to CEA policyholders) 
• FEMA: Federal Emergency Management Agency 

Staff Activity Levels: 

EBB staff continue to be busy working from home and metrics for February to April 
continues to represent their efforts. The following metrics illustrate the level of business 
activity on the program: 

• 4,971 Incoming Calls 
• 1,711 Outbound Calls to Program Participants 
• 2,500 Emails Answered 
• 633 Applications sent to FEMA 
• 1,237 Retrofits Completed 

Future Funding Opportunities 
CRMP continues to look beyond present funding sources—the primary source has been 
the CEA Earthquake Loss Mitigation Fund—for additional funding sources, including 
available FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) and Building Resilient 
Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC) grants. CRMP also is monitoring the implementation 
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of $250M set aside in the May Revise budget for Community Hardening to Build Disaster 

Resilient Communities. This General Fund allocation may be utilized to develop and 

implement a new initiative, “Prepare California,” used to promote equity in building state 

resiliency by eliminating barriers associated with the difficulty of funding the 25% local 

cost share match required for participation in federal hazard mitigation programs. That 

program remains contingent on being funded in the Governor’s 2021-22 budget. CEA and 

CRMP is preparing to act if such funding is approved. 

Current HMGP and BRIC Notice of Interest (NOI) and applications include requests for $235 

million in federal funding, as noted in the following table: 

Cal OES/FEMA Grant Funding Applications 

Grant Program Funding Request Program Type Status 

HMGP DR 4308 $4M EBB Approved 

HMGP DR 4344 $20M EBB Approved 

HMGP DR 4407 $5M EBB FEMA review 

HMGP DR 4407 $5M ESS Submitted to Cal 

OES 

HMGP DR 4431 $3M EBB Waitlisted 

HMGP DR 4434 $3M EBB Waitlisted 

BRIC $25M ESS FEMA review 

BRIC $30M Multi-family FEMA review 

HMGP DR 4558 $20M EBB Application 

submitted 3/5/21. 

HMGP DR 4558 

Round II 

$50M ESS Application due 

6/18/21. 

HMGP DR 4569 $50M ESS Application 

submitted 4/29/21. 

HMGP DR 4569 $20M EBB Application 

submitted 4/29/21. 

Supplemental Grant Development 

CEA continues to develop the supplemental grant for low-to-moderate income 

homeowners. Development of backend IT functions and grant eligibility and rules is 

underway with the intent to rollout this grant when a new program opens, which is 

anticipated to occur sometime in the 3rd or 4th quarter of this year. 
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RESEARCH: On-going Research Projects: 

1. Guidelines Development 

The ATC 110 earthquake-guidelines-development project, first phase, completed on 

June 20, 2018. Now called FEMA P-1100, Vulnerability-Based Seismic Assessment and 

Retrofit of One- and Two-Family Dwellings, the bulk publication consists of three 

volumes: 

• Volume 1, Prestandard publication (published October 2019) 

• Volume 2, FEMA plan set (published November 2019) 

• Volume 3, background documents (completed November 2019) 

The second phase of this project consists of developing a training program for 

Contractors, Building Officials, and Engineers. A training outline has been drafted and 

the program is currently being developed. Phase two should be completed Q2 2021. 

The third phase will involve CEA working closely with FEMA and the International Code 

Council (ICC) to adopt the guidelines as industry standards, paving the way for adoption 

into California’s building code. Additionally, by creating a uniform seismic-retrofit-design 

method for homeowners, contractors, and engineers, the new guidelines will help the 

CEA and others (1) establish and expand incentive programs to encourage seismic 

retrofits, such as that of the California Residential Mitigation Program, and (2) enhance 

CEA’s ability to develop and provide suitable mitigation discounts for CEA-insured 

homeowners. 

2. Cripple-Wall-Performance Effects 

CEA contracted with the Pacific Earthquake Engineering Research (PEER) Center in 

September 2016 to lead CEA’s research project, “Quantifying the Performance of Retrofit 
of Cripple Walls and Sill Anchorage in Single Family Wood-frame Buildings.” 

With this project, CEA will have refined scientific data to inform CEA rate levels and 

premium discounts. Scheduled to be completed by end of year 2020. 

All final reports have been received and a close out summary report has been completed. 

3. CEA Research Forum 

This year we will be focusing on Equitable Residential Earthquake Resilience in California. 

As the world transitions out of the COVID-19 pandemic, the CEA will be introducing a 

low-income supplemental grant in conjunction with the Earthquake Brace and Bolt 
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program. Recent experience with health science communication and the inequitable 

impacts of a disaster on vulnerable communities can inform and improve the proposed 

grant program. This conference will discuss “lessons from the pandemic” and resilience 
equity issues in order to develop strategies for a successful program launch and to 

promote resilience justice throughout the state. 

Planning for this 5th CEA Annual Research Forum is currently underway. Speakers are 

being finalized and Save the Date invites are scheduled to go out later this month. 

4. UCERF3 Analysis 

The UCERF3 model represents a substantial advancement in science. It is also complex, 

yielding more than 250,000 fault-based ruptures—25 times more than the UCERF2 

model. 

To deal with the complexity, work is required to identify which of the UCERF3 model’s 
“branches” most influence modeled results. 

Although CEA is not legally obligated to advance the scientific understanding of seismic 

risk in California, staff continues to believe that it is in CEA’s best interests to do so, on a 
voluntary basis. Seismic research underpins many of CEA’s actions, such as: 

• Developing the structure and cost of innovative insurance products, using the 

best available science. 

• Understanding the amounts of risk-transfer CEA requires to ensure coverage 

needs and policyholder claims. 

• Measuring the effects of risk-reduction features on expected policyholder losses 

(e.g., to support a more robust hazard-reduction discount). Effectively 

communicating risk to CEA policyholders and other stakeholders. 

• Quantifying the anticipated total cost of a damaging earthquake, using CEA’s 
proprietary EARLE process. 

CEA contracted with the Southern California Earthquake Center (SCEC) to manage and 

carry out the further efforts and collaboration of the UCERF3 research participants. USGS 

and SCEC had leading roles in the development, progress, and quality control of the 

project, with oversight and appropriate management provided by CEA’s Research 

Department. All reports have been received and are currently under review. 
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Governing Board Memorandum 

10 June 2021 

Agenda Item 14: CEA Centralized Policy Processing (CPP) – Quarterly Update 

Recommended Action: No action required—information only. 

Background: 

CEA’s Centralized Policy Processing (CPP) initiative is an ongoing program to establish a 

uniform administration for the unified administration of all CEA policies and claims across 

all of CEA’s two dozen Participating Insurers (PIs). The CPP system is built on a software 

platform licensed to the CEA by Policy Processing System Technology Company, through 

its subsidiary Insuresoft, LLC (Insuresoft). Working with Insuresoft, CEA has successfully 

on-boarded 10 PIs, and is less than a month away from completing the on-boarding of 

Farmers Insurance, CEA’s second largest PI by market share (Farmers has placed nearly 

165,000 CEA policies). 

While the CEA continues to make favorable progress, there is still significant work, time 

and investment required to complete the migration of all CEA’s policies onto the CPP 
system. During 2020, the CEA conducted a thorough analysis of the CPP program to 

identify any areas of potential improvements in the program, either within CEA or with 

regard to Insuresoft’s software, support and implementation services. This assessment has 

resulted in several ongoing enhancement projects, reported on below, that seek to 

improve the efficiency and functionality of the collaboration between the CEA and 

Insuresoft. 

Quarterly Update: 

The following items are updates to the significant projects underway for the CPP 

initiative: 

• Farmers On-Boarding: The Farmers CPP implementation project is less than 30 days 

from the targeted “go-live” date in late June. CEA, Farmers and Insuresoft are 

working together on final preparations, including software testing and data 

conversion tasks. Farmers will be the eleventh PI to migrate its policies on to the 
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CPP platform, increasing the platform utilization to just under half of the total PIs 

and approximately 27% of CEA’s book of business. 

• Claims Testing: The CPP platform is both a policy administration and claims 

administration system. Of course, absent a major earthquake, the claims 

administration functionality of CPP remains dormant. The CEA successfully 

completed a significant “end-to-end” test of the claim administration functionality, 

and has been planning a second, larger test for this year. To avoid resource conflicts 

with the Farmers on-boarding, CEA rescheduled this second claims test until the 

early part of the fourth quarter of this year. Details and results of the planned claims 

testing will be presented at a future Governing Board meeting. 

• Implementation of Assessment Recommendations: The consulting assessment 

mentioned above identified several opportunities for improvement in various 

aspects of the CPP program, all of which are underway. 

o CEA is developing a proactive approach to implementing recommended 

enhancements related to CPP program scalability, functionality, and 

cybersecurity. These efforts will strengthen the ability of the CPP platform 

to continue absorbing and integrating the policies of the remaining PIs 

who have not yet migrated their CEA policies to CPP. 

o CEA and its CPP program software vendor (PPSTC) are working together to 

develop and execute coordinated action plans to mitigate risk and 

improve overall performance and efficiency of the system and program. 

o The parties are also working together on improving the clarity of the two 

key legal agreements that govern this relationship – a Software License 

Agreement and a Master Services Agreement. That process should be 

complete within the next several months. 
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Governing Board Memorandum 

10 June 2021 

Agenda Item 15: DIBAC Update 

Recommended Action: No action required—information only 

Background: 

One year ago, in the aftermath of George Floyd’s murder on May 25, 2020, the CEA 

created a volunteer advisory council to consider and advise CEA on actions CEA might 

take, both internally and externally, to support diversity, including and belonging for 

traditionally marginalized and underserved groups. The staff-driven Diversity Inclusion 

and Belonging Advisory Council (DIBAC) was formed and adopted a broad vision 

statement to address all aspects of diversity and inclusion: 

Ensure a diverse and inclusive work environment that prioritizes equity, 

racial justice and belonging for all—through actions, activities, and 

programs within our company and in our community. 

DIBAC remains focused on three primary areas: 1) Internal Education, 2) Internship and 

Mentorship, and 3) Employee Practices. 

Update: 

At the meeting, DIBAC co-chair Kwaun Williams will provide year-end review of DIBAC’s 
projects and activities, and a look ahead at future initiatives to further the vision of DIBAC 

and the CEA. 

Recommendation: 

This is a reporting item, and no immediate action by the Board is requested. 
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Governing Board Memorandum 

10 June 2021 

Agenda Item 17: Closed Session on Personnel Matters 

Recommended Action: Closed Session 

Following an opportunity for public comment on any CEA matters that are on the Agenda 

for this meeting (Agenda Item 16), the Board will move into Closed Session to discuss 

personnel matters, as authorized under Government Code section 11126(a). 

At the conclusion of the Closed Session, the Board will return to open session for purposes 

of reporting on any final action (if any) taken during the Closed Session, and to thereafter 

adjourn the meeting. 
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Event Code Event Name Date of Event 

California Earthquake Authority 

Losses & Loss Adjustment Expenses (LAE) Paid - Cumulative to May 31, 2021 

Magnitude Location # of Paid 
Claims Losses Paid LAE Paid 

Total Paid 
Losses & LAE 

98010 Chino 1/5/1998 4.3 3 mi. W of Chino 1 $1,385.72 $124.71 $1,510.43 

98050 San Juan Bautista 8/12/1998 5.3 7 mi. SSE of San Juan Bautista 1 161,204.93 13,643.13 $174,848.06 

98070 Redding 11/26/1998 5.2 3 mi. NNW of Redding 1 4,029.72 362.67 $4,392.39 

1998 Minor Quakes 2 4,199.20 377.93 $4,577.13 

99050 Hector Mine 11/16/1999 7.0 28 mi. N of Joshua Tree (near Palm Springs) 25 137,361.81 12,362.47 $149,724.28 

1999 Minor Quakes 1 4,037.26 363.35 $4,400.61 

00030 Napa 9/3/2000 5.2 17 mi. ESE of Santa Rosa; 6 mi. NNE of Sonoma; 15 
3 mi. WSW of Yountville 

278,130.07 25,031.71 $303,161.78 

01010 Ferndale 1/13/2001 5.4 53 mi. WNW of Ferndale 1 34,764.54 3,128.79 $37,893.33 

2001 Minor Quakes 1 52,896.82 4,760.70 $57,657.52 

01040 West Hollywood 9/9/2001 4.2 West Hollywood 10 67,044.15 6,033.94 $73,078.09 

2002 Minor Quakes 1 8,361.24 752.51 $9,113.75 

03090 San Simeon 12/22/2003 6.4 7 mi. NE of San Simeon 86 2,692,628.02 242,339.74 $2,934,967.76 

04120 Parkfield 9/28/2004 6.0 7 mi SSE of Parkfield 1 7,032.59 632.93 $7,665.52 

07240 Chatsworth 8/9/2007 4.5 4 mi NNW of Chatsworth 1 7,813.88 703.24 $8,517.12 

07250 Alum Rock 10/30/2007 5.6 5 mi NNE of Alum Rock 1 6,149.20 553.42 $6,702.62 

08280 Chino Hills 7/29/2008 5.4 5.5 mi SE of Diamond Bar 8 145,967.19 13,089.08 $159,056.27 

09320 Calexico 12/30/2009 5.9 22.7 mi SE of Calexico 1 275.88 24.83 $300.71 

2009 Minor Quakes 2 8,627.67 776.49 $9,404.16 
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Event Code Event Name 

California Earthquake Authority 

Losses & Loss Adjustment Expenses (LAE) Paid - Cumulative to May 31, 2021 (continued) 

# of Paid 
Date of Event Magnitude Location Claims Losses Paid LAE Paid 

Total Paid 
Losses & LAE 

10330 

10360 

12410 

13430 

14460 

14470 

14480 

19520 

19530 

20540 

20550 

20560 

Ferndale 

Baja California Mexico 

2010 Minor Quakes 

Brawley 

2012 Minor Quakes 

Greenville 

Westwood 

La Habra 

American Canyon 

2014 Minor Quakes 

2015 Minor Quakes 

2018 Minor Quakes 

Searles Valley 

Pleasant Hill 

2019 Minor Quakes 

Searles Valley 

Lone Pine 

Greater Los Angeles Area 

2020 Minor Quakes 

1/9/2010 6.5 27 mi W of Ferndale 3 23,901.50 

4/4/2010 7.2 16 mi SW from Guadalupe Victoria, Mexico 17 81,066.58 

1 225,000.00 

8/26/2012 5.3 4 mi North of Brawley, CA 2 23,833.24 

3 146,471.18 

5/23/2013 5.7 7 mi WNW of Greenville, CA 1 1,500.00 

3/17/2014 4.4 6mi NNW of Westwood, CA 6 67,989.89 

3/28/2014 5.1 1mi S of La Habra, CA 85 458,715.28 

8/24/2014 6.0 4mi NW of American Canyon, CA 197 3,817,733.32 

3 18,859.35 

2 5,877.69 

4 6,058.71 

7/4/2019 6.4 SW of Searles Valley, CA 58 1,012,652.89 

10/14/2019 4.7 .7 mi SSE of Pleasant Hill, CA 1 2,700.04 

2 1,835.35 

6/3/2020 5.5 10.6 mi S of Seales Valey, CA 1 2,297.98 

6/24/2020 5.8 11.25 mi SSE of Lone Pine, CA 1 2,163.82 

4.5 1 2,190.48 

2 4,883.39 

2,151.13 

7,296.00 

0.00 

2,145.00 

13,182.41 

135.00 

6,119.09 

41,284.37 

343,596.00 

1,697.34 

529.00 

545.28 

91,138.73 

243.01 

165.18 

206.82 

194.74 

197.14 

439.48 

$26,052.63 

$88,362.58 

$225,000.00 

$25,978.24 

$159,653.59 

$1,635.00 

$74,108.98 

$499,999.65 

$4,161,329.32 

$20,556.69 

$6,406.69 

$6,603.99 

$1,103,791.62 

$2,943.05 

$2,000.53 

$2,504.80 

$2,358.56 

$2,387.62 

$5,322.87 

Total 549 $9,527,640.58 $836,327.36 $10,363,967.94 
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Claims History Report Glossary 

Event Code: A 5-digit code that the CEA assigns to all earthquakes expected to produce paid 
losses. This code is used to track statistics for a particular earthquake. 

Event Name: This is generally the name given to the earthquake by the USGS 
(United States Geological Survey). 
Date of Event: Date that the earthquake occurred. 

Magnitude: Richter scale magnitude assigned by USGS. 
Location: This is assigned by USGS and is usually a city close to the earthquake. 

# of Paid Claims: A numeric count of the claims that received a payment for damage caused by 
a particular earthquake. 

Losses Paid: Total dollar amount of all claims paid to the policyholders for a particular 
earthquake. 

LAE Paid: “LAE” stands for Loss Adjustment Expense which is always 9% of paid losses. This is 
the amount paid to the Participating Insurers for handling the claim. 

Total Paid Losses and ALE: The sum of Losses Paid and LAE Paid. 

Minor Quakes: Losses paid for damage from minor earthquakes that were initially not expected 
to generate a claim and therefore were not issued a CEA event code. 
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